# Gazette officielle du Québec

Part 2 Laws and Regulations

Volume 131 14 April 1999 No. 15

## **Summary**

Table of Contents Acts 1999 Coming into force of Acts Regulations and other acts Draft Regulations Municipal Affairs Index

Legal deposit — 1st Quarter 1968 Bibliothèque nationale du Québec © Éditeur officiel du Québec, 1999

All rights reserved in all countries. No part of this publication may be translated, used or reproduced by any means, whether electronic or mechanical, including micro-reproduction, without the written authorization of the Québec Official Publisher.

## **Table of Contents**

## Page

## Acts 1999

| 11            | An Act to amend the Act respecting the National Assembly and the Act respecting the   |     |
|---------------|---|-----|
|               | conditions of employment and the pension plan of the Members of the National Assembly | 467 |
| List of Bills | sanctioned  | 465 |

## **Coming into force of Acts**

| 272-99 | Health services and social services and amending various legislative provisions, An Act to |     |
|--------|--|-----|
|        | amend the Act respecting — Coming into force of certain provisions                         | 473 |

## **Regulations and other acts**

| 231-99     | Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan, An Act respecting the — Amendments |     |
|------------|---|-----|
|            | to Schedule I to the Act  | 475 |
| 313-99     | Municipal taxation, An Act respecting — Compensations in lieu of taxes (Amend.)     | 476 |
| 383-99     | Special road train operating permits (Amend.)                                       | 477 |
| 384-99     | Highway Safety Code — Special permits (Amend.)                                      | 478 |
| Exemptions | from stopping before crossing certains level crossings                              | 480 |

## **Draft Regulations**

| Devices which compensate for a physical deficiency | 656        |
|--|------------|
| Register of personal and movable real rights       | 660        |
| Salmon fishing controlled zones                    | 665<br>668 |

## **Municipal Affairs**

| 312-99 | Correction to the amalgamating Order in Council constituting Ville de Coaticook | 673 |
|--------|---|-----|
|--------|---|-----|

## **PROVINCE OF QUÉBEC**

## 1st SESSION

## 36th LEGISLATURE

QUÉBEC, 24 MARCH 1999

## $O{\tt FFICE} \ {\tt of} \ {\tt the} \ L{\tt ieutenant-Governor}$

## Québec, 24 March 1999

This day, at one minute past eleven o'clock in the morning, the Honourable the Administrator of Québec was pleased to sanction the following bill:

11 An Act to amend the Act respecting the National Assembly and the Act respecting the conditions of employment and the pension plan of the Members of the National Assembly

To this bill the Royal assent was affixed by the Honourable the Administrator of Québec.



Bill 11 (1999, chapter 3)

An Act to amend the Act respecting the National Assembly and the Act respecting the conditions of employment and the pension plan of the Members of the National Assembly

Introduced 23 March 1999 Passage in principle 23 March 1999 Passage 23 March 1999 Assented to 24 March 1999

> Québec Official Publisher 1999

## **EXPLANATORY NOTES**

The object of this bill is to change the composition of the Office of the National Assembly by increasing by two the number of its members and fixing the quorum at five.

In addition, the bill amends the Act respecting the National Assembly to provide a procedure for the replacement of the President of the Assembly in case of absence, inability to act or vacancy.

The bill also specifies certain rules applicable to the regular personnel hired to assist, for research and support purposes, a party represented in the National Assembly.

Lastly, the bill provides that whenever the caucus of the Official Opposition consists of twenty Members or more, an additional indemnity is to be paid to a Member who occupies the position of chairman of the caucus.

## **LEGISLATION AMENDED BY THIS BILL:**

- Act respecting the National Assembly (R.S.Q., chapter A-23.1);

- Act respecting the conditions of employment and the pension plan of the Members of the National Assembly (R.S.Q., chapter C-52.1).

## **Bill 11**

## AN ACT TO AMEND THE ACT RESPECTING THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY AND THE ACT RESPECTING THE CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT AND THE PENSION PLAN OF THE MEMBERS OF THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

## THE PARLIAMENT OF QUÉBEC ENACTS AS FOLLOWS :

**1.** Section 87 of the Act respecting the National Assembly (R.S.Q., chapter A-23.1) is amended by replacing "seven" in the second line by "nine".

**2.** Section 88 of the said Act is amended

- (1) by replacing "four" in paragraph 1 by "five";
- (2) by replacing "three" in the first line of paragraph 2 by "four";
- (3) by replacing "two" in the second line of paragraph 2 by "three".

**3.** Section 96 of the said Act, replaced by section 1 of chapter 54 of the statutes of 1998, is again replaced by the following section:

**"96.** If the President is absent, or at the President's request, the Vice-President designated by the President shall act as chairman. Only the first Vice-President or the second Vice-President may be designated for that purpose.

If the President is unable to act or the office of President is vacant, the first Vice-President shall act as chairman during such inability or vacancy.

However, if the first Vice-President also is or also becomes unable to act or the office of first Vice-President also is or also becomes vacant, the second Vice-President shall replace the first Vice-President in the circumstances described in the second paragraph."

**4.** Section 97 of the said Act is amended by replacing "Four" in the first line by "Five".

**5.** Section 108 of the said Act is amended

(1) by replacing the second paragraph by the following paragraph:

who is the leader of the Official Opposition party may transfer the moneys required for the remuneration of the regular personnel hired to assist the party for research and support purposes to the budget granted, under subparagraph 3 of the first paragraph of section 104, to the offices referred to in section 124.1. The personnel hired to assist the party for such purposes forms part of the personnel of the offices so designated in the same manner as the other members of the personnel of those offices.";

(2) by adding the following paragraph at the end:

"In the case of another party to which the first paragraph applies, the Member who is the leader of that party or the authorized Member may transfer the moneys required for the remuneration of the regular personnel hired to assist the party for research and support purposes to the budget granted to the Member under subparagraph 3 of the first paragraph of section 104. The personnel hired to assist the party for such purposes forms part of the personnel of that Member in the same manner as the other members of his personnel."

**6.** Section 117 of the said Act, replaced by section 2 of chapter 54 of the statutes of 1998, and section 118 of the said Act are replaced by the following sections :

**"117.** If the President is absent, or at the President's request, the Vice-President designated by the President shall act as President. Only the first Vice-President or the second Vice-President may be designated for that purpose.

If the President is unable to act or the office of President is vacant, the first Vice-President shall act as President during such inability or vacancy.

However, if the first Vice-President also is or also becomes unable to act or the office of first Vice-President also is or also becomes vacant, the second Vice-President shall replace the first Vice-President in the circumstances described in the second paragraph.

**"118.** The President may delegate some of the President's administrative responsibilities to the first or the second Vice-President who shall, within the limits of the delegation, have the same powers and duties as the President."

**7.** Section 143 of the said Act is amended by striking out the second paragraph.

**8.** Section 7 of the Act respecting the conditions of employment and the pension plan of the Members of the National Assembly (R.S.Q., chapter C-52.1) is amended by inserting the following subparagraph after subparagraph 11.1 of the first paragraph :

"(11.2) the Member occupying the position of caucus chairman of the Official Opposition shall receive an indemnity equal to 22.5% of the annual indemnity if the caucus consists of twenty Members or more;".

**9.** For the purposes of the First Session of the Thirty-Sixth Legislature, the fifteen-day period provided for in section 90 of the Act respecting the National Assembly is extended to thirty days.

**10.** For the purpose of computing the severance pay payable to the personnel referred to in the third paragraph of section 108 of the Act respecting the National Assembly, the accumulated service of a member of the personnel in office on 24 March 1999 is computed from the date on which the personnel member was appointed for the first time to assist the political party for research and support purposes.

**11.** Notwithstanding paragraph 1 of section 5 of this Act, the second paragraph of section 108 of the Act respecting the National Assembly, as it read before being replaced by that paragraph, shall continue to apply in respect of the Government party for the duration of the Thirty-Sixth Legislature.

**12.** Sections 1, 2, 4 and 8 have effect from 2 March 1999.

**13.** This Act comes into force on 24 March 1999.

## **Coming into force of Acts**

Gouvernement du Québec

## **O.C. 272-99**, 24 March 1999

An Act to amend the Act respecting health services and social services and amending various legislative provisions (1998, c. 39) — Coming into force of certain provisions

COMING INTO FORCE of certain provisions of the Act to amend the Act respecting health services and social services and amending various legislative provisions (1998, c. 39)

WHEREAS the Act to amend the Act respecting health services and social services and amending various legislative provisions was assented to on 20 June 1998;

WHEREAS section 209 of the Act provides that it comes into force on 20 June 1998, except the provisions of paragraph 2 of section 63, sections 94 to 97, 139, 141 to 149, 160, 171, 202, 207 and 208, which come into force on the date or dates to be fixed by the Government;

WHEREAS it is expedient to fix the date of coming into force of the provisions of sections 171, 207 and 208 of the Act to amend the Act respecting health services and social and amending various legislative provisions;

IT IS ORDERED, therefore, upon the recommendation of the Minister of State for Health and Social Services and Minister of Health and Social Services:

THAT 1 April 1999 be fixed as the date of coming into force of the provisions of sections 171, 207 and 208 of the Act to amend the Act respecting health services and social and amending various legislative provisions (1998, c. 39).

MICHEL NOËL DE TILLY, Clerk of the Conseil exécutif



## **Regulations and other acts**

Gouvernement du Québec

## O.C. 231-99, 24 March 1999

An Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan (R.S.Q., c. R-10)

#### Amendments to Schedule I to the Act

Amendments to Schedule I to the Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan

WHEREAS under section 1 of the Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan (R.S.Q., c. R-10), the retirement plan applies to employees and persons designated in Schedule I, and employees and persons designated in Schedule II who were not members of a retirement plan on 30 June 1973 or who were appointed or engaged after 30 June 1973;

WHEREAS under the first paragraph of section 220 of that Act, the Government may, by order, amend Schedules I, II, II.1, II.2, III, III.1 and VI and any such order may have effect 12 months or less before it is made;

WHEREAS the Regulation under the Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan made by Order in Council 1845-88 dated 14 December 1988 and its subsequent amendments, determines, in accordance with subparagraph 25 of the first paragraph of section 134 of that Act, the conditions which permit a body, according to the category determined by regulation, to be designated in Schedule I or II.1;

WHEREAS the Fédération québécoise des centres de réadaptation pour personnes présentant une déficience intellectuelle and the Fédération québécoise des centres de réadaptation pour les personnes alcooliques et autres toxicomanes meet those requirements;

IT IS ORDERED, therefore, upon the recommendation of the Minister for Administration and the Public Service and Chairman of the Conseil du trésor:

THAT the amendments to Schedule I to the Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan (R.S.Q., c. R-10), attached hereto, be made.

MICHEL NOËL DE TILLY, Clerk of the Conseil exécutif

## Amendments to Schedule I to the Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan<sup>\*</sup>

An Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan (R.S.Q., c. R-10, s. 220, 1st par.)

**1.** Schedule I to the Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan (R.S.Q., c. R-10) is amended

(1) by inserting the following in alphabetical order in paragraph 1:

"the Fédération québécoise des centres de réadaptation pour personnes présentant une déficience intellectuelle"; and

(2) by inserting the following in alphabetical order in paragraph 1:

"the Fédération québécoise des centres de réadaptation pour les personnes alcooliques et autres toxicomanes".

**2.** This Order in Council comes into force on the day it is made by the Government but has effect, in the case of the Fédération québécoise des centres de réadaptation pour personnes présentant une déficience intellectuelle, from 1 April 1998 and in the case of the Fédération québécoise des centres de réadaptation pour les personnes alcooliques et autres toxicomanes, from 6 April 1998.

#### 2762

\* Schedule I to the Act respecting the Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan (R.S.Q., c. R-10) was amended, since the last updating of the Revised Statutes of Québec to 1 March 1997, by Orders in Council 629-97 dated 13 May 1997 (1997, G.O. 2, 2243), 788-97 dated 18 June 1997 (1997, G.O. 2, 3338), 1105-97 dated 28 August 1997 (1997, G.O. 2, 4561), 1652-97 dated 17 December 1997 (1997, G.O. 2, 6293), 296-98 dated 18 March 1998 (1998, G.O. 2, 1425), 297-98 dated 18 March 1998 (1998, G.O. 2, 1426), 730-98 dated 3 June 1998 (1998, G.O. 2, 2207), 764-98 dated 10 June 1998 (1998, G.O. 2, 2289), 1155-98 dated 9 September 1998 (1998, G.O. 2, 3889) and 1524-98 dated 16 December 1998 (1998, G.O. 2, 4801) and by sections 35 of Chapter 26 of the Statutes of 1997, 33 of Chapter 27 of the Statutes of 1997, 13 of Chapter 36 of the Statutes of 1997, 631 of Chapter 43 of the Statutes of 1997, 57 of Chapter 50 of the Statutes of 1997, 121 of Chapter 63 of the Statutes of 1997, 52 of Chapter 79 of the Statutes of 1997, 37 of Chapter 83 of the Statutes of 1997, 61 of Chapter 17 of the Statutes of 1998, 53 of Chapter 44 of the Statutes of 1998 and 48 of Chapter 42 of the Statutes of 1998.

Gouvernement du Québec

## O.C. 313-99, 31 March 1999

An Act respecting municipal taxation (R.S.Q., c. F-2.1)

#### Compensations in lieu of taxes — Amendments

Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting compensations in lieu of taxes

WHEREAS under paragraph 2 of section 262 of the Act respecting municipal taxation (R.S.Q., c. F-2.1), amended by section 292 of Chapter 43 of the Statutes of 1997, the Government may make regulations to

(*a*) increase the percentage provided for in the second, third or fourth paragraph of section 255;

(*b*) list the types of immovables or of places of business comprised in a category contemplated in section 255, or excluded therefrom;

(c) prescribe the rules for computing the aggregate taxation rate of a local municipality, for the purposes of section 255, which may differ from those contemplated in section 234;

(d) designate the person who pays the amount contemplated in section 210, 254 or 257 and prescribe the other terms and conditions of that payment; designate different persons or prescribe different terms and conditions according to such classes of immovables or places of business as it may determine;

(*e*) prescribe rules of payment or refunding applicable to the amount contemplated in section 210, 254 or 257 in the case of changes made to the roll;

(f) prescribe the payment and mode of computation of interest in cases of late payment of the amount referred to in section 210, 254 or 257, including the payment or refund contemplated in subparagraph e, or in cases where a decision of the Administrative Tribunal of Québec or a court judgment gives rise to a payment or a refund contemplated in the said subparagraph;

(g) prescribe the time limit within which the demand for payment contemplated in section 210, 254.1 or 257 must be made;

WHEREAS the Government made the Regulation respecting compensations in lieu of taxes by Order in Council 1086-92 dated 22 July 1992; WHEREAS it is expedient to amend the Regulation;

WHEREAS in accordance with sections 10 and 11 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1), the draft Regulation entitled Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting compensations in lieu of taxes was published in the *Gazette officielle du Québec* of 23 December 1998 on pages 4788 and 4789, with a notice that it could be made by the Government upon the expiry of 45 days from that publication and that any interested person could send his comments in writing to the Minister of Municipal Affairs before the expiry of the 45-day period;

WHEREAS no comments on the draft Regulation were received before the expiry of the 45-day period;

WHEREAS it is expedient to make the Regulation without amendment;

IT IS ORDERED, therefore, upon the recommendation of the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Greater Montréal:

THAT the Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting compensations in lieu of taxes, attached to this Order in Council, be made.

MICHEL NOËL DE TILLY, Clerk of the Conseil exécutif

# Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting compensations in lieu of taxes<sup>\*</sup>

An Act respecting municipal taxation (R.S.Q., c. F-2.1, s. 262, par. 2; 1997, c. 43, s. 292)

**1.** The Regulation respecting compensations in lieu of taxes is amended by adding ", with the exception of structures intended to lodge persons, shelter animals or store things and their bed" after the word "network" in subparagraph 1 of the first paragraph of section 1.

**2.** Section 9 is amended

(1) by substituting the following for the first and second paragraphs:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>\*</sup> The Regulation respecting compensations in lieu of taxes, made by Order in Council 1086-92 dated 22 July 1992 (1992, *G.O.* 2, 4058), was last amended by the Regulation made by Order in Council 82-98 dated 28 January 1998 (1998, *G.O.* 2, 1105). For previous amendments, refer to the *Tableau des modifications et Index sommaire*, Éditeur officiel du Québec, 1998, updated to 1 September 1998.

**"9.** The Minister of Municipal Affairs shall pay to the municipality 90 % of the amount for which it has applied based on its provisional aggregate taxation rate established in accordance with section 10, for the fiscal period for which the compensation is payable.

The payment shall be made

(1) where the amount of the demand is less than \$3000, not later than 31 May of the fiscal period or, where the demand is received after 2 March of that fiscal period, within 90 days following its receipt;

(2) where the amount of the demand is equal to or greater than \$3000, not later than 10 June of the fiscal period or, where the demand is received after 2 March of that fiscal period, within 100 days following its receipt.";

(2) by substituting the words "the second paragraph" for the words "the first and second paragraphs" in the third paragraph.

**3.** Section 11 is revoked.

**4.** Section 12 is amended by striking out "and, where applicable, section 11" in the second paragraph.

**5.** Section 14 is amended

(1) by substituting the following for the first and second paragraphs:

**"14.** The competent person under section 6 shall pay to the municipality the amount for which it has applied.

The payment shall be made

(1) where the amount of the demand is less than \$3000, not later than 31 May of the fiscal period for which the compensation is payable or, where the demand is received after 2 March of that fiscal period, within 90 days following its receipt;

(2) where the amount of the demand is equal to or greater than \$3000, not later than 10 June of the fiscal period for which the compensation is payable or, where the demand is received after 2 March of that fiscal period, within 100 days following its receipt.";

(2) by substituting the words "the second paragraph" for the words "the first and second paragraphs" in the third paragraph.

**7.** Section 22 is amended by substituting "in section 12" for "in sections 12 and 15" in subparagraph 3 of the second paragraph.

**8.** Sections 1 to 7 have effect for the purposes of the computation and payment of an amount payable for any fiscal period as of the 1999 fiscal period.

**9.** This Regulation comes into force on the fifteenth day following the date of its publication in the *Gazette officielle du Québec*.

2771

Gouvernement du Québec

## O.C. 383-99, 31 March 1999

Highway Safety Code (R.S.Q., c C-24.2)

#### Special Road Train Operating Permits — Amendments

Regulation to amend the Special Road Train Operating Permits Regulation

WHEREAS paragraph 35 of section 621 of the Highway Safety Code (R.S.Q., c. C-24.2) amended by paragraph 12 of section 144 of Chapter 40 of the Statutes of 1998 provides that the Government may, by regulation, determine, among the provisions of a regulation concerning the conditions attached to a special permit for a certain class of road vehicles or combinations of road vehicles, those the violation of which constitutes an offence and indicate, for each offence, the minimum and the maximum amounts of the fine to which the offender is liable;

WHEREAS under section 178 of the Act respecting owners and operators of heavy vehicles (1998, c. 40), the first regulations made under the new provisions of the Highway Safety Code enacted by that Act are not subject to the publication requirement in section 8 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1);

WHEREAS it is expedient to make the Regulation to amend the Special Road Train Operating Permits Regulation;

IT IS ORDERED, therefore, upon the recommendation of the Minister of Transport:

**6.** Section 15 is revoked.

THAT the Regulation to amend the Special Road Train Operating Permits Regulation, attached to this Order in Council, be made.

MICHEL NOËL DE TILLY, Clerk of the Conseil exécutif

## **Regulation to amend the Special Road Train Operating Permits Regulation**<sup>\*</sup>

Highway Safety Code

(R.S.Q., c. C-24.2, s. 621, pars. 20 and 35; 1998, c. 40, s. 144, par. 12)

**1.** Section 7 of the Special Road Train Operating Permits Regulation is amended by substituting the following for paragraphs 4 and 5:

"(4) verify that the driver of a road train complies with the provisions of paragraphs 3 and 4 of section 9 at all times;

(4.1) verify that the driver complies with the provisions of paragraph 6 of section 9 at all times;

(5) verify that the road train complies with the characteristics referred to in paragraph 4 of section 3 at all times;

(5.1) verify that the road train complies with the characteristics referred to in section 2 and in paragraphs 2, 3 and 6 to 8 of section 3 at all times;

(5.2) verify that the road train complies with the characteristics referred to in paragraph 5 of section 3 at all times.".

**2.** Paragraph 6 of section 9 is amended by substituting "674-88 dated 4 May 1988" for "29-86 dated 22 January 1986".

**3.** The following is inserted after section 9:

**"9.1.** The holder of a special road train operating permit who contravenes paragraph 1 of section 3 is guilty of an offence punishable by a fine referred to in paragraph 3 of the third paragraph of section 513 of the Highway Safety Code replaced by section 112 of Chapter 40 of the Statutes of 1998.

**9.2.** The holder of a special road train operating permit is guilty of an offence punishable by a fine of

(1) \$175 to \$525 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraph 5 of section 7;

(2) \$350 to \$1050 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraph 4 or 5.1 of section 7;

(3) \$700 to \$2100 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraph 4.1 or 5.2 of section 7.

**9.3.** The driver of a road train is guilty of an offence punishable by a fine of

(1) \$175 to \$525 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraphs 1 to 5 of section 9;

(2) \$350 to \$1050 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraph 6 of section 9.".

**4.** Schedule I to the Regulation is amended by substituting the word "holder" for the word "transporter" in the space reserved for the signature of the applicant.

**5.** This Regulation comes into force on 29 April 1999.

2770

Gouvernement du Québec

## O.C. 384-99, 31 March 1999

Highway Safety Code (R.S.Q., c. C-24.2)

#### Special permits — Amendments

Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting special permits

WHEREAS paragraph 35 of section 621 of the Highway Safety Code (R.S.Q., c. C-24.2) amended by paragraph 12 of section 144 of Chapter 40 of the Statutes of 1998 provides that the Government may, by regulation, determine, among the provisions of a regulation concerning the conditions attached to a special permit for a certain class of road vehicles or combinations of road vehicles, those the violation of which constitutes an offence and indicate, for each offence, the minimum and the maximum amounts of the fine to which the offender is liable;

WHEREAS under section 178 of the Act respecting owners and operators of heavy vehicles (1998, c. 40),

<sup>\*</sup> The Special Road Train Operating Permits Regulation, was made by Order in Council 1874-86 dated 10 December 1986 (1987, *G.O.* 2, 16) and has not been amended since that date.

the first regulations made under the new provisions of the Highway Safety Code enacted by that Act are not subject to the publication requirement in section 8 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1);

WHEREAS it is expedient to make the Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting special permits;

IT IS ORDERED, therefore, upon the recommendation of the Minister of Transport:

THAT the Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting special permits, attached to this Order in Council, be made.

MICHEL NOËL DE TILLY, Clerk of the Conseil exécutif

## **Regulation to amend the Regulation** respecting special permits<sup>\*</sup>

Highway Safety Code (R.S.Q., c. C-24.2, s. 621, pars. 20 and 35; 1998, c. 40, s. 144, par. 12)

**1.** Section 5 of the Regulation respecting special permits is amended

(1) by substituting the following for paragraph 3:

"(3) comply with the provisions of subparagraph 2 of the first paragraph of section 15;

(3.1) comply with the provisions of section 7, section 9, the second and third paragraphs of section 13 and subparagraphs 1 and 3 of the first paragraph of section 15;

(3.2) comply with the provisions of sections 8, 10 to 12, the first paragraph of section 13, section 14.1 and the second, third and fourth paragraphs of section 15;";

(2) by substituting the following for paragraph 9:

"(9) comply with the load limits and dimensions prescribed in the permit, including those applicable to the class of the permit;

(9.1) comply with the additional conditions prescribed in Schedule 3 and those specified by the permit;". **2.** The following is substituted for section 14:

**"14.** The driver of a vehicle for which a special permit has been issued shall comply with

(1) the provisions of subparagraph 5 of the first paragraph of section 5;

(2) the provisions of subparagraph 12 of the first paragraph of section 5, section 7, section 9 and the second and third paragraphs of section 13;

(3) the provisions of subparagraphs 2, 4, 8 and 9.1 of the first paragraph of section 5, sections 8, 10 to 12 and of the first paragraph of section 13.".

**3.** The following is substituted for section 19:

**"19.** The holder of a special permit who contravenes any of the provisions of subparagraph 6, 7 or 9 of section 5 is guilty of an offence punishable by a fine referred to in the third paragraph of section 513 of the Highway Safety Code replaced by section 112 of Chapter 40 of the Statutes of 1998.

**19.1.** The holder of a special permit is guilty of an offence punishable by a fine of

(1) \$175 to \$525 where he contravenes any of the provisions of subparagraphs 1, 3 or 5 of the first paragraph of section 5;

(2) \$350 to \$1050 where he contravenes any of the provisions of subparagraphs 3.1, 10 to 13 of the first paragraph of section 5;

(3) \$700 to \$2100 where he contravenes any of the provisions of subparagraphs 2, 3.2, 4, 8 or 9.1 of section 5.

**19.2.** The driver is guilty of an offence punishable by a fine of

(1) \$90 to \$270 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraph 1 of section 14 or subparagraph 2 of the first paragraph of section 15;

(2) \$175 to \$525 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraph 2 of section 14 or subparagraphs 1 or 3 of the first paragraph of section 15;

(3) \$350 to \$1050 where he contravenes any of the provisions of paragraph 3 of section 14, section 14.1 or the second, third or fourth paragraph of section 15.".

**4.** This Regulation comes into force on 29 April 1999.

2769

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>\*</sup> The Regulation respecting special permits made by Order in Council 1444-90 dated 3 October 1990 (1990, *G.O.* 2, 2567) was amended by Order in Council 1605-93 dated 17 November 1993 (1993, *G.O.* 2, 6275).

#### **M.O.**, 1999

Order of the Minister of Transport dated 31 March 1999 concerning exemptions from stopping before crossing certain level crossings

Highway Safety Code (R.S.Q., c. C-24.2)

THE MINISTER OF TRANSPORT,

CONSIDERING section 414 of the Highway Safety Code (R.S.Q., c. C-24.2), which allows him to designate, by an order published in the *Gazette officielle du Québec*, certain level crossings where the driver of a road vehicle referred to in section 413 is exempt from the obligations under the said section;

CONSIDERING the designation, by a Minister's Order dated 13 December 1993, of certain level crossings where the danger of accidents was considerably reduced due to the presence of safety devices and the infrequency of rail traffic or a crossing procedure requiring that trains be stopped systematically;

CONSIDERING that it is expedient to update those exemptions since one of those crossings has been abandoned and another one has seen an increase in rail traffic which increases the risk of accident;

Designates, therefore, the following level crossings where the driver of a road vehicle referred to in section 413 of the Highway Safety Code is exempt from the obligations under the said section:

(1) the level crossing on Autoroute 20, on the territory of the Municipalité de Saint-Hyacinthe (54045);

(2) the level crossing located on Route 170, on the territory of the Municipalité de La Baie (94040); and

(3) the level crossing located on Route 132, on the territory of the Municipalité de Rimouski-Est (10040);

Substitutes this Order, from the date of its publication, for the Order dated 13 December 1993 concerning exemptions from stopping before crossing certain level crossings.

Given at Québec, 31 March 1999

GUY CHEVRETTE, Minister of Transport

2767

## **Draft Regulations**

## **Draft Regulation**

Health Insurance Act (R.S.Q., c. A-29)

## **Devices which compensate for a physical deficiency** — Amendments

Notice is hereby given that, in accordance with sections 10 and 11 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1), that the draft Regulation, the text of which appears below, may be made by the Government upon the expiry of 45 days following this publication.

The purpose of the draft Regulation is to amend the Regulation respecting devices which compensate for a physical deficiency and are insured under the Health Insurance Act, made by Order in Council 612-94 dated 27 April 1994, to enable the persons responsible for allocating the devices to take into account the improvements in the field and to better serve the particular needs of some of their clientele in addition to adapting their role to the requirements of ambulatory care.

Therefore, the draft Regulation proposes to revise the list of equipment so that it reflects the technological advances and improvements in materials used to make the devices.

It also proposes to revise the prices of the devices to include the increase in cost of the materials and the fluctuations in Canadian currency in relation to the American and German currencies. It aims at rationalizing costs in keeping with the budget envelope by promoting new technologies that generate savings. While maintaining the present coverage of the program, it will focus more on ambulatory care and on the particular needs of young children and teenagers.

Study of the matter shows that the list of equipment referred to in the program has been completely revised in view of the progress made in the field in recent years, of the particular needs of some of the clientele and of the need to steer the program toward ambulatory care; the prices have also been updated in keeping with market developments.

Further information on the draft Regulation may be obtained by contacting Mr. Jean-L. Lefebvre at (418) 682-5172 or by fax at (418) 643-7312, at the Régie de l'assurance-maladie du Québec, 1125, chemin SaintLouis, 8° étage, Sillery (Québec) G1S 1E7, before the expiry of the 45-day period.

Any interested person having comments to make on the matter is asked to send them in writing, before the expiry of the 45-day period, to the Minister of Health and Social Services, 1075, chemin Sainte-Foy, 15<sup>e</sup> étage, Québec (Québec) G1S 2M1.

PAULINE MAROIS, Minister of State for Health and Social Services and Minister of Health and Social Services

## Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting devices which compensate for a physical deficiency and are insured under the Health Insurance Act<sup>\*</sup>

Health Insurance Act (R.S.Q., c. A-29, s. 3, 5th par. and s. 69. 1st par., subpar. h)

**1.** The Regulation respecting devices which compensate for a physical deficiency and are insured under the Health Insurance Act is amended by inserting the word "other" before the word "insured" in the second paragraph of section 4.

**2.** Section 17 is amended

(1) by striking out the word "nylon" wherever it appears; and

(2) by adding the following paragraphs at the end:

"For the same beneficiary, three (3) suspension linings with or without nylon on the inside per 12-month period are insured for each limb fitted with one or more prostheses.

<sup>\*</sup> The Regulation respecting devices which compensate for a physical deficiency and are insured under the Halth Insurance Act, made by Order in Council 612-94 dated 27 April 1994 (1994, *G.O.* 2, 1589) (Erratum dated 6 July 1994), was last amended by the Regulation made by Order in Council 1334-98 dated 14 October 1998 (1998, *G.O.* 2, 4291). For previous amendments, refer to the *Tableau des modifications et Index sommaire*, Éditeur officiel du Québec, 1998, updated to 1 September 1998.

In addition, for the same beneficiary, four (4) latex or elastic suspension linings per 12-month period are insured for each limb fitted with one or more prostheses.

Each suspension lining must be, within the meaning of section 3, a component of a prosthesis fitted on a limb.".

**3.** Section 23 is amended by adding the following paragraph at the end:

"The Régie does not assume the cost of a component for which the reference "N/A" appears in place of the component price when the device is purchased or replaced."

**4.** Section 27 is amended

(1) by inserting the following after the first paragraph:

"Notwithstanding the condition set forth in subparagraph 1 of the first paragraph, the Régie only assumes the cost of purchase or replacement of an insured device that appears on one of the lists in Part I of Chapter V where the reference "S.C." appears in place of the purchase or replacement price, provided that a person from a centre referred to in subparagraph 2 of the first paragraph or a person designated by such a centre attests in writing that the device will be furnished in the course of a rehabilitation process at the centre." and (2) by adding ", or in the first and second paragraphs, as the case may be" at the end of the second paragraph.

**5.** The following is added after section 34:

**"34.1** The Régie assumes the cost of purchase or replacement of a device referred to in the second paragraph of section 27 provided that the written attestation prescribed therein is sent to the Régie, jointly prepared and signed by each of the members of a multidisciplinary rehabilitation team that includes at least a physiotherapist or occupational therapist, designated by the centre referred to in the second paragraph of section 27, an orthotist, a prosthesist or a orthotics-prosthetics technician from the centre and the physician designated by the centre as a member of the team.

When replacing such a device, where the beneficiary's condition has not changed, the attestation may establish that the insured device is not furnished in the course of a rehabilitation process since rehabilitation is not required.".

**6.** This Regulation is amended by substituting Chapter V of Title I in Schedule I to this Regulation for Chapter V of Title I.

**7.** This Regulation comes into force on the fifteenth day following the date of its publication in the *Gazette officielle du Québec*.

## SCHEDULE I

CHAPTER V LISTS

## PART I

PROSTHESES, ORTHOSES, AMBULATION AIDS OR STANDING AIDS DETERMINED TO BE INSURED SERVICES WHERE FURNISHED BY AN INSTITUTION OR A LABORATORY

## DIVISION I LOWER-LIMB PROSTHESES

§1. Foot prostheses

#### DEVICE

Prosthesis for total amputation of second, third or fourth toe, of two or all of those toes, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Price

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Foam filler for anterior part of foot, on rigid or pliable sole Compensatory sole for limb not fitted with prosthesis

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months** 

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

## None

## AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

## DEVICE

Prosthesis for total amputation of first toe, with or without amputation of second, third, fourth or fifth toe, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Filler for anterior part of foot, on rigid or pliable sole Longitudinal arch support Correction Compensatory sole for limb not fitted with prosthesis

## **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months**

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

## AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

## DEVICE

Prosthesis for transmetatarsal or transcalcaneal amputation with ankle support, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary 483

Price

\$311.00

Price

\$677.00

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Filler for anterior or posterior part of foot Laminated or molded plastic or molded leather socket Leg support where necessary

## **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|---|--|--|--------------------------|
|   | device                                 | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Ankle joints:   |  |  |                          |
| Gilette joints<br>pair<br>single<br>Oklahoma joints<br>pair<br>single<br>Wafer joints<br>pair<br>single | \$87.00<br>82.00<br>95.00              | \$48.00<br>45.00<br>52.00                    |                          |
| Tamarak joints<br>pair<br>single<br>Gaffney joints<br>pair<br>single                                    | 91.00<br>100.00                        | 50.00<br>54.00                               |                          |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon sheath<br>AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   | (See Div. III)* (Se<br>13.55           | e Div. I<br>15.54                            | II)*                     |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |  |                          |

\* (See Div. III): The reader is referred to Division III of this Part for the prices of these supplements.

## §2. Ankle prostheses

## DEVICE

Temporary Symes prosthesis

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Laminated or molded plastic adjustable socket, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Temporary foot (loan)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | acement of component o<br>rice of supplement |                          |
|---|--|--|--------------------------|
|   | device   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Laminated or molded plastic<br>adjustable socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary  | N.C.   | N/A  |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Supracondylar strap<br>Foam flexible double<br>comfort socket   | \$80.00<br>73.00                                 | \$107.00<br>142.00                           | 3<br>3                   |
| Thigh lacer without joint   | 139.00   | 151.00                                       | 3                        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00                               |                          |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child  | 158.00   | 158.00                                       |                          |

\$708.00

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con    | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement  |
|--|--|-----------|-----------------------------------|
|  |  | Price     | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child                           | 141.00   | 141.00    |                                   |
| Stump sock   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. | III)                              |
| Nylon sheath, 45 to 55 cm  | 13.55  | 15.54     |                                   |
| Nylon sheath, 80 to 90 cm  | 17.64  | 19.64     |                                   |
| Nylon sheath with elastic band,  | 27.93  | 30.03     |                                   |
| 55 to 65 cm  |  |           |                                   |
| Nylon sheath with elastic band,  | 27.93  | 30.03     |                                   |
| 75 to 85 cm  |  |           |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |           |                                   |
| None   |  |           |                                   |
|  |  |           | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |           |                                   |
| Symes prosthesis   |  |           | \$1 090.00                        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |           |                                   |
| Laminated plastic socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary, with or<br>without medial or posterior window<br>S.A.C.H. foot |  |           |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |           |                                   |
|  |  |           |                                   |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |           |                                   |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of           | of con    | lacement<br>1ponent or<br>plement |
|  | device   | Price     | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |

## BASIC COMPONENT(S)

| S.A.C.H foot                | N.C. | \$152.00 |   |
|-----------------------------|------|----------|---|
| Laminated plastic socket    | N.C. | 874.00   | 3 |
| made from plaster imprint   |      |          |   |
| of beneficiary, with or     |      |          |   |
| without medial or posterior |      |          |   |
| window                      |      |          |   |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com                               | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price                                | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                                      |                                 |
| Trial socket<br>Supracondylar strap<br>Symes foot<br>Dynamic response foot,<br>(Seattle)  | 95.00<br>80.00<br>37.00<br>282.00                | N/A<br>107.00<br>188.00<br>433.00    | 3                               |
| Dynamic response foot,<br>(Seattle light)   | 369.00   | 521.00                               |                                 |
| Step light foot<br>Dynamic response foot,<br>(USMC)   | 229.00<br>154.00                                 | 381.00<br>306.00                     |                                 |
| Dynamic foot for child,<br>(1K10)<br>Silicone laminated   | 67.00<br>188.00                                  | 218.00<br>324.00                     | 3                               |
| extensible double socket<br>Foam flexible double  | 73.00  | 142.00                               | 3                               |
| comfort socket<br>Thigh lacer with reinforced<br>uniaxial ball-bearing joints   | 500.00   | 512.00                               | 3                               |
| Thigh lacer with light<br>uniaxial ball-bearing joints<br>Thigh lacer with polycentric  | 418.00<br>576.00                                 | 430.00<br>588.00                     | 3<br>3                          |
| joints AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                                      |                                 |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon sheath, 45 to 55 cm<br>Nylon sheath, 80 to 90 cm<br>Nylon sheath with elastic band,<br>55 to 65 cm  | (See Div. III)<br>13.55<br>17.64<br>27.93        | (See Div.<br>15.54<br>19.64<br>30.03 | III)                            |
| Nylon sheath with elastic band,<br>75 to 85 cm  | 27.93  | 30.03                                |                                 |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)   | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00                       |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>( $62.5 \text{ cm}$ ) to $31 \text{ in.} (79 \text{ cm})$ ,<br>from 30 in. ( $77 \text{ cm}$ ) to $36 \text{ in.}$<br>( $89 \text{ cm}$ ) or from $35 \text{ in.} (87 \text{ cm})$<br>to $41 \text{ in.} (102.5 \text{ cm})$ | 118.00   | 118.00                               |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child  | 158.00   | 158.00                               |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>nponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------|-----------------------------------|
|  | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child                         | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |        |                                   |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |        |                                   |
| <b>§3.</b> Tibial prostheses   |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |        |                                   |
| Post-operative tibial prosthesis necessitating obligatory renewal of plaster mold  |  |        | \$545.00                          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
| Lycra compressible sock (4)<br>Plaster socket (2)<br>Means of suspension (belt)<br>S.A.C.H. foot (loan)<br>Adjustable pylon (loan) |  |        |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis  |  |        |                                   |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>nponent or<br>plement |
|  | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
| Plaster socket (2)   | N.C.   | N/A    |                                   |

| Plaster socket (2)  | N.C. | N/A |
|---------------------|------|-----|
| Means of suspension | N.C. | N/A |
| (belt)              |      |     |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of | of com          | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|-----------------|---------------------------------|
|  | device                                 | Price           | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                 |                                 |
| Lycra compressible sock<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)   | N.C.<br>49.00                          | \$0.00<br>49.00 |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00                                 | 118.00          |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00                                 | 158.00          |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00                                 | 141.00          |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                 |                                 |
| None   |  |                 |                                 |
|  |  |                 | Price                           |
| DEVICE   |  |                 |                                 |
| Pneumatic post-operative tibial prosthesis, non-articulated  |  |                 | \$444.00                        |

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Inflatable bag or case Distal pad Suspension straps Mobility frame (loan) Electric pump (loan)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com      | acement<br>ponent or<br>lement |
|--|--|-------------|--------------------------------|
|  |  | Price       | Guarantee<br>(in months)       |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |             |                                |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | \$49.00  | \$49.00     |                                |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00      |                                |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00      |                                |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00      |                                |
| Stump sock<br>AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. I | II)                            |

None

## DEVICE

Pneumatic post-operative tibial prosthesis, articulated

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Inflatable bag or case Thigh lacer system (loan) Knee joint system (loan) Universal socket (loan) Modular system (loan) S.A.C.H. foot (loan) Air pump (loan)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

Price

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com      | acement<br>ponent or<br>lement |
|--|--|-------------|--------------------------------|
|  |  | Price       | Guarantee<br>(in months)       |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |             |                                |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | \$49.00  | \$49.00     |                                |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00      |                                |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00      |                                |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00      |                                |
| Stump sock<br>AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. I | II)                            |

|                                      | Price    |
|--------------------------------------|----------|
| DEVICE                               |          |
| Temporary tibial prosthesis          | \$701.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S) |          |

Laminated or molded plastic adjustable socket, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Temporary foot (loan) Endoskeletal system (loan)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

None

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com             | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------------------|---------------------------------|
|  | device   | Price              | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                    |                                 |
| Laminated or molded plastic<br>adjustable socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary   | N.C.   | N/A                |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                    |                                 |
| Thigh lacer without joint  | \$139.00   | \$151.00           | 3                               |
| Supracondylar strap<br>Foam flexible double<br>comfort socket  | 80.00<br>77.00                                   | 107.00<br>133.00   | 3<br>3                          |
| Tibial belt<br>with "Y" strap  | 75.00  | 120.00             | 3                               |
| Suspension lining covered<br>with nylon on inside  | 57.00  | 63.00              |                                 |
| Suspension lining not covered with nylon on inside   | 29.00  | 35.00              |                                 |
| Latex suspension lining<br>Elastic suspension lining   | 31.00<br>27.00                                   | 37.00<br>33.00     |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                    |                                 |
| Stump sock<br>Standard Nylon tibial sheath<br>15 to 45 cm  | (See Div. III)<br>13.55                          | (See Div.<br>15.54 | III)                            |
| Nylon tibial sheath<br>50 to 80 cm   | 13.55  | 15.54              |                                 |
| Nylon sheath with<br>tibial elastic band 25 to 55 cm   | 23.00  | 25.00              |                                 |
| Nylon sheath with<br>tibial elastic band 50 to 75 cm   | 21.74  | 23.73              |                                 |
| Nylon suction sheath,<br>all sizes   | 21.74  | 23.73              |                                 |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00              |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm)<br>Crutches with forearm support, | 118.00   | 118.00<br>158.00   |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 138.00   | 138.00             |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------|---------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child<br>Stump sock | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |        |                                 |
| None   |  |        |                                 |
|  |  |        | Price                           |
| DEVICE   |  |        |                                 |
| Exoskeletal tibial prosthesis  |  |        | \$1 144.00                      |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                 |
| Laminated plastic socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>S.A.C.H. foot and ankle block<br>Medial wedge    |  |        |                                 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |        |                                 |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                 |

|  | replacement of comp  |                           | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|----------------------|---------------------------|----------------------------------|
|  | ucvice               | Price                     | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |                      |                           |                                  |
| Ankle block<br>S.A.C.H. foot<br>Laminated plastic tibial<br>socket made from plaster | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C. | N/A<br>\$152.00<br>921.00 | 3                                |
| print of beneficiary<br>Medial wedge   | N.C.                 |                           |                                  |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------|---------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)                            |  |                |                                 |
| Trial socket                                     | 88.00  | N/A            |                                 |
| Foam or molded plastic flexible double           | 77.00  | 133.00         | 3                               |
| comfort socket                                   |  |                |                                 |
| Foam or molded plastic                           | 92.00  | 148.00         | 3                               |
| flexible double                                  |  |                |                                 |
| comfort socket                                   |  |                |                                 |
| with medial wedge                                |  |                |                                 |
| Tibial belt                                      | 75.00  | 120.00         | 3                               |
| with "Y" strap                                   |  |                |                                 |
| Supracondylar strap                              | 80.00  | 107.00         | 3                               |
| Articulated foot                                 | 115.00   | 267.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                            | 272.00   | 424.00         |                                 |
| (Quantum, spring and                             |  |                |                                 |
| prosthetic cover included)                       | 260.00   | 521.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                            | 369.00   | 521.00         |                                 |
| (Seattle light)<br>Dynamic response foot         | 86.00  | 238.00         |                                 |
| (Sten foot)                                      | 80.00  | 258.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                            | 160.00   | 311.00         |                                 |
| (Safe foot)                                      | 100.00   | 511.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                            | 124.00   | 276.00         |                                 |
| (1D10 or 1D11)                                   | 121.00   | 270.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                            | 282.00   | 433.00         |                                 |
| (Seattle)  | 202100   |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                            | 240.00   | 392.00         |                                 |
| (Čarbon Copy II)                                 |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                            | 67.00  | 218.00         |                                 |
| for child (1K10)                                 |  |                |                                 |
| Adapter for Quantum foot                         | 132.00   | 132.00         |                                 |
| Femoral device with                              | 537.00   | 566.00         | 3                               |
| plastic ischiatic support                        |  |                |                                 |
| Thigh lacer with reinforced                      | 500.00   | 512.00         | 3                               |
| uniaxial ball-bearing joints                     | 110.00   | 120.00         | 2                               |
| Thigh lacer with light                           | 418.00   | 430.00         | 3                               |
| uniaxial ball-bearing joints                     | 576.00   | <b>2</b> 00 00 | 2                               |
| Thigh lacer with                                 | 576.00   | 588.00         | 3                               |
| polycentric joints<br>Replacement of thigh lacer | N/A  | 291.00         | 3                               |
| with recovery and reinstallation                 | 1N/A   | 291.00         | 3                               |
| of existing joints                               |  |                |                                 |
| Silicone gel double socket                       | 205.00   | 366.00         | 3                               |
| Silicone gel double socket                       | 220.00   | 381.00         | 3                               |
| with medial wedge                                |  | 201.00         | U U                             |
| Suction valve and seat                           | 107.00   | 154.00         |                                 |
| Suction valve                                    | N/A  | 91.00          |                                 |
|  |  |                |                                 |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |
|---|--|--|
|   | dente  | Price Guarante<br>(in month                  |
| Foam flexible   | 61.00  | 85.00  |
| prosthetic cover<br>Suspension lining                           | 57.00  | 63.00  |
| covered with nylon on inside                                    |  |  |
| Suspension lining<br>not covered with nylon on inside           | 29.00  | 35.00  |
| Latex suspension lining   | 31.00  | 37.00  |
| Elastic suspension lining                                       | 27.00  | 33.00  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Nylon tibial sheath   | 13.55  | 15.54  |
| 15 to 45 cm   | 12.55  | 1554   |
| Nylon tibial sheath<br>55 to 80 cm                              | 13.55  | 15.54  |
| Nylon sheath with   | 23.00  | 25.00  |
| tibial elastic band 25 to 55 cm                                 |  |  |
| Nylon sheath with   | 21.74  | 23.73  |
| tibial elastic band 50 to 75 cm                                 | 21.74  | 23.73  |
| Nylon suction sheath,<br>all sizes                              | 21.74  | 23.15  |
| Prosthetic sock, per pair                                       | 20.30  | 26.20  |
| Cane  | 21.00  | 21.00  |
| Crutches with axillary  | 49.00  | 49.00  |
| support, height-adjustable                                      |  |  |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,                   | 118.00   | 118.00                                       |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.                                   | 118.00   | 110.00                                       |
| (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),                                    |  |  |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.                                   |  |  |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)                                  |  |  |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)  | 159.00   | 150.00                                       |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in. | 158.00   | 158.00                                       |
| (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),                                    |  |  |
| for child   |  |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                  | 141.00   | 141.00                                       |
| height-adjustable from 12 in.                                   |  |  |
| (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),                                      |  |  |
| for child<br>Stump cock   |  | (See Div. III)                               |
| Stump sock  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. III)                               |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |

|  | Price      |
|--|------------|
| Socket lining: leather, plastic  | \$120.00   |
| or other material<br>Lengthening of a tibial prosthesis  | 227.00     |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |            |
|  | Price      |
| DEVICE   |            |
| Endoskeletal tibial prosthesis   | \$1 289.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |            |
| Laminated plastic tibial socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>Medial wedge<br>S.A.C.H. foot and adapter<br>Complete endoskeletal system (modular components,<br>prosthetic cover and prosthetic socks (2) |            |

#### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device     | of con                                     | acement<br>ponent or<br>lement |  |
|--|--|--|--------------------------------|--|
|  | uevice   | Price                                      | Guarantee<br>(in months)       |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                                |  |
| S.A.C.H. foot<br>Adapter<br>Laminated plastic tibial socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary<br>Complete endoskeletal system<br>Prosthetic cover<br>Medial wedge | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C. | \$152.00<br>N/A<br>921.00<br>N/A<br>252.00 | 3                              |  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                                |  |
| Trial socket<br>Foam or molded plastic<br>flexible double<br>comfort socket  | 88.00<br>77.00                                       | N/A<br>133.00                              | 3                              |  |

|                              | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com         | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|------------------------------|--|----------------|---------------------------------|
|                              | uevice   | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Foam or molded plastic       | 92.00  | 148.00         | 3                               |
| flexible double              |  |                |                                 |
| comfort socket               |  |                |                                 |
| with medial wedge            |  |                |                                 |
| Tibial belt                  | 75.00  | 120.00         | 3                               |
| with "Y" strap               |  |                |                                 |
| Supracondylar strap          | 80.00  | 107.00         | 3                               |
| Articulated foot             | 115.00   | 307.00         |                                 |
| with adapter                 |  |                |                                 |
| Articulated foot             | N/A  | 199.00         |                                 |
| without adapter              |  | 177100         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 282.00   | 433.00         |                                 |
| (Seattle)                    | 202.00   | 155.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 240.00   | 392.00         |                                 |
| (Carbon Copy II)             | 240.00   | 372.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 67.00  | 218.00         |                                 |
| for child                    | 07.00  | 216.00         |                                 |
|                              |  |                |                                 |
| (1K10)                       | 220.00   | 201.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 239.00   | 301.00         |                                 |
| (Quantum, spring, prosthetic |  |                |                                 |
| cover and foam included)     |  |                |                                 |
| Adapter for Quantum foot     | 35.00  | 35.00          |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 369.00   | 521.00         |                                 |
| (Seattle light)              |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 86.00  | 238.00         |                                 |
| (Sten foot)                  |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 160.00   | 311.00         |                                 |
| (Safe foot)                  |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 124.00   | 276.00         |                                 |
| (1D10 or 1D11)               |  |                |                                 |
| Step Light foot              | 229.00   | 381.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 154.00   | 306.00         |                                 |
| (ÚSMC)                       |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic plus foot (1D25)     | 326.00   | 510.00         |                                 |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator | 346.00   | 538.00         |                                 |
| (1A30)                       |  |                |                                 |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator | 399.00   | 584.00         |                                 |
| (Endolite)                   | 577100   | 201.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot        | 585.00   | 765.00         |                                 |
| with rotator (Endolite)      | 565.00   | 705.00         |                                 |
| Femoral device with          | 537.00   | 566.00         | 3                               |
| plastic ischiatic support    | 557.00   | 500.00         | 5                               |
| Thigh lacer with reinforced  | 500.00   | 512.00         | 3                               |
| uniaxial ball-bearing joints | 500.00   | 512.00         | 3                               |
|                              | 110 00   | 120.00         | 3                               |
| Thigh lacer with light       | 418.00   | 430.00         | 3                               |
| uniaxial ball-bearing joints |  | <b>F</b> 00.00 | 2                               |
| Thigh lacer with             | 576.00   | 588.00         | 3                               |
| polycentric joints           |  |                |                                 |

|                                  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|----------------------------------|--|--------|---------------------------------|
|                                  | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Replacement of thigh lacer       | N/A  | 291.00 | 3                               |
| with recovery and reinstallation |  |        | U                               |
| of existing joints               |  |        |                                 |
| Silicone gel double socket       | 205.00   | 366.00 | 3                               |
| Silicone gel double socket       | 220.00   | 381.00 | 3                               |
| with medial wedge                |  | 001100 | U                               |
| Suction valve and seat           | 107.00   | 154.00 |                                 |
| Suction valve                    | N/A  | 91.00  |                                 |
| Ankle rotator                    | 472.00   | 511.00 |                                 |
| 4R39 or 4R40                     | 472.00   | 511.00 |                                 |
| Ankle rotator 4R85               | 448.00   | 484.00 |                                 |
| Titanium modular system          | 48.00  | N/A    |                                 |
| and carbon fiber pylon           | 48.00  | 11/71  |                                 |
| Silicone gel flexible            | 664.00   | 688.00 | 3                               |
| double socket with               | 004.00   | 000.00 | 5                               |
| distal attachment                |  |        |                                 |
| Silicone gel flexible double     | 693.00   | 716.00 | 3                               |
| socket with attachment and       | 075.00   | /10.00 | 5                               |
| pneumatic cushion                |  |        |                                 |
| Silicone gel flexible double     | N/A  | 476.00 | 3                               |
| socket with distal attachment    |  | 470.00 | 5                               |
| excluding replacement            |  |        |                                 |
| of distal attachment             |  |        |                                 |
| Suspension lining covered        | 57.00  | 63.00  |                                 |
| with nylon on inside             | 57.00  | 05.00  |                                 |
| Suspension lining                | 29.00  | 35.00  |                                 |
| not covered with nylon on inside | 29.00  | 55.00  |                                 |
|                                  | 31.00  | 37.00  |                                 |
| Latex suspension lining          | 27.00  |        |                                 |
| Elastic suspension lining        | 27.00  | 33.00  |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)          |  |        |                                 |
| Nylon tibial sheath              | 13.55  | 15.54  |                                 |
| 15 to 45 cm                      |  |        |                                 |
| Nylon tibial sheath              | 13.55  | 15.54  |                                 |
| 55 to 80 cm                      |  |        |                                 |
| Nylon sheath with                | 23.00  | 25.00  |                                 |
| tibial elastic band 25 to 55 cm  |  |        |                                 |
| Nylon sheath with tibial         | 21.74  | 23.73  |                                 |
| elastic band 50 to 75 cm         |  |        |                                 |
| Nylon sheath,                    | 21.74  | 23.73  |                                 |
| all sizes                        |  |        |                                 |
| Prosthetic socks, per pair       | N.C.   | 26.20  |                                 |
| Cane                             | 21.00  | 21.00  |                                 |
| Crutches with axillary           | 49.00  | 49.00  |                                 |
| support, height-adjustable       |  |        |                                 |
| (all sizes)                      |  |        |                                 |

(all sizes)

498

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con    | lacement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|-----------|-----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price     | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00    |                                   |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child                               | 158.00   | 158.00    |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00    |                                   |
| Stump sock AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. | III)                              |
|  |  |           | Price                             |
| Socket lining: leather, plastic  |  |           | \$120.00                          |
| or other material<br>Lengthening of tibial<br>part of prosthesis (excluding replacement<br>of prosthetic cover and prosthetic sock)                                |  |           | 160.00                            |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |           |                                   |
|  |  |           | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |           |                                   |
| Prosthetic restoration of a leg  |  |           | \$1 660.00                        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |           |                                   |
| Prosthetic foam-rubber calf  |  |           |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months  |  |           |                                   |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con     | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement  |
|--|--|------------|-----------------------------------|
|  | device   | Price      | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |            |                                   |
| Prosthetic foam-rubber calf  | N.C.   | N/A        |                                   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |            |                                   |
| Thigh extension  | 386.00   | N/A        | 2                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |            |                                   |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |            |                                   |
| <i>§4. Tibiofemoral prostheses</i>   |  |            |                                   |
|  |  |            | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |            |                                   |
| Post-operative tibiofemoral prosthesis<br>necessitating obligatory renewal<br>of plaster mold  |  |            | \$821.00                          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |            |                                   |
| Lycra compressible sock (4)<br>Plaster socket (2)<br>Means of suspension (belt)<br>S.A.C.H. foot (loan)<br>Adjustable pylon (loan)<br>Suspension cable, distal pad, ring |  |            |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis  |  |            |                                   |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |            |                                   |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con     | lacement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|  | uevice   | Price      | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |            |                                   |
| Plaster socket (2)<br>Means of suspension<br>(belt)  | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | N/A<br>N/A |                                   |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con          | placement<br>mponent or<br>pplement |  |
|--|--|-----------------|-------------------------------------|--|
|  |  | Price           | Guarantee<br>(in months)            |  |
| Suspension cable,<br>distal pad, ring  | N.C.   | N/A             |                                     |  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                 |                                     |  |
| Lycra compressible sock (4)<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)   | N.C.<br>49.00                                    | \$0.00<br>49.00 |                                     |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00          |                                     |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00          |                                     |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00          |                                     |  |

#### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

None

#### DEVICE

Pneumatic post-operative tibiofemoral prosthesis, non-articulated

#### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Inflatable bag or case Distal pad Suspension straps (loan) Mobility frame (loan) Electric pump (loan)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

\$444.00

Price

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | uchte  | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | \$49.00  | \$49.00                                      |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                       |                          |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child                               | 158.00   | 158.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00                                       |                          |
| Stump sock<br>AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div.                                    | III)                     |

None

#### DEVICE

Pneumatic post-operative tibiofemoral prosthesis, articulated

#### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Inflatable bag or case Thigh lacer system (loan) Knee joint system (loan) Modular system (loan) Universal socket (loan) S.A.C.H. foot (loan) Air pump (loan)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

Price

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |  |
|--|--|--|--|
|  |  | Price Guarante<br>(in months                 |  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | \$49.00  | \$49.00                                      |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                       |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                                       |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00                                       |  |
| Stump sock   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. III)                               |  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |  |  |

None

#### DEVICE

Temporary tibiofemoral prosthesis

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Laminated or molded plastic adjustable socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Temporary foot (loan) Endoskeletal system (loan)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

\$889.00

Price

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of comp        | cement<br>onent or<br>lement |
|--|--|----------------|------------------------------|
|  | uevice   |                | Guarantee<br>(in months)     |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                |                              |
| Laminated or molded plastic<br>adjustable socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary   | N.C.   | N/A            |                              |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                |                              |
| Foam flexible double   | \$77.00  | \$133.00       | 3                            |
| comfort socket<br>Silesian belt (steel<br>joint and band)<br>Pelvic belt   | 82.00  | 94.00          | 3                            |
| (steel joint and band)   | 229.00   | 351.00         | 3                            |
| Pelvic belt (plastic joint and band)   | 187.00   | 309.00         | 3                            |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                              |
| Nylon sheath 50 to 60 cm<br>Nylon sheath with<br>elastic band 45 to 55 cm  | 13.55<br>23.00                                   | 15.54<br>25.00 |                              |
| Nylon suction sheath,<br>all sizes   | 21.74  | 23.73          |                              |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                              |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00         |                              |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child                               | 158.00   | 158.00         |                              |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00         |                              |
| Stump sock   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. II   | I)                           |
|  |  |                |                              |

# AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

\$2 196.00

#### DEVICE

#### Exoskeletal tibiofemoral prosthesis

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Laminated plastic tibiofemoral socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary External knee joints or 3P25 or 3P1 constant friction knee S.A.C.H. foot and ankle block

#### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com                      | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|
|  | utvitt   | Price                       | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                             |                                 |
| Ankle block<br>S.A.C.H. foot<br>Laminated plastic tibiofemoral<br>socket made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.                             | N/A<br>\$152.00<br>1 311.00 |                                 |
| External knee joints<br>Constant friction knee 3P25<br>Constant friction knee 3P1                                    | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.                             | 522.00<br>632.00<br>577.00  |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                             |                                 |
| Trial socket<br>Foam flexible double<br>comfort socket   | 122.00<br>106.00                                 | N/A<br>175.00               |                                 |
| Silesian belt<br>Pelvic belt (steel joint and  | 82.00<br>229.00                                  | 94.00<br>351.00             | 3<br>3                          |
| band)<br>Articulated foot<br>Dynamic response foot<br>(Quantum, spring and<br>proof batic acquering budget)          | 115.00<br>272.00                                 | 267.00<br>424.00            |                                 |
| prosthetic cover included)<br>Adapter for Quantum foot<br>Dynamic response foot<br>(Seattle light)                   | 132.00<br>369.00                                 | 132.00<br>521.00            |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Sten foot)<br>Dynamic response foot  | 86.00<br>160.00                                  | 238.00<br>311.00            |                                 |
| (Safe foot)<br>Dynamic response foot<br>1D10 or 1D11)  | 124.00   | 276.00                      |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of comp      | cement<br>oonent or<br>lement |
|--|--|--------------|-------------------------------|
|  | uevice   |              | Guarantee<br>(in months)      |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Seattle)   | 282.00   | 433.00       |                               |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Carbon Copy II)  | 240.00   | 392.00       |                               |
| Dynamic response foot<br>for child<br>(1K10)   | 67.00  | 218.00       |                               |
| Suction valve and seat   | 107.00   | 154.00       |                               |
| Suction valve  | N/A  | 91.00        |                               |
| Foam flexible cover  | 61.00  | 85.00        |                               |
| of tibial part   |  |              |                               |
| Pelvic belt (titanium joint<br>and band)   | 292.00   | 415.00       | 3                             |
| Pelvic belt (plastic joint   | 187.00   | 309.00       | 3                             |
| and band)  |  |              |                               |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |              |                               |
| Nylon sheath 50 to 60 cm   | 13.55  | 15.54        |                               |
| Nylon sheath with  | 23.00  | 25.00        |                               |
| elastic band 45 to 55 cm   |  |              |                               |
| Nylon suction sheath,  | 21.74  | 23.73        |                               |
| all sizes  |  |              |                               |
| Prosthetic sock, per pair  | 20.30  | 26.20        |                               |
| Cane   | 21.00  | 21.00        |                               |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00        |                               |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00       |                               |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for addid                               | 158.00   | 158.00       |                               |
| for child<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child  | 141.00   | 41.00        |                               |
| Stump sock   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. II | II)                           |
|  |  |              |                               |

AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

|   | Price      |
|---|------------|
| Socket lining: leather, plastic   | \$120.00   |
| or other material<br>Lengthening of tibial part   | 227.00     |
| Other pertinent adjustment  |            |
|   | Price      |
| DEVICE  |            |
| Endoskeletal tibiofemoral prosthesis  | \$2 594.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |            |
| Laminated plastic tibiofemoral socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>S.A.C.H. foot and adapter<br>Complete endoskeletal system with 3R21 knee<br>(modular components, prosthetic cover and<br>prosthetic socks (2))<br>If child, uniaxial knee (3R38) |            |

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component o<br>supplement     |                          |
|--|--|---|--------------------------|
|  |  | Price   | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |   |                          |
| S.A.C.H. foot<br>Laminated plastic tibiofemoral<br>socket made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary<br>Complete endoskeletal system<br>Knee 3R21<br>Prosthetic cover | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.             | \$152.00<br>1 311.00<br>N/A<br>852.00<br>407.00 | 3                        |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |   |                          |
| Trial socket<br>Foam flexible double<br>comfort socket   | 122.00<br>106.00                                 | N/A<br>175.00                                   |                          |
| Silesian belt<br>Pelvic belt (steel joint<br>and band)   | 82.00<br>229.00                                  | 94.00<br>351.00                                 | 3<br>3                   |
| Pelvic belt (plastic joint<br>and band)  | 187.00   | 309.00  | 3                        |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------|---------------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Pelvic belt (titanium joint                         | 292.00   | 415.00   | 3                               |
| and band)   |  |          |                                 |
| Articulated foot with adapter                       | 115.00   | 307.00   |                                 |
| Articulated foot without                            | N/A  | 199.00   |                                 |
| adapter   |  |          |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 239.00   | 301.00   |                                 |
| (Quantum, spring and                                |  |          |                                 |
| prosthetic cover included)                          |  |          |                                 |
| Adapter for Quantum foot                            | 35.00  | 35.00    |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot for child                     | 67.00  | 218.00   |                                 |
| (1K10)  |  |          |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 369.00   | 521.00   |                                 |
| (Seattle light)                                     | 2 < 22   |          |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 86.00  | 238.00   |                                 |
| (Sten foot)   | 1.00.00  | 211.00   |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 160.00   | 311.00   |                                 |
| (Safe foot)   | 124.00   | 276.00   |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 124.00   | 276.00   |                                 |
| (1D10 or 1D11)                                      | 282.00   | 422.00   |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 282.00   | 433.00   |                                 |
| (Seattle)   | 240.00   | 202.00   |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 240.00   | 392.00   |                                 |
| (Carbon Copy II)<br>Dynamic response foot           | 229.00   | 381.00   |                                 |
| (Step Light)  | 229.00   | 381.00   |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 154.00   | 306.00   |                                 |
| (USMC)  | 154.00   | 500.00   |                                 |
| Dynamic plus foot (1D25)                            | 326.00   | 510.00   |                                 |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator                        | 346.00   | 538.00   |                                 |
| (1A30)  | 510100   | 220.00   |                                 |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator                        | 400.00   | 584.00   |                                 |
| (Endolite)  |  |          |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                               | 585.00   | 765.00   |                                 |
| with rotator (Endolite)                             |  |          |                                 |
| Multiaxial knee for child                           | 440.00   | 1 292.00 |                                 |
| (TK40C) used with DAW                               |  |          |                                 |
| endoskeletal system                                 |  |          |                                 |
| Uniaxial constant friction knee                     | 190.00   | 1 042.00 |                                 |
| for child (TK1C1)                                   |  |          |                                 |
| Uniaxial knee for child (3R38)                      | N.C.   | 852.00   |                                 |
| Uniaxial knee with lock for                         | 94.00  | 946.00   |                                 |
| child (3R39)  |  |          |                                 |
| Polycentric-joint knee with                         | 315.00   | 1 167.00 |                                 |
| assisted extension (3R30),                          |  |          |                                 |
| titanium  |  | 1.012.00 |                                 |
| Multiaxial knee with rotator                        | 161.00   | 1 013.00 |                                 |
| (3R66) for child                                    | 202.00   | 1 245 00 |                                 |
| Polycentric-joint knee with<br>lock (3R32) titanium | 393.00   | 1 245.00 |                                 |
|   |  |          |                                 |

lock (3R32), titanium

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of comp      | cement<br>onent or<br>ement |
|--|--|--------------|-----------------------------|
|  | uevice   |              | Guarantee<br>(in months)    |
| Suction valve and seat                   | 107.00   | 154.00       |                             |
| Suction valve                            | N/A  | 91.00        |                             |
| Ankle rotator 4R39 or 4R40               | 472.00   | 511.00       |                             |
| Ankle rotator 4R85                       | 448.00   | 484.00       |                             |
| Titanium modular system                  | 48.00  | N/A          |                             |
| and carbon fiber pylon                   |  |              |                             |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)                  |  |              |                             |
| Nylon tibial sheath 15 to 45 cm          | 13.55  | 15.54        |                             |
| Nylon tibial sheath 55 to 80 cm          | 13.55  | 15.54        |                             |
| Nylon sheath with                        | 23.00  | 25.00        |                             |
| elastic band                             |  |              |                             |
| Nylon sheath with tibial                 | 21.74  | 23.73        |                             |
| elastic band 50 to 75 cm                 |  |              |                             |
| Nylon sheath, all sizes                  | 21.74  | 23.73        |                             |
| Prosthetic socks, per pair               | N.C.   | 30.35        |                             |
| Cane                                     | 21.00  | 21.00        |                             |
| Crutches with axillary                   | 49.00  | 49.00        |                             |
| support, height-adjustable               |  |              |                             |
| (all sizes)                              |  |              |                             |
| Crutches with forearm support,           | 118.00   | 118.00       |                             |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.            |  |              |                             |
| (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),             |  |              |                             |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.            |  |              |                             |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)           |  |              |                             |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)                     |  |              |                             |
| Crutches with forearm support,           | 158.00   | 158.00       |                             |
| height-adjustable from 19 in.            |  |              |                             |
| (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),             |  |              |                             |
| for child                                |  |              |                             |
| Crutches with forearm support,           | 141.00   | 141.00       |                             |
| height-adjustable from 12 in.            |  |              |                             |
| (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),               |  |              |                             |
| for child                                |  |              |                             |
| Stump sock                               | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. II | D                           |
| -  |  |              | ,                           |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)                  |  |              |                             |
| Socket lining: leather, plastic          |  |              | \$120.00                    |
| or other material                        |  |              |                             |
| Lengthening of tibial part of            |  |              | 160.00                      |
| prosthesis (excluding replacement        |  |              |                             |
| of prosthetic cover and prosthetic sock) |  |              |                             |
| Other pertinent adjustment               |  |              |                             |
| 1 J                                      |  |              |                             |

## §5. Femoral prostheses

|  | Price  |
|--|--------|
| DEVICE   |        |
| Post-operative femoral prosthesis necessitating obligatory renewal of plaster mold | 795.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |        |
| Lycra compressible socks $(\Lambda)$   |        |

Lycra compressible socks (4) Plaster socket (2) Means of suspension (belt) S.A.C.H. foot (loan) Adjustable pylon with joint (loan) Suspension cable, distal pad, ring

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of | of con          | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|-----------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device                                 | Price           | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                 |                                 |
| Plaster socket (2)<br>Means of suspension<br>(belt)   | N.C.<br>N.C.                           | N/A<br>N/A      |                                 |
| Suspension cable,<br>distal pad, ring   | N.C.                                   | N/A             |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                 |                                 |
| Lycra compressible socks (4)<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable  | N.C.<br>49.00                          | \$0.00<br>49.00 |                                 |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00                                 | 118.00          |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child  | 158.00                                 | 158.00          |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child  | 141.00                                 | 141.00          |                                 |

\$444.00

# AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

None

# DEVICE

Pneumatic post-operative femoral prosthesis, non-articulated

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Inflatable bag or case Distal pad Suspension straps(loan) Electric pump (loan)

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | \$49.00  | \$49.00                                      |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>for child(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),   | 141.00   | 141.00                                       |                          |
| Stump sock AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. I                                  | II)                      |

None

\$563.00

#### DEVICE

Pneumatic post-operative femoral prosthesis, articulated

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Inflatable bag or case Thigh lacer system (loan) Knee joint system (loan) Modular system (loan) Universal socket (loan) S.A.C.H. foot (loan) Air pump (loan)

#### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | ent of component or     |  |
|--|--|-------------------------|--|
|  |  | Price Guaran<br>(in mon |  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                         |  |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | \$49.00  | \$49.00                 |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                  |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                  |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00                  |  |
| Stump sock   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. III)          |  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                         |  |

None

\$815.00

## DEVICE

Temporary femoral prosthesis

# BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Laminated or molded plastic adjustable socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Temporary foot (loan) Endoskeletal system (loan)

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: Total life of prosthesis

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device |         |                          |
|--|--|---------|--------------------------|
|  | utvite   | Price   | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |         |                          |
| Laminated or molded plastic<br>adjustable socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary   | N.C.   | N/A     |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |         |                          |
| Silesian belt<br>(steel joint and band)  | \$82.00  | \$94.00 | 3                        |
| Pelvic belt<br>(plastic joint and band)  | 187.00   | 309.00  | 3                        |
| Pelvic belt<br>(steel joint and band)  | 229.00   | 351.00  | 3                        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |         |                          |
| Nylon sheath, 20 to 50 cm  | 13.55  | 15.54   |                          |
| Nylon sheath with elastic<br>band, 15 to 45 cm   | 25.52  | 27.51   |                          |
| Nylon sheath with "V"<br>opening, 15 to 50 cm  | 26.46  | 28.46   |                          |
| Nylon suction sheath   | 21.74  | 23.73   |                          |
| Cane   | 21.00  | 21.00   |                          |
| Crutches with axillary support,<br>height-adjustable (all sizes)   | 49.00  | 49.00   |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to $41$ in. (102 5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00  |                          |

to 41 in. (102.5 cm)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of           | of con               | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device   | Price                | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),   | 158.00   | 158.00               |                                 |
| for child<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00               |                                 |
| Stump sock  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div.            | III)                            |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |                      |                                 |
| None  |  |                      |                                 |
|   |  |                      | Price                           |
| DEVICE  |  |                      |                                 |
| Exoskeletal femoral prosthesis  |  |                      | \$2 058.00                      |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                      |                                 |
| Laminated plastic socket made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary<br>Constant friction knee, model 3P25<br>(If friction locking knee for child, model 3P21<br>or 3P50, subtract \$116.00 and \$83.00, respectively,<br>from base price of device)<br>S.A.C.H. foot |  |                      |                                 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months   |  |                      |                                 |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S   |  |                      |                                 |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con               | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|   | uevice   | Price                | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                      |                                 |
| S.A.C.H. foot<br>Laminated plastic femoral<br>socket made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary  | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$152.00<br>1 176.00 |                                 |
| Constant friction knee,<br>model (3P25)   | N.C.   | 632.00               |                                 |

| deviceOPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)Trial socket109.00Silesian belt82.00Pelvic belt229.00(steel joint and band)292.00Pelvic belt292.00(titanium joint and band)187.00Pelvic belt187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)<br>Dynamic response foot86.00 | sup           | nponent or<br>plement    |
|--|---------------|--------------------------|
| Trial socket109.00Silesian belt82.00Pelvic belt229.00(steel joint and band)292.00Pelvic belt292.00(titanium joint and band)187.00Pelvic belt187.00(plastic joint and band)272.00Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)369.00  | Price         | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| Silesian belt82.00Pelvic belt229.00(steel joint and band)292.00Pelvic belt292.00(titanium joint and band)187.00Pelvic belt187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)369.00  |               |                          |
| Pelvic belt229.00(steel joint and band)292.00Pelvic belt292.00(titanium joint and band)187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Articulated foot115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)100  | N/A           |                          |
| Pelvic belt229.00(steel joint and band)292.00Pelvic belt292.00(titanium joint and band)187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Articulated foot115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)100  | 94.00         | 3                        |
| (steel joint and band)292.00Pelvic belt292.00(titanium joint and band)187.00Pelvic belt187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)132.00   | 351.00        | 3                        |
| Pelvic belt292.00(titanium joint and band)187.00Pelvic belt187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Articulated foot115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)100  |               |                          |
| (titanium joint and band)187.00Pelvic belt187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Articulated foot115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)132.00  | 415.00        | 3                        |
| Pelvic belt187.00(plastic joint and band)115.00Articulated foot115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)132.00   | 110100        | C C                      |
| (plastic joint and band)115.00Articulated foot115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)100   | 309.00        | 3                        |
| Articulated foot115.00Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)100   | 507.00        | 5                        |
| Dynamic response foot272.00(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)132.00  | 267.00        |                          |
| (Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)132.00Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)369.00   | 424.00        |                          |
| prosthetic cover included)<br>Adapter for Quantum foot 132.00<br>Dynamic response foot 369.00<br>(Seattle light)   | 121.00        |                          |
| Adapter for Quantum foot132.00Dynamic response foot369.00(Seattle light)369.00   |               |                          |
| Dynamic response foot 369.00<br>(Seattle light)  | 132.00        |                          |
| (Seattle light)  | 521.00        |                          |
|  | 521.00        |                          |
|  | 238.00        |                          |
| (Sten foot)  | 238.00        |                          |
| Dynamic response foot 160.00   | 311.00        |                          |
| (Safe foot)  | 511.00        |                          |
| Dynamic response foot 124.00   | 276.00        |                          |
| (1D10 or 1D11)   | 270.00        |                          |
|  | 422.00        |                          |
| Dynamic response foot 282.00   | 433.00        |                          |
| (Seattle)  | 202.00        |                          |
| Dynamic response foot 240.00   | 392.00        |                          |
| (Carbon Copy II)   | 219.00        |                          |
| Dynamic response foot for child 67.00  | 218.00        |                          |
| 1K10   | 154.00        |                          |
| Suction valve and seat 107.00  | 154.00        |                          |
| Suction valve N/A  | 91.00         |                          |
| Foam flexible cover 61.00  | 85.00         |                          |
| of tibial part   | <b>505</b> 00 |                          |
| Safety knee, model 3P23, 3P24 102.00   | 735.00        |                          |
| Manual locking knee 3P4 16.00  | 649.00        |                          |
| Manual locking knee 3P52 94.00   | 727.00        |                          |
| Geriatric knee with manual 39.00   | 672.00        |                          |
| lock 3K9   |               |                          |
| Constant friction locking 33.00  | 666.00        |                          |
| knee 3P4F  |               |                          |
| Friction locking knee for - 116.00   | 516.00        |                          |
| child 3P21   |               |                          |
| Friction locking knee for - 83.00  | 550.00        |                          |
| child 3P50   | 550.00        |                          |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | replacement of compon<br>price of supplem |                          |
|--|--|---|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   |   | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |   |                          |
| Nylon sheath, 20 to 50 cm<br>Nylon sheath with elastic<br>band, 15 to 45 cm  | 13.55<br>25.52                                   | 15.54<br>27.51                            |                          |
| Nylon sheath with "V"<br>opening, 15 to 50 cm  | 26.46  | 28.46                                     |                          |
| Wool socks, 3 ply, with<br>"V" opening, sizes 1, 2, 3<br>and 4, 15 to 50 cm  | 27.62  | 29.72                                     |                          |
| Wool socks, 5 ply, with<br>"V" opening, sizes 1, 2, 3<br>and 4, 15 to 50 cm  | 28.25  | 30.35                                     |                          |
| Nylon suction sheath   | 21.74  | 23.73                                     |                          |
| Cane   | 21.00  | 21.00                                     |                          |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00                                     |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                    |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                                    |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00                                    |                          |
| Stump sock   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. II                              | II)                      |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |   |                          |

|  | Price              |
|--|--------------------|
| Lengthening of tibial part of prosthesis<br>Socket lining: leather, plastic or<br>other material | \$227.00<br>120.00 |

Other pertinent adjustment

\$2 437.00

## DEVICE

#### Endoskeletal femoral prosthesis

# BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Laminated plastic femoral socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary S.A.C.H. foot Complete endoskeletal system with constant friction uniaxial knee 3R16 (modular components, prosthetic cover and prosthetic socks (2))

#### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of | of com   | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------|---------------------------------|
|   | device                                 | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |          |                                 |
| S.A.C.H. foot   | N.C.                                   | \$152.00 |                                 |
| Laminated plastic femoral   | N.C.                                   | 1 176.00 | 3                               |
| socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary                   |  |          |                                 |
| Complete endoskeletal system                                      | N.C.                                   | N/A      |                                 |
| Uniaxial constant friction  | N.C.                                   | 376.00   |                                 |
| knee 3R16   |  |          |                                 |
| Prosthetic cover  | N.C.                                   | 407.00   |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |          |                                 |
| Trial socket  | 109.00                                 | N/A      |                                 |
| Silesian belt   | 82.00                                  | 94.00    | 3                               |
| Pelvic belt   | 229.00                                 | 351.00   | 3                               |
| (steel joint and band)  |  |          |                                 |
| Pelvic belt   | 292.00                                 | 415.00   | 3                               |
| (titanium joint and band)   | 107.00                                 | 200.00   | 2                               |
| Pelvic belt   | 187.00                                 | 309.00   | 3                               |
| (plastic joint and band)<br>Articulated foot with adapter         | 115.00                                 | 307.00   |                                 |
| Articulated foot with adapter<br>Articulated foot without adapter | N/A                                    | 199.00   |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot   | 239.00                                 | 301.00   |                                 |
| (Quantum, spring and  | 237.00                                 | 501.00   |                                 |
| prosthetic cover included)  |  |          |                                 |
| Adapter for Quantum foot  | 35.00                                  | 35.00    |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot for child                                   | 67.00                                  | 218.00   |                                 |
| 1K10  |  |          |                                 |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device   | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 369.00   | 521.00         |                                 |
| (Seattle light)<br>Dynamic response foot                  | 86.00  | 238.00         |                                 |
| (Sten foot)   | 80.00  | 258.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 160.00   | 311.00         |                                 |
| (Safe foot)   | 100.00   | 511.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 124.00   | 276.00         |                                 |
| (1D10 or 1D11)  | 124.00   | 270.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 282.00   | 433.00         |                                 |
| (Seattle)   | 202.00   | 155.00         |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 240.00   | 392.00         |                                 |
| (Carbon Copy II)  |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 229.00   | 381.00         |                                 |
| (Step Light)  |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 154.00   | 306.00         |                                 |
| (ÚSMC)  |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic plus foot (1D25)                                  | 326.00   | 510.00         |                                 |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator                              | 346.00   | 538.00         |                                 |
| (1A30)  |  |                |                                 |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator,                             | 400.00   | 584.00         |                                 |
| (Endolite)  |  |                |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot                                     | 585.00   | 765.00         |                                 |
| with rotator, (Endolite)                                  |  |                |                                 |
| Suction valve and seat                                    | 107.00   | 154.00         |                                 |
| Suction valve   | N/A  | 91.00          |                                 |
| Uniaxial knee with lock for                               | 570.00   | 946.00         |                                 |
| child 3R39  |  |                |                                 |
| Uniaxial constant friction                                | 138.00   | 514.00         |                                 |
| knee 3R18   | 222.00   | <b>5</b> 00.00 |                                 |
| Safety knee 3R15  | 222.00   | 598.00         |                                 |
| Manual locking knee 3R17                                  | 136.00   | 511.00         |                                 |
| 4-axis polycentric knee 3R20                              | 255.00   | 631.00         |                                 |
| Aluminum manual locking                                   | 105.00   | 480.00         |                                 |
| knee 3R40   | 128.00   | 004.00         |                                 |
| Titanium manual locking                                   | 428.00   | 804.00         |                                 |
| knee 3R33<br>Titorium sofatu knog 2R40                    | 274.00   | 750.00         |                                 |
| Titanium safety knee 3R49<br>Multiaxial knee with rotator | 374.00<br>637.00                                 | 750.00         |                                 |
| (3R66) for child  | 057.00   | 1 013.00       |                                 |
| Ankle rotator 4R39 or 4R40                                | 472.00   | 511.00         |                                 |
| Ankle rotator 4R85  | 448.00   | 484.00         |                                 |
| Knee rotator, model 4R57                                  | 563.00   | 599.00         |                                 |
| Uniaxial knee with lock for                               | 570.00   | 946.00         |                                 |
| child 3R39  | 570.00   | 2 10.00        |                                 |
| Maltianial lance for all'II TE 400                        | 016.00   | 1 202 00       |                                 |

916.00

666.00

473.00

1 292.00

 $1\ 042.00$ 

852.00

Multiaxial knee for child TK40C

Uniaxial constant friction

Uniaxial knee for child 3R38

knee for child TK1C1, with or without lock

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com    | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|-----------|---------------------------------|
|   |  | Price     | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |           |                                 |
| Nylon sheath, 20 to 50 cm                                       | 13.55  | 15.54     |                                 |
| Nylon sheath with elastic                                       | 25.52  | 27.51     |                                 |
| band, 15 to 45 cm   |  |           |                                 |
| Nylon sheath with "V"   | 26.46  | 28.46     |                                 |
| opening, 15 to 50 cm  | 27.62  | 20.72     |                                 |
| Wool socks, 3 ply, with<br>"V" opening, sizes 1, 2, 3           | 27.62  | 29.72     |                                 |
| and 4, 15 to 50 cm  |  |           |                                 |
| Wool socks, 5 ply, with   | 28.25  | 30.35     |                                 |
| "V" opening, sizes 1, 2, 3                                      |  |           |                                 |
| and 4, 15 to 50 cm  |  |           |                                 |
| Nylon suction sheath  | 21.74  | 23.73     |                                 |
| Cane  | 21.00  | 21.00     |                                 |
| Crutches with axillary  | 49.00  | 49.00     |                                 |
| support, height-adjustable                                      |  |           |                                 |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,                   | 118.00   | 118.00    |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.                                   | 118.00   | 118.00    |                                 |
| (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),                                    |  |           |                                 |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.                                   |  |           |                                 |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)                                  |  |           |                                 |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)  |  |           |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                  | 158.00   | 158.00    |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 19 in.                                   |  |           |                                 |
| (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),                                    |  |           |                                 |
| for child   | 141.00   | 141.00    |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in. | 141.00   | 141.00    |                                 |
| (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),                                      |  |           |                                 |
| for child   |  |           |                                 |
| Stump sock  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. | III)                            |
| Prosthetic socks (2)  | N.C.   | 30.35     | <i>*</i>                        |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |           |                                 |

|  | Price    |
|--|----------|
| Lengthening of tibial part of prosthesis                           | \$160.00 |
| (excluding replacement of prosthetic cover<br>and prosthetic sock) |          |
| Socket lining: leather, plastic or                                 | 120.00   |
| other material   |          |

Other pertinent adjustment

\$2 546.00

#### DEVICE

## Femoral stubbies (bilateral)

# BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Laminated plastic femoral socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary (2) S.A.C.H. foot (2)

## **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|   | Purchase o<br>replacemen<br>price of<br>device | nt of com                         | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device   | Price                             | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                                   |                                 |
| Modified foot (2)<br>S.A.C.H. foot<br>Laminated plastic femoral socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary (2) | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.                           | N/A<br>\$152.00/ea<br>1 176.00/ea |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                                   |                                 |
| Trial socket<br>Silesian belt<br>Pelvic belt<br>(steel joint and band)  | 109.00<br>82.00<br>229.00                      | N/A<br>94.00<br>351.00            | 3<br>3                          |
| Pelvic belt<br>(titanium joint and band)<br>Pelvic belt   | 187.00<br>292.00                               | 309.00<br>415.00                  | 3<br>3                          |
| (plastic joint and band)<br>Suction valve and seat<br>Suction valve   | 107.00<br>N/A                                  | 154.00<br>91.00                   | 5                               |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                                   |                                 |
| Nylon sheath, 20 to 50 cm<br>Nylon sheath with elastic  | 13.55<br>25.52                                 | 15.54<br>27.51                    |                                 |
| band, 15 to 45 cm<br>Nylon sheath with "V"<br>opening, 15 to 50 cm<br>Wool cocks, 2 ply, with                             | 26.46  | 28.46                             |                                 |
| Wool socks, 3 ply, with<br>"V" opening, sizes 1, 2, 3<br>and 4, 15 to 50 cm   | 27.62  | 29.72                             |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con    | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|-----------|----------------------------------|
|  | device   | Price     | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| Wool socks, 5 ply, with<br>"V" opening, sizes 1, 2, 3  | 28.25  | 30.35     |                                  |
| and 4, 15 to 50 cm   | 21.74  | 22.72     |                                  |
| Nylon suction sheath   | 21.74  | 23.73     |                                  |
| Cane   | 21.00  | 21.00     |                                  |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00     |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00    |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00    |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),  | 141.00   | 141.00    |                                  |
| for child<br>Stump sock  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. | III)                             |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |           |                                  |
|  |  |           | Price                            |
| Socket lining: leather, plastic or other material  |  |           | \$120.00                         |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |           |                                  |
| <i>§6.</i> Coxofemoral and hemipelvic prostheses   |  |           |                                  |
|  |  |           | Price                            |
| DEVICE   |  |           |                                  |
| Exoskeletal coxofemoral prosthesis   |  |           | \$3 203.00                       |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |           |                                  |
| Laminated plastic socket made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary<br>Constant friction knee, model 3P25<br>S.A.C.H. foot<br>Hip joint — Canadian-type,<br>model CHJ-100 or CHJ-75         |  |           |                                  |

521

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com               | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | utilit   | Price                | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                      |                                 |
| S.A.C.H. foot<br>Laminated plastic socket made<br>from plaster imprint of beneficiary | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$152.00<br>1 884.00 |                                 |
| Hip joint — Canadian-type,<br>model CHJ-100 or CHJ-75<br>Constant friction knee       | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | 400.00<br>632.00     |                                 |
| model 3P25  |  |                      |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                      |                                 |
| Trial socket<br>Articulated foot  | 212.00<br>115.00                                 | N/A<br>267.00        |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Quantum, spring and   | 272.00   | 424.00               |                                 |
| prosthetic cover included)<br>Adapter for Quantum foot<br>Dynamic response foot       | 132.00<br>369.00                                 | 132.00<br>521.00     |                                 |
| (Seattle light)<br>Dynamic response foot  | 86.00  | 238.00               |                                 |
| (Sten foot)<br>Dynamic response foot<br>(Safe foot)                                   | 160.00   | 311.00               |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(1D10 or 1D11)   | 124.00   | 276.00               |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Seattle)  | 282.00   | 433.00               |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Carbon Copy II)<br>Dynamic foot for child                   | 240.00<br>67.00                                  | 392.00<br>218.00     |                                 |
| 1K10<br>Suction valve and seat  | 107.00   | 154.00               |                                 |
| Suction valve<br>Foam flexible cover  | N/A<br>61.00                                     | 91.00<br>85.00       |                                 |
| of tibial part<br>Safety knee, model<br>3P23, 3P24                                    | 102.00   | 735.00               |                                 |
| Manual locking knee 3P4<br>Manual locking knee 3P52                                   | 16.00<br>94.00                                   | 649.00<br>727.00     |                                 |
| Geriatric knee with manual<br>lock 3K9  | 39.00  | 672.00               |                                 |
| Constant friction locking<br>knee 3P4F  | 33.00  | 666.00               |                                 |

S.A.C.H. foot

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------|-----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Constant friction locking<br>knee for child 3P21   | 116.00   | 516.00 |                                   |
| Constant friction locking<br>knee for child 3P50   | 83.00  | 550.00 |                                   |
| Hip joint, Northwestern type   | 233.00   | 645.00 |                                   |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |        |                                   |
| Pant-style sock  | 12.30  | 16.20  |                                   |
| Cane   | 21.00  | 21.00  |                                   |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00  |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00 |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00 |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| Lengthening of tibial part of prosthesis   |  |        | \$227.00                          |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |        |                                   |
| Endoskeletal coxofemoral prosthesis  |  |        | \$3 886.00                        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
| Laminated plastic socket made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary<br>S A C H foot   |  |        |                                   |

Complete endoskeletal system with uniaxial constant friction knee, 3R16 (modular components, prosthetic cover and prosthetic socks (2)) Hip joint, model 7E7

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con                     | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------------------|---------------------------------|
|  |  | Price                      | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                            |                                 |
| S.A.C.H. foot<br>Laminated plastic socket made<br>from plaster imprint of beneficiary        | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$152.00<br>1 884.00       |                                 |
| Complete endoskeletal system<br>Uniaxial constant friction knee,<br>3R16                     | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | N/A<br>376.00              |                                 |
| Prosthetic cover<br>Hip joint, model 7E7   | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | 522.00<br>N/A              |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                            |                                 |
| Trial socket<br>Joint of hip joint, model 7E7<br>Joint of hip joint, model 7E8,<br>for child | 212.00<br>N/A<br>187.00                          | N/A<br>955.00<br>1 143.00  |                                 |
| Uniaxial constant friction<br>knee 3R18  | 138.00   | 514.00                     |                                 |
| Safety knee 3R15<br>Manual locking knee 3R17<br>4-axis polycentric knee<br>3R20              | 222.00<br>136.00<br>255.00                       | 598.00<br>512.00<br>631.00 |                                 |
| Aluminum manual locking<br>knee 3R40   | 105.00   | 480.00                     |                                 |
| Titanium manual locking<br>knee 3R33   | 428.00   | 804.00                     |                                 |
| Titanium safety knee 3R49<br>Multiaxial knee with rotator<br>(3R66) for child                | 374.00<br>637.00                                 | 750.00<br>1 013.00         |                                 |
| Ankle rotator 4R39 or 4R40<br>Ankle rotator 4R85<br>Knee rotator, model 4R57                 | 472.00<br>448.00<br>563.00                       | 511.00<br>484.00<br>599.00 |                                 |
| Articulated foot with adapter<br>Articulated foot without<br>adapter                         | 115.00<br>N/A                                    | 307.00<br>199.00           |                                 |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Quantum, spring and<br>prosthetic cover included)                  | 239.00   | 301.00                     |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component o<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|---|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price                                       | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| Adapter for Quantum foot<br>Dynamic response foot  | 35.00<br>67.00                                   | 35.00<br>218.00                             |                          |
| for child, 1K10<br>Dynamic response foot<br>(Seattle light)  | 369.00   | 521.00                                      |                          |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Sten foot)   | 86.00  | 238.00                                      |                          |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Safe foot)   | 160.00   | 311.00                                      |                          |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(1D10 or 1D11)  | 124.00   | 276.00                                      |                          |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Seattle)   | 282.00   | 433.00                                      |                          |
| Dynamic response foot  | 240.00   | 392.00                                      |                          |
| (Carbon Copy II)<br>Dynamic response foot  | 229.00   | 381.00                                      |                          |
| (Step Light)<br>Dynamic response foot  | 154.00   | 306.00                                      |                          |
| (USMC)<br>Dynamic plus foot (1D25)<br>Multiaxial foot with rotator,<br>(1A30)  | 326.00<br>346.00                                 | 510.00<br>538.00                            |                          |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator,<br>(Endolite)  | 400.00   | 584.00                                      |                          |
| Dynamic response foot<br>with rotator, (Endolite)  | 585.00   | 765.00                                      |                          |
| Uniaxial knee with lock  | 570.00   | 946.00                                      |                          |
| for child 3R39<br>Multiaxial knee for child<br>TK40C   | 916.00   | 1 292.00                                    |                          |
| Uniaxial constant friction<br>knee for child TK1C1   | 666.00   | 1 042.00                                    |                          |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |   |                          |
| Pant-style sock<br>Cane<br>Crutches with axillary  | 12.30<br>21.00<br>49.00                          | 16.20<br>21.00<br>49.00                     |                          |
| support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,  | 118.00   | 118.00                                      |                          |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>( $62.5 \text{ cm}$ ) to $31 \text{ in.}$ ( $79 \text{ cm}$ ),<br>from 30 in. ( $77 \text{ cm}$ ) to $36 \text{ in.}$<br>( $89 \text{ cm}$ ) or from $35 \text{ in.}$ ( $87 \text{ cm}$ )<br>to $41 \text{ in.}$ ( $102.5 \text{ cm}$ ) | 118.00   | 118.00                                      |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                                      |                          |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement  |
|--|--|--------|-----------------------------------|
|  |  | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                   |
| Prosthetic socks (2)   | N.C.   | 30.35  |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| Lengthening of tibial part of prosthesis<br>(excluding replacement<br>of prosthetic cover and prosthetic sock)   |  |        | \$160.00                          |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |        |                                   |
| Exoskeletal hemipelvic prosthesis  |  |        | \$3 303.00                        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
| Laminated plastic socket made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary<br>Constant friction knee, model 3P25<br>S.A.C.H. foot<br>Hip joint — Canadian-type,<br>model CHJ-100 or CHJ-75 |  |        |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |        |                                   |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>1ponent or<br>plement |
|  | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |

# BASIC COMPONENT(S)

| S.A.C.H. foot                       | N.C. | \$152.00 |
|-------------------------------------|------|----------|
| Laminated plastic socket made       | N.C. | 1 884.00 |
| from plaster imprint of beneficiary |      |          |

|                                       | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|---------------------------------------|--|--------|-----------------------------------|
|                                       | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Hip joint - Canadian-type,            | N.C.   | 400.00 |                                   |
| model CHJ-100 or CHJ-75               |  |        |                                   |
| Constant friction knee,               | N.C.   | 632.00 |                                   |
| model 3P25                            |  |        |                                   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)                 |  |        |                                   |
| Trial socket                          | 212.00   | N/A    |                                   |
| Articulated foot                      | 115.00   | 267.00 |                                   |
| Dynamic response foot                 | 272.00   | 424.00 |                                   |
| (Quantum, spring and                  |  |        |                                   |
| prosthetic cover included)            |  |        |                                   |
| Adapter for Quantum foot              | 132.00   | 132.00 |                                   |
| Dynamic response foot                 | 369.00   | 521.00 |                                   |
| (Seattle light)                       | 20.00  | 220.00 |                                   |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Sten foot)  | 30.00  | 238.00 |                                   |
| Dynamic response foot                 | 160.00   | 311.00 |                                   |
| (Safe foot)                           | 100.00   | 511.00 |                                   |
| Dynamic response foot                 | 124.00   | 276.00 |                                   |
| (1D10 or 1D11)                        |  |        |                                   |
| Dynamic response foot                 | 282.00   | 433.00 |                                   |
| (Seattle)                             | • 40.00  |        |                                   |
| Dynamic response foot                 | 240.00   | 392.00 |                                   |
| (Carbon Copy II)                      | 67.00  | 210.00 |                                   |
| Dynamic foot for child,<br>1K10       | 67.00  | 218.00 |                                   |
| Foam flexible cover                   | 61.00  | 85.00  |                                   |
| of tibial part                        | 01100  | 00100  |                                   |
| Safety knee, models                   | 102.00   | 735.00 |                                   |
| 3P23, 3P24                            |  |        |                                   |
| Manual locking knee 3P4               | 16.00  | 649.00 |                                   |
| Manual locking knee 3P52              | 94.00  | 727.00 |                                   |
| Geriatric knee with manual            | 39.00  | 672.00 |                                   |
| lock 3K9<br>Constant friction locking | 33.00  | 666.00 |                                   |
| knee 3P4F                             | 55.00  | 000.00 |                                   |
| Friction locking knee for             | 116.00   | 516.00 |                                   |
| child 3P21                            | 110100   | 010100 |                                   |
| Friction locking knee for             | 83.00  | 550.00 |                                   |
| child 3P50                            |  |        |                                   |
| Hip joint, Northwestern type          | 233.00   | 645.00 |                                   |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)               |  |        |                                   |
| Pant-style sock                       | 12.30  | 16.20  |                                   |
| Cane                                  | 21.00  | 21.00  |                                   |
| Crutches with axillary                | 49.00  | 49.00  |                                   |
| support, height-adjustable            |  |        |                                   |
| (all sizes)                           |  |        |                                   |

|  | replacement<br>price of<br>device | of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|-----------------------------------|-------------------------------|--------------------------|
|  |                                   | Price                         | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm)   | 118.00                            | 118.00                        |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00                            | 158.00                        |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00                            | 141.00                        |                          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |                                   |                               |                          |
|  |                                   |                               | Price                    |
| Lengthening of tibial part of prosthesis   |                                   |                               | \$227.00                 |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |                                   |                               |                          |
|  |                                   |                               | Price                    |
| DEVICE   |                                   |                               |                          |
| Endoskeletal hemipelvic prosthesis   |                                   |                               | \$4 001.00               |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |                                   |                               |                          |
| Laminated plastic socket made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary<br>S.A.C.H. foot<br>Complete endoskeletal system with uniaxial<br>constant friction knee 3R16<br>(modular components, prosthetic cover and<br>prosthetic socks (2))<br>Hip joint, model 7E7 |                                   |                               |                          |

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)                             |  |  |                          |
| S.A.C.H. foot                                  | N.C.   | \$152.00                                     |                          |
| Laminated plastic socket made                  | N.C.   | 1 884.00                                     |                          |
| from plaster imprint of beneficiary            |  |  |                          |
| Complete endoskeletal system                   | N.C.   | N/A  |                          |
| Uniaxial constant friction                     | N.C.   | 376.00                                       |                          |
| knee 3R16                                      |  |  |                          |
| Prosthetic cover                               | N.C.   | 522.00                                       |                          |
| Hip joint, model 7E7                           | N.C.   | N/A  |                          |
| OPTIONAL OR AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S)             |  |  |                          |
| Trial socket                                   | 212.00   | N/A  |                          |
| Joint of hip joint, model 7E7                  | N/A  | 955.00                                       |                          |
| Joint of hip joint, model 7E8,                 | 187.00   | 1 143.00                                     |                          |
| for child                                      |  |  |                          |
| Uniaxial constant friction                     | 138.00   | 514.00                                       |                          |
| knee 3R18                                      |  |  |                          |
| Safety knee 3R15                               | 222.00   | 598.00                                       |                          |
| Manual locking knee 3R17                       | 136.00   | 512.00                                       |                          |
| Polycentric knee 3R20                          | 255.00   | 631.00                                       |                          |
| Aluminum manual locking                        | 105.00   | 480.00                                       |                          |
| knee 3R40                                      |  |  |                          |
| Titanium manual locking                        | 428.00   | 804.00                                       |                          |
| knee 3R33                                      | 274.00   | 750.00                                       |                          |
| Titanium safety knee 3R49                      | 374.00   | 750.00                                       |                          |
| Multiaxial knee with rotator                   | 637.00   | 1 013.00                                     |                          |
| (3R66) for child                               | 472.00   | 511.00                                       |                          |
| Ankle rotator 4R39 or 4R40                     | 472.00   | 511.00                                       |                          |
| Ankle rotator 4R85<br>Knee rotator, model 4R57 | 448.00<br>563.00                                 | 484.00<br>599.00                             |                          |
| Articulated foot with adapter                  | 115.00   | 399.00                                       |                          |
| Articulated foot without adapter               | N/A  | 199.00                                       |                          |
| Dynamic response foot                          | 239.00   | 301.00                                       |                          |
| (Quantum, spring and                           | 237.00   | 501.00                                       |                          |
| prosthetic cover included)                     |  |  |                          |
| Adapter for Quantum foot                       | 35.00  | 35.00  |                          |
| Dynamic response foot                          | 67.00  | 218.00                                       |                          |
| for child 1K10                                 |  |  |                          |
| Dynamic response foot                          | 369.00   | 521.00                                       |                          |
| (Seattle light)                                |  |  |                          |
| Dynamic response foot                          | 30.00  | 238.00                                       |                          |
| (Sten foot)                                    |  |  |                          |
|  | 160.00   | 311.00                                       |                          |
| (Safe foot)                                    |  |  |                          |
| Dynamic response foot<br>(Safe foot)           | 160.00   | 311.00                                       |                          |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |  |
|---|--|----------|--|--|
|   | uevice   | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)                     |  |
| Dynamic response foot   | 124.00   | 276.00   |  |  |
| (1D10 or 1D11)<br>Dynamic response foot                         | 282.00   | 433.00   |  |  |
| (Seattle)   | 202.00   |          |  |  |
| Dynamic response foot   | 240.00   | 392.00   |  |  |
| (Carbon Copy II)  | 210.00   | 372.00   |  |  |
| Dynamic response foot   | 229.00   | 381.00   |  |  |
| (Step Light)  |  | 201100   |  |  |
| Dynamic response foot (USMC)                                    | 154.00   | 306.00   |  |  |
| Dynamic plus foot (1D25)  | 326.00   | 510.00   |  |  |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator                                    | 346.00   | 538.00   |  |  |
| (1A30)  |  |          |  |  |
| Multiaxial foot with rotator,                                   | 400.00   | 584.00   |  |  |
| (Endolite)  |  |          |  |  |
| Dynamic response foot   | 585.00   | 765.00   |  |  |
| with rotator, (Endolite)  |  |          |  |  |
| Uniaxial knee with lock for                                     | 570.00   | 946.00   |  |  |
| child 3R39  |  |          |  |  |
| Multiaxial knee for child TK40C                                 | 916.00   | 1 292.00 |  |  |
| Uniaxial constant friction knee                                 | 666.00   | 1 042.00 |  |  |
| for child TK1C1   |  |          |  |  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |          |  |  |
|   | 10.00  | 16.00    |  |  |
| Pant-style sock   | 12.30  | 16.20    |  |  |
| Cane  | 21.00  | 21.00    |  |  |
| Crutches with axillary  | 49.00  | 49.00    |  |  |
| support, height-adjustable                                      |  |          |  |  |
| (all sizes)   | 118.00   | 118.00   |  |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in. | 118.00   | 118.00   |  |  |
| (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),                                    |  |          |  |  |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.                                   |  |          |  |  |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)                                  |  |          |  |  |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)  |  |          |  |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                  | 158.00   | 158.00   |  |  |
| height-adjustable from 19 in.                                   | 100.00   | 120.00   |  |  |
| (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),                                    |  |          |  |  |
| for child   |  |          |  |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                  | 141.00   | 141.00   |  |  |
| height-adjustable from 12 in.                                   | 00   |          |  |  |
| (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),                                      |  |          |  |  |
| for child   |  |          |  |  |
| Prosthetic socks (2)  | N.C.   | 30.35    |  |  |
|   |  |          |  |  |

AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

|  | Price    |
|--|----------|
| Lengthening of tibial part of prosthesis<br>(excluding replacement<br>of prosthetic cover and prosthetic sock) | \$160.00 |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |          |
| §7. Lower-limb prostheses  |          |
|  | Price    |
| DEVICE   |          |
| Other lower-limb prostheses  | S.C.     |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |          |
| DIVISION II<br>UPPER-LIMB PROSTHESES   |          |
| <i>§1.</i> Hand prostheses   |          |
|  | Price    |
| DEVICE   |          |
| Prosthetic finger restoration made<br>from plaster imprint of beneficiary                                      | \$534.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| Compensatory part for finger and prosthetic cover<br>made by the Realistic company                             |          |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 1 month   |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| None   |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |          |
|  | Price    |

DEVICE

Prosthetic partial hand restoration made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

\$1 042.00

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Compensatory part Prosthetic partial hand and prosthetic glove made by the Realistic company from plaster imprint of beneficiary

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 1 month

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|---|--|--|--------------------------|
|   | device   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| Prosthetic partial hand<br>and prosthetic glove<br>(Realistic) made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary  | N.C.   | \$498.00                                     |                          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |  |                          |
| <i>§2.</i> Wrist prostheses   |  |  |                          |
|   |  |  | Price                    |
| DEVICE  |  |  |                          |
| Exoskeletal cubital or wrist prosthesis   |  |  | \$1 094.00               |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Wrist friction joint<br>Rigid plastic socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>Suspension harness<br>Tricipital pad<br>Control cable, connections, terminals |  |  |                          |

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months** 

and housing (reinforced materials)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con            | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|-------------------|----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price             | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                   |                                  |
| Rigid plastic socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary                                  | N.C.   | \$677.00          | 3                                |
| Suspension harness<br>Control cable, connections,<br>terminals and housing<br>(reinforced materials) | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | 114.00<br>142.00  | 3<br>3                           |
| Wrist friction joint<br>Tricipital pad   | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | 238.00<br>114.00  |                                  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(s)  |  |                   |                                  |
| Metal elbow joints, flexible<br>Anchoring part for cable for<br>passive hand and hook                | 281.00<br>28.00                                  | 335.00<br>45.00   | 3                                |
| Other pertinent optional components  | (See Subdiv. VII)                                | )* (See Su        | ıbdiv. VII)*                     |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                   |                                  |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sheath   | (See Div. III)<br>U/A*                           | (See Div.<br>U/A* | III)                             |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                   |                                  |
|  | Price  |                   |                                  |
| Lengthening of prosthesis  | \$187.00   | 3                 |                                  |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |                   |                                  |
| <i>§3. Cubital prostheses</i>  |  |                   |                                  |
|  |  |                   | Price                            |
| DEVICE   |  |                   |                                  |
| Endoskeletal cubital prosthetic restoration  |  |                   | \$1 095.00                       |

<sup>\* (</sup>See Subdiv. VII): The reader is referred to Subdivision VII of this Division for the prices of these components.

<sup>\*</sup> U/A: These prices will be available only upon final publication.

Rigid plastic socket made from plaster print of beneficiary Passive hand with flexible fingers and prosthetic glove from the Otto Bock company Complete endoskeletal system (modular components and prosthetic cover)

#### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

#### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com        | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|---------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device   | Price         | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |               |                                 |
| Rigid plastic socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary   | N.C.   | \$677.00      | 3                               |
| Complete endoskeletal system  | N.C.   | N/A           |                                 |
| Prosthetic cover  | N.C.   | 211.00        |                                 |
| Passive hand with flexible  | N.C.   | 230.00        |                                 |
| fingers (Otto Bock)<br>Prosthetic glove (Otto Bock)                   | N.C.   | 163.00        |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |               |                                 |
| Metal elbow joints, flexible<br>Silicone suspension lining<br>for arm | \$281.00<br>U/A                                  | 335.00<br>U/A |                                 |
| Other pertinent optional components                                   | (See Subdiv. VII                                 | (See Subo     | div. VII)                       |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |               |                                 |
| Prosthetic sock   | U/A  | U/A           |                                 |
| Stump sock  | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div.     | III)                            |
| Nylon stump sheath  | U/A  | U/A           |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |               |                                 |
| Other pertinent adjustment  |  |               |                                 |
|   |  |               | Prie                            |

DEVICE

Exoskeletal cubital or wrist prosthetic restoration

534

Passive hand with flexible fingers and prosthetic glove from the Otto Bock company Socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Wrist friction joint

#### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

#### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of | of com           | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device                                 | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |
| Socket made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary  | N.C.                                   | \$677.00         | 3                               |
| Wrist friction joint<br>Passive hand with flexible<br>fingers from the Otto Bock<br>company | N.C.<br>N.C.                           | 238.00<br>230.00 |                                 |
| Prosthetic glove from the<br>Otto Bock company  | N.C.                                   | 163.00           |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Suspension harness  | 82.00                                  | 114.00           |                                 |
| Other pertinent optional components   | (See Subdiv. VII                       | ) (See Sub       | div. VII)                       |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sheath  | (See Div. III)<br>U/A                  | (See Div.<br>U/A | III)                            |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
|   |  | Price            |                                 |
| Lengthening of prosthesis   |  | \$187.00         | 3                               |

Other pertinent adjustment

#### DEVICE

Cubital prosthesis with multiple-action joints

# BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Wrist friction joint Rigid plastic socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Forearm restoration Multiple-action elbow joints Suspension harness Armband Control cable, connections, terminals and housing (reinforced materials)

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

#### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------|----------------------------------|
|  | utvict   | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |          |                                  |
| Rigid plastic socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary            | N.C.   | \$854.00 | 3                                |
| Wrist friction joint   | N.C.   | 238.00   |                                  |
| Multiple-action elbow joints   | N.C.   | 426.00   |                                  |
| Forearm restoration  | N.C.   | 318.00   |                                  |
| Suspension harness   | N.C.   | 114.00   | 3                                |
| Control cable, connections,<br>terminals and housing<br>(reinforced materials) | N.C.   | 142.00   | 3                                |
| Armband  | N.C.   | 136.00   | 3                                |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |          |                                  |
| Anchoring part for cable<br>for passive hand and hook                          | 28.00  | 45.00    | 3                                |
| Other pertinent optional components  | (See Subdiv. VII)                                | (See S   | ubdiv. VII)                      |

\$1 642.00

Price

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|------------------|---------------------------------|
|  |  | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sheath   | (See Div. III)<br>U/A                            | (See Div.<br>U/A | III)                            |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |
|  |  | Price            |                                 |
| Lengthening of prosthesis  |  | \$187.00         | 3                               |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |                  |                                 |
| §4. Cubitohumeral prostheses   |  |                  |                                 |
|  |  |                  | Price                           |
| DEVICE   |  |                  |                                 |
| Exoskeletal cubitohumeral prosthesis   |  |                  | \$2 220.00                      |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Wrist friction joint<br>Rigid plastic socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>Forearm restoration<br>Joints with external lock, model E-500 or E-1500<br>Suspension harness<br>Control cables (2) |  |                  |                                 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |                  |                                 |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------|---------------------------------|
|   | utvitt   | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)                                |  |          |                                 |
| Rigid plastic socket made<br>from plaster imprint | N.C.   | \$878.00 | 3                               |
| of beneficiary<br>Wrist friction joint            | N.C.   | 238.00   |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con    | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|-----------|----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price     | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| Joints with external lock,<br>model E-500 or E-1500          | N.C.   | 845.00    |                                  |
| Forearm restoration  | N.C.   | 318.00    | 3                                |
| Suspension harness   | N.C.   | 122.00    | 3                                |
| Control cables (2)   | N.C.   | 181.00/ea | 3                                |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |           |                                  |
| Flexion assist mechanism                                     | 273.00   | 321.00    | 3                                |
| Anchoring part for cable                                     | 28.00  | 45.00     | 3                                |
| for passive hand and hook                                    | 20100  | 10100     | 0                                |
|  |  |           |                                  |
| Other pertinent optional                                     | (See Subdiv. VII                                 | ) (See S  | ubdiv. VII)                      |
| components   |  |           |                                  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)                                      |  |           |                                  |
| Stump sock   | (See Div. III)                                   | (See Div. | III)                             |
| Nylon stump sheath   | U/A  | U/A       | ,                                |
|  |  | Price     |                                  |
|  |  |           |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)                                      |  |           |                                  |
| Lengthening of cubital part of                               |  | \$187.00  | 3                                |
| prosthesis   |  | φ107.00   | 5                                |
|  |  |           |                                  |
| Other pertinent adjustment                                   |  |           |                                  |
| <i>§5.</i> Humeral prostheses                                |  |           |                                  |
|  |  |           | Price                            |
| DEVICE   |  |           |                                  |
| Exoskeletal humeral prosthesis                               |  |           | \$2 224.00                       |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)                         |  |           |                                  |
| Wrist friction joint   |  |           |                                  |
| Rigid plastic socket made from                               |  |           |                                  |
| plaster imprint of beneficiary                               |  |           |                                  |
| Forearm restoration<br>Elbow with internal lock, model E-400 |  |           |                                  |
| Suspension harness   |  |           |                                  |
| Control cables (2)   |  |           |                                  |

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

Control cables (2)

Part 2

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com           | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|------------------|---------------------------------|
|   |  | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |
| Rigid plastic socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary | N.C.   | \$857.00         | 3                               |
| Wrist friction joint  | N.C.   | 238.00           |                                 |
| Elbow with internal lock,<br>model E-400                            | N.C.   | 734.00           |                                 |
| Forearm restoration   | N.C.   | 318.00           | 3                               |
| Suspension harness  | N.C.   | 122.00           | 3                               |
| Control cables (2)  | N.C.   | 181.00/ea        | 3                               |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Anchoring part for cable<br>for passive hand and hook               | 28.00  | 45.00            | 3                               |
| Flexion assist mechanism  | 189.00   | 237.00           | 3                               |
| Nudge control   | 321.00   | 372.00           | 3                               |
| Other pertinent optional components                                 | (See Subdiv. VII                                 | ) (See Subd      | iv. VII)                        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sheath                                    | (See Div. III)<br>U/A                            | (See Div.<br>U/A | III)                            |
|   |  | Price            |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Lengthening of cubital part of prosthesis                           |  | \$187.00         | 3                               |
| Other pertinent adjustment  |  |                  |                                 |
|   |  |                  | Price                           |
| DEVICE  |  |                  |                                 |
|   |  |                  | ¢1.056.00                       |

\$1 856.00

Rigid plastic socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Passive hand with flexible fingers and prosthetic glove from the Otto Bock company Complete endoskeletal system (modular components and prosthetic cover) Suspension harness

#### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

#### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com           | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device   | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |
| Rigid plastic socket made<br>from plaster imprint of<br>beneficiary | N.C.   | \$857.00         | 3                               |
| Complete endoskeletal system  | N.C.   | N/A              |                                 |
| Prosthetic cover  | N.C.   | 249.00           |                                 |
| Suspension harness  | N.C.   | 122.00           | 3                               |
| Passive hand with flexible<br>fingers from the Otto<br>Bock company | N.C.   | 230.00           |                                 |
| Prosthetic glove from<br>the Otto Bock company                      | N.C.   | 163.00           |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Flexion wrist   | 216.00   | 324.00           |                                 |
| Shoulder-activated lock<br>elbow                                    | 247.00   | 634.00           |                                 |
| Other pertinent optional components                                 | (See Subdiv. VII                                 | ) (See Subo      | div. VII)                       |
| Anchoring part for cable<br>for passive hand and hook               | 28.00  | 45.00            |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Prosthetic sock   | U/A  | U/A              |                                 |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sheath                                    | (See Div. III)<br>U/A                            | (See Div.<br>U/A | III)                            |

#### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

#### Other pertinent adjustment

#### §6. Glenohumeral and thoracic prostheses

#### DEVICE

Exoskeletal glenohumeral prosthesis

#### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Wrist friction joint Rigid plastic socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Forearm restoration Elbow with internal lock, model E-400 Flexion assist mechanism Arm restoration Shoulder joint, model FAJ-100 Suspension harness Control cables (2), connections, terminals and housing (reinforced materials and pulley)

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months** 

#### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com                     | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device   | Price                      | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                            |                                 |
| Rigid plastic socket made<br>from plaster imprint of<br>beneficiary                               | N.C.   | \$1 163.00                 | 3                               |
| Suspension harness  | N.C.   | 130.00                     | 3                               |
| Control cables (2),<br>connections, terminals and<br>housing (reinforced materials<br>and pulley) | N.C.   | 288.00                     | 3                               |
| Wrist friction joint<br>Elbow with internal lock,<br>model E-400                                  | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | 238.00<br>734.00           |                                 |
| Forearm restoration<br>Arm restoration<br>Shoulder joint, model FAJ-100                           | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.                             | 318.00<br>264.00<br>515.00 | 3<br>3                          |
| Flexion assist mechanism  | N.C.   | 237.00                     | 3                               |

Price

\$3 355.00

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con          | acement<br>aponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|-----------------|----------------------------------|
|   | utile  | Price           | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                 |                                  |
| Nudge control<br>Anchoring part for cable<br>for passive hand and hook  | 321.00<br>28.00                                  | 372.00<br>45.00 | 3<br>3                           |
| Other pertinent optional components   | (See Subdiv. VII)                                | (See Subd       | iv. VII)                         |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                 |                                  |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sheath  | (See Div. III)<br>U/A                            | (See Div.       | III)<br>U/A                      |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |                 |                                  |
|   |  | Price           |                                  |
| Lengthening of cubital part of prosthesis   |  | \$187.00        | 3                                |
|   |  |                 | Price                            |
| DEVICE  |  |                 |                                  |
| Endoskeletal glenohumeral<br>prosthetic restoration   |  |                 | \$2 429.00                       |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                 |                                  |
| Rigid plastic socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>Passive hand with flexible<br>fingers and prosthetic glove<br>from the Otto Bock company<br>Complete endoskeletal system<br>(modular components and prosthetic cover)<br>Suspension harness |  |                 |                                  |

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

542

Part 2

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com                    | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|---------------------------|---------------------------------|
|  | utvite   | Price                     | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                           |                                 |
| Rigid plastic socket made<br>from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary  | N.C.   | \$1 163.00                |                                 |
| Complete endoskeletal system   | N.C.   | N/A                       |                                 |
| Prosthetic cover   | N.C.   | 290.00                    |                                 |
| Suspension harness   | N.C.   | 130.00                    |                                 |
| Passive hand with flexible<br>fingers from the Otto<br>Bock company  | N.C.   | 230.00                    |                                 |
| Prosthetic glove from the<br>Otto Bock company   | N.C.   | 163.00                    |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                           |                                 |
| Wrist friction joint<br>Shoulder-activated lock elbow<br>Anchoring part for cable<br>for passive hand and hook | 216.00<br>247.00<br>28.00                        | 324.00<br>633.00<br>45.00 | 3                               |
| Other pertinent optional components  | (See Subdiv. VII                                 | ) (See Subd               | liv. VII)                       |
| Nudge control where<br>shoulder-activated lock<br>elbow is used  | 321.00   | 372.00                    | 3                               |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                           |                                 |
| Prosthetic sock<br>Stump sock  | U/A<br>(See Div. III)                            | U/A<br>(See Div.          | III)                            |
| Nylon stump sheath   | (See DIV. III)<br>U/A                            | U/A                       | 111)                            |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                           |                                 |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |                           |                                 |
|  |  |                           | Price                           |

DEVICE

Exoskeletal thoracic prosthesis

\$3 629.00

Wrist friction joint Rigid plastic socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Forearm restoration Elbow with internal lock, model E-400 Flexion assist mechanism Arm restoration Shoulder joint, model FAJ-100 Suspension harness Control cables (2), connections, terminals and housing (reinforced materials and pulley)

#### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

#### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con          | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|-----------------|---------------------------------|
|   | device   | Price           | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                 |                                 |
| Rigid plastic socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary                               | N.C.   | \$1 440.00      | 3                               |
| Suspension harness  | N.C.   | 130.00          | 3                               |
| Control cables (2),<br>connections, terminals<br>and housing (reinforced<br>materials and pulley) | N.C.   | 288.00          | 3                               |
| Wrist friction joint  | N.C.   | 238.00          |                                 |
| Elbow with internal lock,<br>model E-400  | N.C.   | 734.00          |                                 |
| Forearm restoration   | N.C.   | 318.00          | 3                               |
| Arm restoration   | N.C.   | 264.00          | 3                               |
| Shoulder joint,<br>model FAJ-100  | N.C.   | 515.00          |                                 |
| Flexion assist mechanism  | N.C.   | 237.00          | 3                               |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                 |                                 |
| Nudge control<br>Anchoring part for cable<br>for passive hand and hook                            | 321.00<br>28.00                                  | 372.00<br>45.00 | 3<br>3                          |
| Other pertinent optional  | (See Subdiv. VI                                  | I) (See Subo    | div. VII)                       |

components

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | nent of compone<br>of supplem |                          |
|--|--|-------------------------------|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price                         | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                               |                          |
| Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sock   | (See Div. III)<br>U/A                            | (See Div.<br>U/A              | III)                     |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                               |                          |
|  |  | Price                         |                          |
| Lengthening of cubital part<br>of prosthesis   |  | \$187.00                      | 3                        |
|  |  |                               | Price                    |
| DEVICE   |  |                               |                          |
| Endoskeletal thoracic prosthetic restoration   |  |                               | \$2 671.00               |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                               |                          |
| Rigid plastic socket made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary<br>Passive hand with flexible fingers<br>and prosthetic glove from the Otto Bock company<br>Complete endoskeletal system (modular<br>components and prosthetic cover)<br>Suspension harness |  |                               |                          |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |                               |                          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                               |                          |

|   | replacement of<br>price of<br>device | of com        | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |  |
|---|--------------------------------------|---------------|--|--|
|   |                                      | Price         | Guarantee<br>(in months)                     |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |                                      |               |  |  |
| Rigid plastic socket<br>made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary | N.C.                                 | \$1 440.00    | 3  |  |
| Endoskeletal system<br>Prosthetic cover                             | N.C.<br>N.C.                         | N/A<br>290.00 |  |  |
| Suspension harness  | N.C.                                 | 130.00        | 3  |  |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|---|--|--|--------------------------|
|   | device                                 | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| Passive hand with flexible<br>fingers from the Otto   | N.C.                                   | 230.00                                       |                          |
| Bock company<br>Prosthetic glove from the<br>Otto Bock company  | N.C.                                   | 163.00                                       |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Flexion wrist<br>Shoulder-activated lock elbow<br>Anchoring part for cable<br>for passive hand and hook | 216.00<br>247.00<br>28.00              | 324.00<br>633.00<br>45.00                    | 3                        |
| Other pertinent optional components   | (See Subdiv. VII                       | ) (See Subo                                  | div. VII)                |
| Nudge control where<br>shoulder-activated lock<br>elbow is used   | 321.00                                 | 372.00                                       | 3                        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Prosthetic sock<br>Stump sock<br>Nylon stump sheath   | U/A<br>(See Div. III)<br>U/A           | U/A<br>(See Div.<br>U/A                      | III)                     |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Other pertinent adjustment  |  |  |                          |
| §7. Basic and optional components for upper limb prostheses   |  |  |                          |

# WRISTS, HOOKS, HANDS, PROSTHETIC GLOVES, ELBOW JOINTS, SHOULDER JOINTS AND OTHERS

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |
|--|--|--|
| WRISTS FOR ENDOSKELETAL PROSTHESES                             |  |  |
| Quick disconnect wrist<br>including a socket,<br>model FM-100  | \$44.00  | \$282.00                                     |
| Quick disconnect wrist<br>including a socket,<br>model FM-100S | 351.00   | 589.00                                       |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |
|--|--|--|
| Quick disconnect wrist                           | 32.00  | 270.00                                       |
| including a socket,                              |  |  |
| model WD-400                                     | 105.00   | 2 (2 0)                                      |
| Quick disconnect wrist                           | 125.00   | 363.00                                       |
| including a socket,                              |  |  |
| model WD-400 S                                   | 372.00   | 610.00                                       |
| Quick disconnect wrist,<br>including a socket,   | 372.00   | 010.00                                       |
| model WD-400 SS                                  |  |  |
| Wrist for child,                                 | N.C.   | 237.00                                       |
| model CAPP                                       | 11.0.  | 237.00                                       |
| Flexion wrist for child,                         | 56.00  | 294.00                                       |
| CAPP model                                       |  |  |
| Flexion wrist, models                            | 138.00   | 376.00                                       |
| FW-200, FW-300, FW-500                           |  |  |
| Flexion wrist, model                             | 504.00   | 742.00                                       |
| FW-500S  |  |  |
| Flexion wrist, model                             | 240.00   | 478.00                                       |
| 18-00  |  |  |
| Flexion wrist, model                             | 246.00   | 484.00                                       |
| WF-50  | 22.00  | 22.00  |
| Extra socket for                                 | 33.00  | 33.00  |
| wrist WD-400                                     | 72.00  | 72.00  |
| Extra socket for wrist<br>WD-400 S and WD-400 SS | 73.00  | 73.00  |
| Extra socket for                                 | 45.00  | 45.00  |
| wrist FM-100                                     | 45.00  | 45.00  |
| witst FWI-100                                    |  |  |
| HOOKS  |  |  |
| Dorrance hook, farmer-type,                      | \$1 385.00                                       | \$1 417.00                                   |
| model 6  |  |  |
| Dorrance hook, farmer-type,                      | 773.00   | 806.00                                       |
| model 7Lo  | 1.00-00  |  |
| APRL hook, model 302-00                          | 1 097.00   | 1 130.00                                     |
| Sierra hook                                      | 1 365.00   | 1 398.00                                     |
| Hook, model 99 X (or                             | 399.00   | 432.00                                       |
| equivalent: usage, form, cost)                   |  |  |
| (10X, 10P, 99X8, 88X5, 5X, 5XA)                  | 424.00   | 166.00                                       |
| Hook, model 12P<br>Hook, model 99P               | 434.00<br>434.00                                 | 466.00<br>466.00                             |
| HOOK, MODEL 99P                                  | 434.00   | 400.00                                       |
| PASSIVE HANDS FOR PROSTHETIC RESTORATION         |  |  |
| Steemen hand for shild                           | ¢27.00   | \$250 AA                                     |
| Steeper hand for child,                          | \$26.00  | \$358.00                                     |
| including prosthetic glove,                      |  |  |
| installation included                            | 20.00  | 270.00                                       |
| Centri hand for child                            | 38.00  | 370.00                                       |
| including prosthetic glove,                      |  |  |
| instanation included                             |  |  |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |
|---|--|--|
| Hand for adult, Hosmer model,<br>including prosthetic glove,<br>installation included                               | 82.00  | 413.00                                       |
| Hand for adult, Otto Bock model,<br>including prosthetic glove,<br>installation included                            | N.C.   | 332.00                                       |
| PASSIVE HANDS FOR FUNCTIONAL PROSTHESES   |  |  |
| Steeper hand for child,<br>including prosthetic glove,<br>installation included                                     | \$313.00   | \$358.00                                     |
| Centri hand for child<br>including prosthetic glove,<br>installation included                                       | 324.00   | 370.00                                       |
| Hand for adult, Hosmer model,<br>including prosthetic glove,<br>installation included                               | 368.00   | 413.00                                       |
| Hand for adult, Otto Bock<br>model, including prosthetic<br>glove, installation included                            | 286.00   | 332.00                                       |
| MECHANICAL HANDS  |  |  |
| Sierra hand VO, including<br>prosthetic glove,<br>installation included   | \$1 549.00                                       | \$1 595.00                                   |
| Voluntary opening APRL hand<br>and prosthetic glove,<br>installation included                                       | 1 766.00   | 1 812.00                                     |
| Voluntary closing Otto Bock<br>hand 8K15 and prosthetic<br>glove, installation included                             | 744.00   | 789.00                                       |
| Voluntary closing Otto Bock<br>hand 8K25 and prosthetic<br>glove, installation included                             | 744.00   | 789.00                                       |
| Voluntary closing Otto Bock<br>hand 8K21, 8K23 and prosthetic<br>glove, installation included                       | 474.00   | 519.00                                       |
| Voluntary closing Otto Bock<br>hand 8K27 and prosthetic<br>glove, installation included,<br>for endoskeletal system | 569.00   | 615.00                                       |
| Becker Imperial hand,<br>prosthetic glove and protective<br>glove, installation included                            | 743.00   | 788.00                                       |
| Robin Aid hand RA-100 and<br>prosthetic glove (Realistic),<br>installation included                                 | 675.00   | 720.00                                       |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |
|--|--|--|
| Dorrance hand including<br>prosthetic glove (Realistic),   | 1 273.00   | 1 318.00                                     |
| installation included<br>Voluntary closing APRL<br>hand and prosthetic glove<br>(Realistic), installation included | 1 766.00   | 1 812.00                                     |
| Becker hand BLG-100 and<br>prosthetic glove (Realistic),<br>installation included                                  | 698.00   | 743.00                                       |
| Robin Aid hand RA-200 and<br>prosthetic glove (Realistic)<br>installation included                                 | 675.00   | 720.00                                       |
| Becker hand BP-100 and<br>prosthetic glove (Realistic),<br>installation included                                   | 556.00   | 602.00                                       |
| MITTS FOR CHILD SUBSTITUTED FOR A PASSIVE HAND   |  |  |
| Mitt, Hosmer model,  | N.C.   | \$197.00                                     |
| installation included<br>Mitt, Crawl model and<br>prosthetic glove,<br>installation included                       | 78.00  | 405.00                                       |
| PROSTHETIC GLOVES  |  |  |
| Prosthetic glove (Otto Bock),  | N.C.   | 163.00                                       |
| installation included<br>Prosthetic glove (Realistic),<br>installation included                                    | N.C.   | 200.00                                       |
| ELBOW JOINTS   |  |  |
| External monocentric<br>free-moving locking joint,<br>model E-5500   | 679.00   | 1 102.00                                     |
| External monocentric<br>free-moving locking joint,<br>model E-1500   | 421.00   | 845.00                                       |
| External polycentric<br>free-moving joint,<br>models MA-50, MA-75, MA-100  | 45.00  | 469.00                                       |
| Constant friction elbow for  | N.C.   | 729.00                                       |
| child, model E-50<br>Elbow with internal lock,<br>model E-400HD  | N.C.   | 747.00                                       |
| SHOULDER JOINTS  |  |  |
| Abduction-adduction joint,<br>model SAJ-75   | N.C.   | 370.00                                       |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |
|---|--|--|
| Abduction-adduction joint,<br>model SAJ-100<br>Free movement joint,   | 53.00<br>6.00                                    | 537.00<br>491.00                             |
| Hosmer model<br>Joint, model FS-50, FS-75   | 0.00<br>N.C.                                     | 422.00                                       |
| CONTROLS  |  |  |
| Truncular, abdominal or<br>scapular control, including<br>manufacturing, fitting and<br>installation time as well as<br>materials | 39.00  | 60.00  |
| <b>§8.</b> Upper-limb prostheses  |  |  |
|   |  | Prie   |

#### DEVICE

Other upper-limb prostheses

DURATION OF GUARANTEE:

Hand prostheses: 1 month Other prostheses: 6 months

#### DIVISION III SOCKS FOR UPPER-LIMB AND LOWER-LIMB PROSTHESES

## **Supplements for prostheses**

STUMP SOCKS WOOL 2 — 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                | 10                 | \$7.14  | \$9.14   |
|      |                  | 12                 | 7.77  | 9.87   |
|      |                  | 14                 | 8.72  | 10.82  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 10.29   | 12.29  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 11.03   | 13.02  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 11.87   | 13.97  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 13.13   | 15.12  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 13.97   | 16.07  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 15.44   | 17.54  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |

S.C.

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 7                | 10                 | 7.67  | 9.77   |
|      |                  | 12                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 9.56  | 11.66  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 10.61   | 12.71  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 11.87   | 13.97  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 13.02   | 15.12  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 13.86   | 15.96  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 14.81   | 16.91  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 15.96   | 18.06  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 18.69   | 20.79  |
|      | 8                | 10                 | 8.82  | 10.92  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 9.98  | 11.97  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 10.92   | 13.02  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 12.08   | 14.18  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 13.13   | 15.12  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 15.23   | 17.33  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 16.49   | 18.59  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 17.64   | 19.64  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 18.80   | 20.90  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 19.64   | 21.74  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 20.79   | 22.89  |
|      | 9                | 10                 | 10.08   | 12.18  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 12.50   | 14.60  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 13.55   | 15.65  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 14.91   | 17.01  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 16.07   | 18.17  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 17.22   | 19.32  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 18.27   | 20.37  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 19.53   | 21.63  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 20.79<br>21.84  | 22.89<br>23.84                                 |
|      |                  | 30                 |   | 23.84<br>24.99                                 |
|      |                  | 32                 | 23.00   | 24.99  |
|      | 10               | 10                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 12.29   | 14.39  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 15.02   | 17.01  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 16.17   | 18.27  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 17.54   | 19.64  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 18.80   | 20.90  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 19.95   | 22.05  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 21.11   | 23.10  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 22.47   | 24.57  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 23.73   | 25.75  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 24.99   | 27.09  |

| Part 2 |
|--------|
|        |

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 12               | 10                 | 15.12   | 17.12  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 16.28   | 18.38  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 17.64   | 19.74  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 18.80   | 20.90  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 20.16   | 22.16  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 21.42   | 23.42  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 22.68   | 24.68  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 24.05   | 26.04  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 24.99   | 26.99  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 26.46   | 28.46  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 27.51   | 29.61  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 28.88   | 30.98  |

# WOOL 6 PLY

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                | 10                 | \$7.77  | \$9.87   |
|      |                  | 12                 | 8.61  | 10.71  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 9.56  | 11.66  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 10.40   | 12.50  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 12.18   | 14.18  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 13.13   | 15.12  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 14.39   | 16.49  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 15.33   | 17.43  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 16.17   | 18.27  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 17.01   | 19.11  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 18.06   | 20.16  |
|      | 7                | 10                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 9.35  | 11.45  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 10.61   | 12.60  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 11.66   | 13.76  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 13.13   | 15.12  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 14.28   | 16.38  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 15.33   | 17.43  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.38  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 17.64   | 19.64  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 18.38   | 20.48  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 19.43   | 21.53  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |
|      | 8                | 10                 | 9.77  | 11.76  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 12.08   | 14.18  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 13.34   | 15.44  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 14.39   | 16.49  |

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      |                  | 20                 | 15.65   | 17.64  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 16.80   | 18.90  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 18.06   | 20.16  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 19.32   | 21.42  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 21.74   | 23.84  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 22.89   | 24.99  |
|      | 9                | 10                 | 11.03   | 13.13  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 12.39   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 14.91   | 17.01  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 17.64   | 19.74  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 18.90   | 21.00  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 20.16   | 22.16  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 21.53   | 23.52  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 22.89   | 24.99  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 23.94   | 26.04  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 25.31   | 27.30  |
|      | 10               | 10                 | 12.39   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 13.55   | 15.65  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 15.12   | 17.22  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 17.75   | 19.85  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 19.32   | 21.42  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 22.05   | 24.15  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 23.31   | 25.31  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 24.78   | 26.88  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 26.04   | 28.14  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 27.51   | 29.51  |
|      | 12               | 10                 | 16.59   | 18.69  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 17.85   | 19.95  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 19.43   | 21.53  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 22.16   | 24.26  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 23.63   | 25.62  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 24.99   | 26.99  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 26.46   | 28.46  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 27.41   | 29.51  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 28.98   | 31.08  |
|      |                  | 30                 | 30.35   | 32.34  |
|      |                  | 32                 | 31.71   | 33.81  |

| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|---|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      | 6                | 10                 | \$9.87  | \$11.97  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  | 12                 | 9.87  |  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  | 14                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  | 16                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  | 20                 |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  | 22                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      | 7                |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    | 11.34   | 13.34  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  |                    | 12.92   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  | 24                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      | 8                | 10                 |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    | 12.92   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  | 28                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      | 9                |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  | 42                 | 11.34   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$  |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| 5214.8116.80101011.3413.341212.9214.91                |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| 101011.3413.341212.9214.91                            |      |                  |                    |   |  |
| 12 12.92 14.91  |      | 10               |                    |   |  |
|   |      | 10               |                    |   |  |
| 14 12.02 14.01  |      |                  | 12                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      |                  | 16                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 16.28   | 18.38  |
|      |                  | 40                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                  | 42                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                  | 44                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                  | 46                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                  | 48                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 50                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 52                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      | 12               | 10                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |

# WOOL AND NYLON 6 PLY

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                | 12                 | \$10.92   | \$12.92  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      | 7                | 10                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      | 8                | 10                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 9                | 12                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |

# ULTRA WOOL 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                | 10                 | \$10.92   | \$12.92  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      | 7                | 10                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      | 8                | 10                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      | 9                | 10                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |

| Code | With<br>(inches)  | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 10                | 10                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      | 10                | 12                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      | 12                | 10                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 16.38   | 16.48  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
| Code | Wool and lycra    |                    | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|      | Extra narrow shor | ·t                 |   |  |
|      | Extra light       |                    | \$9.87  | \$11.97  |
|      | Light             |                    | 10.50   | 12.60  |
|      | Thick             |                    | 11.13   | 13.23  |
|      | Very thick        |                    | 11.87   | 13.86  |
|      | Narrow short      |                    |   |  |
|      | Extra light       |                    | 10.50   | 12.60  |
|      | Light             |                    | 11.13   | 13.23  |
|      | Thick             |                    | 11.87   | 13.86  |
|      | Very thick        |                    | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      | Narrow long or wi | de short           |   |  |
|      | Extra light       |                    | 12.18   | 14.18  |
|      | Light             |                    | 12.81   | 14.91  |
|      | Thick             |                    | 13.44   | 15.54  |
|      | Very thick        |                    | 14.07   | 16.17  |
|      | Wide long         |                    |   |  |
|      | Extra light       |                    | 14.07   | 16.17  |
|      | Light             |                    | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      | Thick             |                    | 15.44   | 17.43  |
|      | Very thick        |                    | 16.38   | 18.48  |

558

# COTTON 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches)               | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks     |
|------|------------------|----------------------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                | 10<br>12<br>14                   | \$5.36<br>5.99<br>6.62  | \$7.46<br>8.09<br>8.72                             |
|      |                  | 14<br>16<br>18                   | 7.25<br>7.77  | 9.35<br>9.87                                       |
|      |                  | 20<br>22                         | 8.40<br>9.03  | 10.50<br>11.13                                     |
|      |                  | 24<br>26<br>28                   | 9.98<br>10.61<br>11.24  | 11.97<br>12.71<br>13.34                            |
|      | 7                | 10<br>12                         | 5.88<br>6.51  | 7.88<br>8.51                                       |
|      |                  | 14<br>16<br>18                   | 7.25<br>8.09<br>9.03  | 9.35<br>10.08<br>11.13                             |
|      |                  | 20<br>22                         | 9.05<br>9.87<br>10.61   | 11.15<br>11.97<br>12.60                            |
|      |                  | 24<br>26<br>28                   | 11.34<br>12.18<br>12.81   | 13.34<br>14.18<br>14.81                            |
|      | 8                | 10                               | 6.83  | 8.82   |
|      |                  | 12<br>14<br>16                   | 7.46<br>8.40<br>9.14  | 9.56<br>10.40<br>11.24                             |
|      |                  | 18<br>20<br>22                   | 9.98<br>10.71<br>11.66  | 11.97<br>12.81<br>13.65                            |
|      |                  | 24<br>26<br>28                   | 12.50<br>13.34<br>14.39   | 14.60<br>15.44<br>16.38                            |
|      | 9                | 10                               | 7.67  | 9.77   |
|      |                  | 12<br>14<br>16                   | 8.51<br>9.45<br>10.29   | 10.61<br>11.55<br>12.39                            |
|      |                  | 18<br>20<br>22<br>26             | 11.34<br>12.18<br>13.13<br>14.81                                | 13.44<br>14.28<br>15.96<br>16.91                   |
|      | 10               | 28<br>10                         | 15.86<br>8.51   | 17.96<br>10.61                                     |
|      | 10               | 10<br>12<br>14<br>16<br>18<br>20 | 9.35<br>10.50<br>11.34<br>12.29<br>13.34                        | 10.01<br>11.45<br>12.60<br>13.44<br>14.28<br>15.44 |

| Code | With<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      |                  | 22                 | 14.28   | 16.38  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 15.23   | 17.33  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 16.07   | 18.06  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 17.01   | 19.11  |
|      | 12               | 10                 | 11.55   | 13.55  |
|      |                  | 12                 | 12.29   | 14.39  |
|      |                  | 14                 | 13.44   | 15.54  |
|      |                  | 16                 | 14.39   | 16.38  |
|      |                  | 18                 | 15.33   | 17.33  |
|      |                  | 20                 | 16.28   | 18.38  |
|      |                  | 22                 | 17.22   | 19.32  |
|      |                  | 24                 | 18.27   | 20.27  |
|      |                  | 26                 | 19.01   | 21.11  |
|      |                  | 28                 | 19.95   | 22.05  |

# WOOL SOCKS 5 PLY

| Code | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 12                 | \$6.83  | \$8.82   |
|      | 13                 | 7.14  | 9.14   |
|      | 14                 | 7.25  | 9.35   |
|      | 15                 | 7.77  | 9.77   |
|      | 16                 | 7.98  | 10.08  |
|      | 18                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |

# WOOL SOCKS 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | Width (Min.)<br>(inches) | Width (Max.)<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 3, 3.5, 4                | 6                        | 8                  | \$6.93  | \$9.03   |
|      | 3                        |                          | 10                 | 6.93  | 9.03   |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 10                 | 7.14  | 9.14   |
|      | 4                        |                          | 10                 | 7.35  | 9.45   |
|      | 3                        |                          | 12                 | 7.67  | 9.77   |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 12                 | 7.77  | 9.87   |
|      | 4                        |                          | 12                 | 8.09  | 10.08  |
|      | 3                        |                          | 14                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 14                 | 8.72  | 10.82  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 14                 | 8.93  | 11.03  |
|      | 3                        |                          | 16                 | 9.24  | 11.34  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 16                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 16                 | 9.77  | 11.87  |
|      | 3.5, 4, 4.5, 5           | 7                        | 8                  | 7.77  | 9.87   |

| Code | Width (Min.)<br>(inches) | Width (Max.)<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 10                 | 7.35  | 9.45   |
|      | 4                        |                          | 10                 | 7.67  | 9.77   |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 10                 | 8.09  | 10.08  |
|      | 5                        |                          | 10                 | 8.72  | 10.82  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 12                 | 8.09  | 10.19  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 12                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 12                 | 8.93  | 11.03  |
|      | 5<br>3.5                 |                          | 12                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 14                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 14                 | 9.56  | 11.66  |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 14                 | 10.08   | 12.08  |
|      | 5                        |                          | 14                 | 10.50   | 12.60  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 16                 | 10.29   | 12.29  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 16                 | 10.61   | 12.71  |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 16                 | 11.03   | 13.02  |
|      | 5                        |                          | 16                 | 11.55   | 13.55  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                | 8                        | 8                  | 8.93  | 11.03  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 10                 | 8.82  | 10.92  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 12                 | 9.87  | 11.97  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 14                 | 10.82   | 12.92  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 16                 | 12.08   | 14.18  |

#### DIVISION IV LOWER-LIMB ORTHOSES

§1. Tibial orthoses

## DEVICE

Tibial orthosis with unilateral upright

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Regular stirrup Ankle free joints, aluminum (1) Rigid metal cuff with leather or thermoplastic jacket, including cover

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months** 

\$300.00

Price

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|------------------|----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                  |
| Regular stirrup<br>Ankle free joints,<br>aluminum (1)  | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$66.00<br>93.00 |                                  |
| Rigid metal cuff with<br>leather or thermoplastic<br>jacket, including cover   | N.C.   | 87.00            | 3                                |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                  |                                  |
| Laminated or molded plastic<br>stirrup from imprint of<br>beneficiary  | 182.00   | 233.00           |                                  |
| Single malleolar strap<br>Double malleolar strap<br>Ankle spring joints,<br>aluminum   | 56.00<br>67.00                                   | 77.00<br>88.00   |                                  |
| Single<br>Ankle free joints,   | 3.00   | 96.00            |                                  |
| stainless steel<br>single<br>Ankle spring joints,<br>stainless steel   | 37.00  | 130.00           |                                  |
| single<br>Double-action ankle spring   | 51.00  | 143.00           |                                  |
| joints, aluminum<br>single<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with  | 21.00<br>39.00                                   | 114.00<br>39.00  |                                  |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, each additional<br>0.6 cm (1/4 in.)   | 13.00  | 13.00            |                                  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                  |                                  |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00   |                                  |
| (an sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00           |                                  |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>oponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------|-----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child                                       | 158.00   | 158.00 |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| Stirrup changeover   |  |        | \$40.00                           |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |        |                                   |
| Tibial orthosis with bilateral uprights  |  |        | \$365.00                          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
| Regular stirrup<br>Ankle free joints, aluminum (2)<br>Rigid metal cuff with leather or<br>thermoplastic jacket, including cover<br>Retention strap |  |        |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |        |                                   |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |

|                                       | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|---------------------------------------|--|--|--------------------------|
|                                       | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)                    |  |  |                          |
| Regular stirrup<br>Ankle free joints, | N.C.   | \$66.00                                      |                          |
| aluminum,<br>pair<br>single           | N.C.   | 155.00<br>93.00                              |                          |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con             | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|--------------------|---------------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price              | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Rigid metal cuff with<br>leather or thermoplastic   | N.C.   | 87.00              |                                 |
| jacket, including cover<br>Retention strap  | N.C.   |                    |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                    |                                 |
| Regular stirrup<br>Laminated or molded plastic<br>stirrup from imprint of   | 29.00<br>182.00                                  | 93.00<br>233.00    |                                 |
| beneficiary<br>Single malleolar strap<br>Double malleolar strap<br>Ankle spring joints, aluminum  | 56.00<br>67.00                                   | 77.00<br>88.00     |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Ankle free joints,  | 6.00   | 161.00<br>96.00    |                                 |
| stainless steel<br>pair<br>single<br>Ankle spring joints,<br>stainless steel  | 74.00  | 229.00<br>130.00   |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Double-action ankle spring joints,<br>aluminum  | 101.00   | 256.00<br>143.00   |                                 |
| pair<br>single  | 43.00  | $198.00 \\ 114.00$ |                                 |
| pair<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with   | 39.00  | 39.00              |                                 |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, each additional<br>0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 13.00  | 13.00              |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                    |                                 |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)   | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00     |                                 |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00             |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement  |
|--|--|--------|-----------------------------------|
|  |  | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child | 158.00   | 158.00 |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| Stirrup changeover   |  |        | \$40.00                           |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |        |                                   |
|  |  |        | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |        |                                   |
| Molded plastic tibial orthosis made from plaster imprint of beneficiary                                      |  |        | \$293.00                          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
| Molded plastic posterior shell<br>extending under foot<br>Calf and foot retention straps                     |  |        |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |        |                                   |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                   |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>1ponent or<br>plement |

# BASIC COMPONENT(S)

Calf and foot retention straps

N.C. \$18.00/ea

Price

Guarantee (in months)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | lacement<br>1ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------|-----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)<br>OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                |                                   |
| External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with  | 39.00  | 39.00          |                                   |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, each additional<br>0.6 cm (1/4 in.)   | 13.00  | 13.00          |                                   |
| Ankle joints:  |  |                |                                   |
| Gilette joints<br>pair<br>single<br>Oklaborna iointa   | 87.00  | 76.00<br>48.00 |                                   |
| Oklahoma joints<br>pair<br>single  | 82.00  | 72.00<br>45.00 |                                   |
| Wafer joints<br>pair<br>single   | 95.00  | 85.00<br>52.00 |                                   |
| Tamarak joints<br>pair<br>single   | 91.00  | 81.00<br>50.00 |                                   |
| Gaffney joints<br>pair<br>single   | 100.00   | 89.00<br>54.00 |                                   |
| Foam complete lining for night orthosis  | 46.00  | 72.00          |                                   |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                                   |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102 5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00         |                                   |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00         |                                   |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con     | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|------------|---------------------------------|
|  | utvitt   | Price      | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00     |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |            |                                 |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |            |                                 |
|  |  |            | Price                           |
| DEVICE   |  |            |                                 |
| Molded plastic tibial orthosis,<br>prefabricated   |  |            | \$133.00                        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |            |                                 |
| Molded plastic rigid posterior shell, one-piece,<br>including calf and extending under foot, prefabricated,<br>or rigid spiral band, one-piece, including calf<br>and extending under foot<br>Calf and foot retention straps |  |            |                                 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |            |                                 |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |            |                                 |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con     | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|  | uevice   | Price      | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |            |                                 |
| Calf and foot retention straps   | N.C.   | \$18.00/ea | 1                               |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |            |                                 |

39.00

39.00

External build-up on orthosis or shoe for limb fitted with orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------|----------------------------------|
|  |  | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, each additional<br>0.6 cm (1/4 in.)   | 13.00  | 13.00          |                                  |
| Foam complete lining<br>for night orthosis   | 46.00  | 72.00          |                                  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                                  |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable   | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                                  |
| <ul> <li>(all sizes)</li> <li>Crutches with forearm support,<br/>height-adjustable from 25 in.</li> <li>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br/>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.</li> <li>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br/>to 41 in. (102.5 cm)</li> </ul> | 118.00   | 118.00         |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00         |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00         |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                |                                  |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |                |                                  |
|  |  |                | Price                            |
| DEVICE   |  |                |                                  |
| Tibial orthosis for leg shortened by<br>7.6 cm (3 in.) or more, excluding any<br>prosthetic knee joint   |  |                | \$1 241.00                       |

S.A.C.H. foot Polyester or acrylic tibial shell with tibial or foot support Retention straps

#### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con                     | lacement<br>aponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------------------|-----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price                      | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                            |                                   |
| S.A.C.H. foot<br>Polyester or acrylic tibial<br>shell with tibial or<br>foot support | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$152.00<br>N/A            |                                   |
| Retention straps   | N.C.   | 18.00/ea                   |                                   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                            |                                   |
| Trial socket<br>Knee free joints,<br>aluminum  | 85.00  | N/A                        |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee joints with ring lock   | 213.00   | 254.00<br>150.00           |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee joints with lock,<br>Swiss-type                               | 220.00   | 262.00<br>154.00           |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Polycentric knee joints  | 268.00   | 316.00<br>213.00           |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Polycentric knee joints<br>for child                               | 238.00   | 279.00<br>159.00           |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Eccentric uniaxial free joints                                     | 287.00   | 328.00<br>183.00           |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Eccentric uniaxial joints  | 223.00   | 264.00<br>151.00           |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Complete or full leather   | 134.00<br>85.00                                  | 304.00<br>175.00<br>211.00 |                                   |
| thigh lacer, without<br>ischiatic support  |  |                            |                                   |
| Thigh lacer with two<br>metal bands with<br>femoral leather jacket                   | 137.00   | 156.00                     |                                   |
| Complete or full leather<br>thigh lacer, with leather<br>ischiatic support           | 164.00   | 290.00                     |                                   |
| Molded plastic femoral<br>shell without ischiatic support                            | 153.00   | 196.00                     |                                   |

Part 2

Abduction rod

Knee cap and straps

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|------------------|----------------------------------|
|   |  | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| Molded plastic femoral<br>shell with molded plastic   | 198.00   | 251.00           |                                  |
| ischiatic support<br>Pelvic belt and metal band<br>Pelvic belt (leather)                      | 159.00<br>N/A                                    | 170.00<br>123.00 |                                  |
| Replacement of metal band of pelvic belt  | N/A<br>N/A                                       | 90.00            |                                  |
| Hip joints (metal part)<br>all types  | 169.00   | 191.00           |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |                  |                                  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |                  |                                  |
| §2. Tibiofemoral orthoses   |  |                  |                                  |
|   |  |                  | Price                            |
| DEVICE  |  |                  |                                  |
| Molded plastic non-articulated tibiofemoral orthosis made from plaster imprint of beneficiary |  |                  | \$414.00                         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                  |                                  |
| Molded plastic splint, thigh, knee and leg<br>Retention straps                                |  |                  |                                  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months   |  |                  |                                  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                  |                                  |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|   | utvitt   | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                  |                                  |
| Retention straps  | N.C.   | \$18.00/ea       |                                  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                  |

73.00

59.00

84.00

80.00

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------|----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 39.00  | 39.00  |                                  |
| External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>each additional 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 13.00  | 13.00  |                                  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |        |                                  |
| Cane   | 21.00  | 21.00  |                                  |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00  |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00 |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00 |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |        |                                  |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |        |                                  |
|  |  |        | Price                            |

## DEVICE

Tibiofemoral orthosis with joints, prefabricated (legend, M.V.P., Edge, Lennox, G.L.S.)

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Metal knee joints Femoral and tibial rigid cuffs Retention straps

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

\$502.00

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | cement of componen<br>ce of supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price                                  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Retention straps   | N.C.   | \$18.00/ea                             |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 39.00  | 39.00                                  |                          |
| External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>each additional 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 13.00  | 13.00                                  |                          |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00                         |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                 |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),  | 158.00   | 158.00                                 |                          |
| for child<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child  | 141.00   | 141.00                                 |                          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |

Any pertinent adjustment

### DEVICE

Tibiofemoral anti-recurvatum knee orthosis, Swedish type, prefabricated \$234.00

Price

# BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Metallic structure Rigid cuffs Retention straps

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------|---------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                |                                 |
| Retention straps   | N.C.   | \$18.00/ea     |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                |                                 |
| External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 39.00  | 39.00          |                                 |
| External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>each additional 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 13.00  | 13.00          |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                                 |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00         |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00         |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00         |                                 |

## AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

## Price

\$610.00

#### DEVICE

Dynamic knee orthosis made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Plastic or metal femoral and tibial rigid cuffs Polycentric knee joints with lock, aluminum Retention straps

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | nent of component of supplement                    |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Polycentric knee joints with<br>lock, aluminum<br>pair<br>single<br>Retention straps   | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | 168.00<br>107.00<br>18.00/ea                       |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Polycentric knee joints<br>with lock, steel<br>Retention straps<br>pair<br>single<br>Turnbuckle<br>Knee cap and straps<br>External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)<br>External build-up on shoe<br>for limb fitted with orthosis,<br>each additional 0.6 cm (1/4 in.) | 18.00<br>48.00<br>59.00<br>39.00<br>13.00        | 187.00<br>116.00<br>N/A<br>80.00<br>39.00<br>13.00 |                          |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)<br>Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)   | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00                                     |                          |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con  | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|---------|---------------------------------|
|  |  | Price   | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00  |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00  |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00  |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |         |                                 |
| None   |  |         |                                 |
|  |  |         | Price                           |
| DEVICE   |  |         |                                 |
| Prefabricated adjustable knee orthosis<br>designed to limit flexion and extension<br>movements (Donjoy, Generation II)   |  |         | \$247.00                        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |         |                                 |
| Plastic cuffs<br>Metal knee joints with ratchet<br>Retention straps  |  |         |                                 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |         |                                 |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |         |                                 |
|  |  |         | Price                           |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |         |                                 |
| Detection stores   | NC   | ¢10.00/ |                                 |

N.C. \$18.00/ea

### AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)

| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary                                  | 21.00<br>49.00 | 21.00<br>49.00 |
|---|----------------|----------------|
| support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)                       |                |                |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                  | 118.00         | 118.00         |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.                                   |                |                |
| (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),                                    |                |                |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.                                   |                |                |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)                                  |                |                |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)  | 158.00         | 158.00         |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in. | 138.00         | 138.00         |
| (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),                                    |                |                |
| for child   |                |                |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                  | 141.00         | 141.00         |
| height-adjustable from 12 in.                                   |                |                |
| (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),                                      |                |                |
| for child   |                |                |
|   |                |                |

## AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

#### Any pertinent adjustment

#### §3. Femoral orthoses

### DEVICE

| Articulated femoral orthosis with    |  |
|--------------------------------------|--|
| rigid metal femoral and tibial cuffs |  |

#### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Regular stirrup Ankle free joints (2), aluminum Knee free joints (2), aluminum Thigh lacer with two rigid metal bands with leather femoral jacket and metal cuff with leather or thermoplastic tibial jacket Retention straps

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

\$834.00

Price

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con                                 | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|--|---------------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price                                  | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                                 |
| Regular stirrup<br>Rigid metal cuff with leather<br>or thermoplastic tibial jacket<br>Ankle free joints<br>aluminum | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$66.00<br>87.00                       |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee free joints<br>aluminum  | N.C.   | 155.00<br>93.00                        |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Thigh lacer with two rigid<br>metal bands with leather<br>femoral jacket<br>Retention straps      | N.C.   | 254.00<br>150.00<br>156.00<br>18.00/ea |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                                 |
| Rectangular stirrup<br>Molded plastic stirrup from<br>imprint of beneficiary<br>Single malleolar strap              | 29.00<br>182.00<br>56.00                         | 93.00<br>233.00<br>77.00               |                                 |
| Double malleolar strap<br>Knee cap and straps<br>Ankle spring joints, aluminum                                      | 67.00<br>59.00                                   | 88.00<br>80.00                         |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Double-action ankle spring<br>joints, aluminum  | 6.00   | 161.00<br>96.00                        |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee joints with ring lock  | 43.00  | 198.00<br>114.00                       |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee joints with lock,<br>Swiss type  | 7.00   | 262.00<br>154.00                       |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Polycentric knee joints   | 81.00  | 316.00<br>181.00                       |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Polycentric knee joints<br>for child  | 51.00  | 279.00<br>159.00                       |                                 |
| pair<br>single  | 100.00   | 328.00<br>183.00                       |                                 |

576

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|------------------|---------------------------------|
|  |  | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Eccentric uniaxial free joints   |  |                  |                                 |
| pair<br>single   | 36.00  | 264.00<br>151.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial ring joints   | <b>5</b> 0.00                                    | 204.00           |                                 |
| pair<br>single   | 50.00  | 304.00<br>175.00 |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with  | 39.00  | 39.00            |                                 |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, each additional   | 13.00  | 13.00            |                                 |
| 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)<br>Complete or full leather<br>thigh lacer, without   | 85.00  | 211.00           |                                 |
| ischiatic support<br>Complete or full leather<br>thigh lacer, with leather<br>ischiatic support  | 164.00   | 290.00           |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |
| Cane   | 21.00  | 21.00            |                                 |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00            |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00           |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00           |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00           |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |

\$774.00

| Price |
|-------|
|       |

## DEVICE

Molded plastic articulated femoral orthosis made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Molded plastic femoral shell Knee free joints, aluminum (2) Molded plastic anterior or posterior tibial shell extending under foot Retention straps

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of com           | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|------------------|---------------------------------|
|  |  | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Molded plastic femoral shell<br>without ischiatic support  | N.C.   | \$196.00         |                                 |
| Molded plastic anterior or<br>posterior tibial shell<br>extending under foot<br>Knee free joints, aluminum | N.C.   | 245.00           |                                 |
| pair<br>single   | N.C.   | 254.00<br>150.00 |                                 |
| Retention strap OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  | N.C.   | 18.00/ea         |                                 |
| Ankle joints:  |  |                  |                                 |
| Gilette joints<br>pair<br>single<br>Oklahoma joints  | 87.00  | 48.00            |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Wafer joints   | 82.00  | 45.00            |                                 |
| pair<br>single<br>Tamarak joints   | 95.00  | 52.00            |                                 |
| pair<br>single   | 91.00  | 50.00            |                                 |

|                                    | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|------------------------------------|--|--------|---------------------------------|
|                                    |  | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Gaffney joints                     |  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 100.00   |        |                                 |
| single                             |  | 54.00  |                                 |
| Single malleolar strap             | 56.00  | 77.00  |                                 |
| Knee cap and straps                | 59.00  | 80.00  |                                 |
| Ankle spring joints, aluminum      |  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 6.00   | 161.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 96.00  |                                 |
| Double-action ankle spring joints, |  |        |                                 |
| aluminum                           | 12.00  | 100.00 |                                 |
| pair                               | 43.00  | 198.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 114.00 |                                 |
| Knee joints with ring lock         | 7.00   | 262.00 |                                 |
| pair                               | 7.00   | 262.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 154.00 |                                 |
| Knee joints with lock, Swiss type  | 81.00  | 216.00 |                                 |
| pair<br>single                     | 81.00  | 316.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints            |  | 181.00 |                                 |
| pair                               | 51.00  | 279.00 |                                 |
| single                             | 51.00  | 159.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints            |  | 159.00 |                                 |
| for child                          |  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 100.00   | 328.00 |                                 |
| single                             | 100.00   | 183.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial joints          |  | 105.00 |                                 |
| pair                               | 36.00  | 264.00 |                                 |
| single                             | 50.00  | 151.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial joints          |  | 101.00 |                                 |
| pair                               | 50.00  | 304.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 175.00 |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis      | 39.00  | 39.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with       |  |        |                                 |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)   |  |        |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis      | 13.00  | 13.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with       |  |        |                                 |
| orthosis, each additional          |  |        |                                 |
| 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)                   |  |        |                                 |
| Molded plastic ischiatic           | 55.00  | N/A    |                                 |
| support                            |  |        |                                 |
| Molded plastic femoral shell       | N/A  | 251.00 |                                 |
| with molded plastic ischiatic      |  |        |                                 |
| support                            |  |        |                                 |
|                                    |  |        |                                 |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------------|---------------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                |                                 |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                                 |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00         |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),   | 158.00   | 158.00         |                                 |
| for child<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00         |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |                |                                 |
|   |  |                | Price                           |
| Stirrup changeover  |  |                | \$40.00                         |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |                |                                 |
|   |  |                | Price                           |
| DEVICE  |  |                |                                 |
| Articulated femoral orthosis with<br>rigid metal femoral cuffs and<br>molded plastic posterior or anterior<br>tibial shell made from plaster imprint of beneficiary                                       |  |                | \$797.00                        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                                 |
| Thigh lacer with two rigid metal bands<br>with femoral leather jacket<br>Knee free joints, aluminum (2)<br>Molded plastic posterior or anterior tibial shell<br>extending under foot<br>Retention straps  |  |                |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | acement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|------------------|----------------------------------|
|  | device   | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                  |
| Thigh lacer with two rigid<br>metal bands with femoral<br>leather jacket                                   | N.C.   | \$156.00         |                                  |
| Molded plastic posterior or<br>anterior tibial shell<br>extending under foot<br>Knee free joints, aluminum | N.C.   | 245.00           |                                  |
| pair<br>single   | N.C.   | 254.00<br>150.00 |                                  |
| Retention straps   | N.C.   | 18.00/ea         |                                  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(s)  |  |                  |                                  |
| Ankle joints:  |  |                  |                                  |
| Gilette joints   | 87.00  |                  |                                  |
| pair<br>single   | 87.00  | 48.00            |                                  |
| Oklahoma joints<br>pair  | 82.00  |                  |                                  |
| single<br>Wafer joints   |  | 45.00            |                                  |
| pair<br>single<br>Tamarak joints   | 95.00  | 52.00            |                                  |
| pair<br>single   | 91.00  | 50.00            |                                  |
| Gaffney joints<br>pair<br>single   | 100.00   | 54.00            |                                  |
| Single malleolar strap   | 56.00  | 77.00            |                                  |
| Knee cap and straps<br>Ankle spring joints, aluminum   | 59.00  | 80.00            |                                  |
| pair<br>single<br>Double-action ankle spring joints,   | 6.00   | 161.00<br>96.00  |                                  |
| aluminum<br>pair   | 43.00  | 198.00           |                                  |
| single<br>Knee joints with ring lock   |  | 114.00           |                                  |
| pair<br>single   | 7.00   | 262.00<br>154.00 |                                  |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------|---------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Knee joints with lock,                 |  |        |                                 |
| Swiss type                             |  |        |                                 |
| pair                                   | 81.00  | 316.00 |                                 |
| single                                 |  | 181.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints                |  |        |                                 |
| pair                                   | 51.00  | 279.00 |                                 |
| single                                 |  | 159.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints                |  |        |                                 |
| for child                              | 100.00   | 220.00 |                                 |
| pair                                   | 100.00   | 328.00 |                                 |
| single                                 |  | 183.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial joints              | 36.00  | 264.00 |                                 |
| pair                                   | 36.00  | 264.00 |                                 |
| single<br>Eccentric uniaxial joints    |  | 151.00 |                                 |
| pair                                   | 50.00  | 304.00 |                                 |
| single                                 | 50.00  | 175.00 |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis          | 39.00  | 39.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with           | 37.00  | 57.00  |                                 |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)       |  |        |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis          | 13.00  | 13.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with           | 15.00  | 15.00  |                                 |
| orthosis, each additional              |  |        |                                 |
| 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)                       |  |        |                                 |
| Complete or full leather               | 85.00  | 211.00 |                                 |
| thigh lacer, without                   |  |        |                                 |
| ischiatic support                      |  |        |                                 |
| Complete or full leather               | 164.00   | 290.00 |                                 |
| thigh lacer, with leather              |  |        |                                 |
| ischiatic support                      |  |        |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)                |  |        |                                 |
| Cane                                   | 21.00  | 21.00  |                                 |
| Crutches with axillary                 | 49.00  | 49.00  |                                 |
| support, height-adjustable             | 19:00  | 19.00  |                                 |
| (all sizes)                            |  |        |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,         | 118.00   | 118.00 |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.          |  |        |                                 |
| (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),           |  |        |                                 |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.          |  |        |                                 |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)         |  |        |                                 |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)                   |  |        |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,         | 158.00   | 158.00 |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 19 in.          |  |        |                                 |
| (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm), for child |  |        |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,         | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 12 in.          |  |        |                                 |
| (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm), for child   |  |        |                                 |

# AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

|   | Price    |
|---|----------|
| Stirrup changeover  | \$40.00  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |          |
|   | Price    |
| DEVICE  |          |
| Articulated femoral orthosis with molded<br>plastic femoral shell made from plaster<br>print of beneficiary and rigid metal cuff<br>with tibial leather jacket  | \$899.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |          |
| Regular stirrup<br>Ankle free joints (2), aluminum<br>Knee free joints (2), aluminum<br>Rigid metal cuff with tibial leather jacket,<br>including cover<br>Molded plastic femoral shell without ischiatic support<br>Retention straps |          |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months   |          |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | replacement of comp<br>price of suppl<br>device Price | placement<br>omponent or<br>opplement |  |
|--|--|---|---------------------------------------|--|
|  | uevice   |   | Guarantee<br>(in months)              |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |   |                                       |  |
| Regular stirrup<br>Rigid metal cuff with<br>leather or thermoplastic tibial<br>jacket, including cover | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$66.00<br>87.00                                      |                                       |  |
| Ankle free joints, aluminum<br>pair<br>single  | N.C.   | 155.00<br>93.00                                       |                                       |  |
| Knee free joints, aluminum<br>pair<br>single   | N.C.   | 254.00<br>150.00                                      |                                       |  |
| Molded plastic femoral shell<br>without ischiatic support  | N.C.   | 196.00  |                                       |  |
| Retention straps   | N.C.   | 18.00/ea  |                                       |  |

|                                    | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|------------------------------------|--|--------|---------------------------------|
|                                    | utile  | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)              |  |        |                                 |
| Rectangular stirrup                | 29.00  | 93.00  |                                 |
| Molded plastic stirrup made        | 182.00   | 233.00 |                                 |
| from imprint of beneficiary        |  |        |                                 |
| Single malleolar strap             | 56.00  | 77.00  |                                 |
| Double malleolar strap             | 67.00  | 88.00  |                                 |
| Knee cap and straps                | 59.00  | 80.00  |                                 |
| Ankle spring joints, aluminum      |  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 6.00   | 161.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 96.00  |                                 |
| Double-action ankle spring joints, |  |        |                                 |
| aluminum                           |  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 43.00  | 198.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 114.00 |                                 |
| Knee joints with ring lock         |  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 7.00   | 262.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 154.00 |                                 |
| Knee joints with lock,             |  |        |                                 |
| Swiss type                         | 21.22  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 81.00  | 316.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 181.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints            |  |        |                                 |
| pair                               | 51.00  | 279.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 159.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints            |  |        |                                 |
| for child                          | 100.00   | 220.00 |                                 |
| pair                               | 100.00   | 328.00 |                                 |
| single                             |  | 193.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial free joints     | 36.00  | 264.00 |                                 |
| pair<br>single                     | 50.00  | 204.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial ring joints     |  | 131.00 |                                 |
| pair                               | 50.00  | 304.00 |                                 |
| single                             | 50.00  | 175.00 |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis      | 39.00  | 39.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with       | 57.00  | 57.00  |                                 |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)   |  |        |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis      | 13.00  | 13.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with       | 15.00  | 10.00  |                                 |
|                                    |  |        |                                 |

or shoe for limb litted with orthosis, each additional 0.6 cm (1/4 in.) Molded plastic ischiatic 55.00 N/A support Molded plastic femoral shell N/A 251.00 with molded plastic ischiatic

support

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | lacement<br>aponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------|-----------------------------------|
|  |  | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                                   |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00         |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00         |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00         |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                |                                   |
|  |  |                | Price                             |
| Stirrup changeover   |  |                | \$40.00                           |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |                |                                   |
|  |  |                | Price                             |
| DEVICE   |  |                |                                   |
| Molded plastic non-articulated femoral orthosis<br>made from plaster imprint of beneficiary  |  |                | \$468.00                          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                |                                   |
| Molded plastic splint, thigh, knee and leg<br>Retention straps   |  |                |                                   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |  |                |                                   |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con                  | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|-------------------------|----------------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price                   | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                         |                                  |
| Retention straps  | N.C.   | \$18.00/ea              |                                  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                         |                                  |
| Knee cap and straps<br>Abduction rod<br>Molded plastic ischiatic  | 59.00<br>73.00<br>55.00                          | 80.00<br>84.00<br>55.00 |                                  |
| support<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 39.00  | 39.00                   |                                  |
| External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, each additional<br>0.6 cm (1/4 in.)  | 13.00  | 13.00                   |                                  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |                         |                                  |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00          |                                  |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                  |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child  | 158.00   | 158.00                  |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child  | 141.00   | 141.00                  |                                  |
| AVALLADI E ADHIGTMENT(C)  |  |                         |                                  |

# AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

### Price

\$634.00

### DEVICE

Articulated femoral orthosis with unilateral upright with rigid metal femoral and tibial cuffs

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Regular stirrup Unilateral ankle free joints (2), aluminum Unilateral knee free joints (2), aluminum Rigid metal cuff with leather femoral and tibial jacket, including cover Retention straps

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component o<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|---|--------------------------|
|  | aevice   | Price                                       | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |   |                          |
| Regular stirrup<br>Rigid metal cuff with<br>leather tibial jacket,         | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$66.00<br>87.00                            |                          |
| including cover<br>Ankle free joint,                                       | N.C.   | 93.00                                       |                          |
| aluminum<br>Knee free joint,<br>aluminum                                   | N.C.   | 150.00                                      |                          |
| Rigid metal cuff with<br>leather femoral jacket,                           | N.C.   | 156.00                                      |                          |
| including cover<br>Retention straps  | N.C.   | 18.00/ea                                    |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |   |                          |
| Molded or laminated plastic<br>stirrup made from imprint<br>of beneficiary | 182.00   | 233.00                                      |                          |
| Single malleolar strap   | 56.00  | 77.00                                       |                          |
| Double malleolar strap   | 67.00  | 88.00                                       |                          |
| Knee cap and straps  | 59.00  | 80.00                                       |                          |
| Ankle spring joint, aluminum   | 3.00   | 96.00                                       |                          |
| Double-action ankle<br>spring joint, aluminum                              | 21.00  | 114.00                                      |                          |
| Knee joint with ring lock  | 4.00   | 154.00                                      |                          |
| Eccentric uniaxial free joint  | 18.00  | 151.00                                      |                          |
| -  |  |   |                          |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con                    | lacement<br>aponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|---------------------------|-----------------------------------|
|  |  | Price                     | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| Eccentric uniaxial ring joint<br>Hip joint (metal part),<br>all kinds  | 25.00<br>169.00                                  | 175.00<br>191.00          |                                   |
| Pelvic belt and metal band<br>Pelvic belt (leather)<br>Replacement of metal band of  | 159.00<br>N/A<br>N/A                             | 170.00<br>123.00<br>90.00 |                                   |
| pelvic belt<br>External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)   | 39.00  | 39.00                     |                                   |
| External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with<br>orthosis, each additional<br>0.6 cm (1/4 in.)   | 13.00  | 13.00                     |                                   |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                           |                                   |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00            |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                    |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                    |                                   |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00                    |                                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                           |                                   |

|                    | Price   |
|--------------------|---------|
| Stirrup changeover | \$40.00 |

Other pertinent adjustment

# §4. Coxofemoral orthoses

|   |  |  | Price                    |
|---|--|--|--------------------------|
| DEVICE  |  |  |                          |
| Articulated coxofemoral orthosis with rigid metal femoral and tibial cuffs  |  |  | \$1 010.00               |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Regular stirrup<br>Ankle free joints (2), aluminum<br>Knee free joints (2), aluminum<br>Thigh lacer with two rigid metal bands with<br>leather femoral jacket, including cover,<br>and rigid metal cuff with leather or<br>thermoplastic tibial jacket<br>Hip joint (metal part), all types<br>Retention straps |  |  |                          |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months   |  |  |                          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|   | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Regular stirrup<br>Ankle free joints  | N.C.   | \$66.00                                      |                          |
| aluminum<br>pair<br>single  | N.C.   | 155.00<br>93.00                              |                          |
| Retention straps  | N.C.   | 18.00/ea                                     |                          |
| Rigid metal cuff with leather<br>or thermoplastic tibial jacket   | N.C.   | 87.00  |                          |
| Knee free joints<br>aluminum  |  |  |                          |
| pair  | N.C.   | 254.00                                       |                          |
| single  |  | 150.00                                       |                          |
| Thigh lacer with two rigid<br>metal bands with leather<br>femoral jacket, including cover   | N.C.   | 156.00                                       |                          |
| Hip joint (metal part),<br>all types  | N.C.   | 191.00                                       |                          |

Part 2

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|----------|---------------------------------|
|   | utrice   | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)                                     |  |          |                                 |
| Pelvic belt and metal band                                | 159.00   | 170.00   |                                 |
| Replacement of metal band                                 | N/A  | 90.00    |                                 |
| of pelvic belt  |  |          |                                 |
| Pelvic belt (leather)                                     | N/A  | 123.00   |                                 |
| Rectangular stirrup                                       | 29.00  | 93.00    |                                 |
| Molded plastic stirrup                                    | 182.00   | 233.00   |                                 |
| from imprint  |  |          |                                 |
| of beneficiary  |  |          |                                 |
| Single malleolar strap                                    | 56.00  | 77.00    |                                 |
| Knee cap and straps                                       | 59.00  | 80.00    |                                 |
| Ankle spring joints, aluminum                             | <b>*</b> < • •                                   | <b>.</b> |                                 |
| pair  | \$6.00   | \$161.00 |                                 |
| single  |  | 96.00    |                                 |
| Double-action ankle spring                                |  |          |                                 |
| joints, aluminum  | 12.00  | 109.00   |                                 |
| pair  | 43.00  | 198.00   |                                 |
| single<br>Knee joints with ring lock                      |  | 114.00   |                                 |
| pair  | 7.00   | 262.00   |                                 |
| single  | 7.00   | 154.00   |                                 |
| Knee joints with lock,                                    |  | 134.00   |                                 |
| Swiss type  |  |          |                                 |
| pair  | 81.00  | 316.00   |                                 |
| single  | 01.00  | 181.00   |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints                                   |  | 101.00   |                                 |
| pair  | 51.00  | 279.00   |                                 |
| single  |  | 159.00   |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints                                   |  |          |                                 |
| for child   |  |          |                                 |
| pair  | 100.00   | 328.00   |                                 |
| single  |  | 183.00   |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial free joints                            |  |          |                                 |
| pair  | 36.00  | 264.00   |                                 |
| single  |  | 151.00   |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial ring joints                            | <b>5</b> 0.00                                    | 204.00   |                                 |
| pair  | 50.00  | 304.00   |                                 |
| single  | 20.00  | 175.00   |                                 |
| External build-up on                                      | 39.00  | 39.00    |                                 |
| orthosis or shoe for limb                                 |  |          |                                 |
| fitted with orthosis,<br>first $0 \in am(1/4 \text{ in})$ |  |          |                                 |
| first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)                                    | 12.00  | 12.00    |                                 |
| External build-up on<br>orthosis or shoe for limb         | 13.00  | 13.00    |                                 |
| fitted with orthosis,                                     |  |          |                                 |
| each additional 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)                          |  |          |                                 |
|   |  |          |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------|----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| Complete or full leather<br>thigh lacer, without   | 85.00  | 211.00         |                                  |
| ischiatic support<br>Complete or full leather<br>thigh lacer,<br>with leather ischiatic support  | 164.00   | 290.00         |                                  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                                  |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable   | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                                  |
| (all sizes)<br>Crutches with forearm<br>support, height-adjustable<br>from 25 in. (62.5 cm) to<br>31 in. (79 cm), from 30 in.<br>(77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00         |                                  |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)<br>Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00         |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm), for child  | 141.00   | 141.00         |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                |                                  |
|  |  |                | Price                            |
| Stirrup changeover   |  |                | \$40.00                          |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |                |                                  |
|  |  |                | Price                            |
| DEVICE   |  |                |                                  |
| Molded plastic articulated coxofemoral orthosis<br>made from plaster imprint of beneficiary  |  |                | \$932.00                         |

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Molded plastic femoral shell without ischiatic support Knee free joints (2), aluminum Hip joint (metal part), all types Molded plastic posterior or anterior tibial shell extending under foot Retention straps

## **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months**

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|------------------|---------------------------------|
|   |  | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                  |                                 |
| Molded plastic femoral shell<br>without ischiatic support   | N.C.   | \$196.00         |                                 |
| Molded plastic posterior<br>or anterior tibial shell<br>extending under foot<br>Knee free joint, aluminum | N.C.   | 245.00           |                                 |
| pair<br>single  | N.C.   | 254.00<br>150.00 |                                 |
| Hip joint (metal part),   | N.C.   | 191.00           |                                 |
| all types<br>Retention straps   | N.C.   | 18.00/ea         |                                 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                 |
| Pelvic belt and metal band  | 159.00   | 170.00           |                                 |
| Replacement of metal band<br>of pelvic belt   | N/A  | 90.00            |                                 |
| Pelvic belt (leather)   | N/A  | 123.00           |                                 |
| Ankle joints:   |  |                  |                                 |
| Gilette joints<br>pair<br>single  | 87.00  | 48.00            |                                 |
| Oklahoma joints<br>pair<br>single   | 82.00  | 45.00            |                                 |
| Wafer joints<br>pair<br>single  | 95.00  | 52.00            |                                 |
| Tamarak joints<br>pair<br>single  | 91.00  | 50.00            |                                 |

|                                  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con  | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|----------------------------------|--|---------|---------------------------------|
|                                  | dente  | Price   | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Gaffney joints                   |  |         |                                 |
| pair                             | 100.00   |         |                                 |
| single                           |  | 54.00   |                                 |
| Single malleolar strap           | 56.00  | 77.00   |                                 |
| Knee cap and straps              | 59.00  | 80.00   |                                 |
| Ankle spring joints, aluminum    |  |         |                                 |
| pair                             | 6.00   | 161.00  |                                 |
| single                           |  | 96.00   |                                 |
| Double-action ankle              |  |         |                                 |
| spring joints, aluminum          | 10.00  | 100.00  |                                 |
| pair                             | 43.00  | 198.00  |                                 |
| single                           |  | 114.00  |                                 |
| Knee joints with ring lock       | <b>7</b> 00                                      |         |                                 |
| pair                             | 7.00   | 262.00  |                                 |
| single                           |  | 154.00  |                                 |
| Knee joints with lock,           |  |         |                                 |
| Swiss type                       | 01.00  | 21 < 00 |                                 |
| pair                             | 81.00  | 316.00  |                                 |
| single                           |  | 181.00  |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints          | 51.00  | 270.00  |                                 |
| pair                             | 51.00  | 279.00  |                                 |
| single                           |  | 159.00  |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints          |  |         |                                 |
| for child                        | 100.00   | 229.00  |                                 |
| pair                             | 100.00   | 328.00  |                                 |
| single                           |  | 183.00  |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial joints        | 26.00  | 264.00  |                                 |
| pair                             | 36.00  | 264.00  |                                 |
| single                           |  | 151.00  |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial ring joints   | 50.00  | 304.00  |                                 |
| pair<br>single                   | 50.00  | 175.00  |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis    |  | 39.00   |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with     |  | 39.00   |                                 |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.) |  |         |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis    | 13.00  | 13.00   |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with     | 15.00  | 15.00   |                                 |
| orthosis, each additional        |  |         |                                 |
| 0.6  cm (1/4  in.)               |  |         |                                 |
| Molded plastic ischiatic         | 55.00  | N/A     |                                 |
| support                          | 55.00  | 11/11   |                                 |
| Molded plastic femoral shell     | N/A  | 251.00  |                                 |
| with molded plastic ischiatic    | 1 1/2 1  | 201.00  |                                 |
| support                          |  |         |                                 |
| orport.                          |  |         |                                 |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con         | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|----------------|----------------------------------|
|  | dente  | Price          | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |                |                                  |
| Cane<br>Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable   | 21.00<br>49.00                                   | 21.00<br>49.00 |                                  |
| <ul> <li>(all sizes)</li> <li>Crutches with forearm support,<br/>height-adjustable from 25 in.</li> <li>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br/>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.</li> <li>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br/>to 41 in. (102.5 cm)</li> </ul> | 118.00   | 118.00         |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00         |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00         |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |                |                                  |
|  |  |                | Price                            |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |                |                                  |
|  |  |                | Price                            |
| DEVICE   |  |                |                                  |
| Articulated coxofemoral orthosis with<br>rigid metal femoral cuffs and molded plastic<br>posterior or anterior tibial shell made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary  |  |                | \$981.00                         |
| Thigh lacer with two rigid metal bands with<br>leather femoral jacket<br>Knee free joints (2), aluminum<br>Hin joint (metal part) all types  |  |                |                                  |

Hip joint (metal part), all types Molded plastic posterior or anterior tibial shell extending under foot Retention straps

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months** 

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con             | lacement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|--|--|--------------------|-----------------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price              | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |                    |                                   |
| Thigh lacer with two<br>rigid metal bands with<br>leather femoral jacket     | N.C.   | \$156.00           |                                   |
| Molded plastic posterior<br>or anterior tibial shell<br>extending under foot | N.C.   | 245.00             |                                   |
| Knee free joints, aluminum<br>pair<br>single                                 | N.C.   | 254.00<br>150.00   |                                   |
| Retention straps<br>Hip joint (metal part),<br>all types                     | N.C.   | 18.00/ea<br>191.00 |                                   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |                    |                                   |
| Ankle joints:  |  |                    |                                   |
| Gilette joints   | 87.00  |                    |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Oklahoma joints  | 87.00  | 48.00              |                                   |
| pair<br>single   | 82.00  | 45.00              |                                   |
| Wafer joints<br>pair<br>single   | 95.00  | 52.00              |                                   |
| Tamarak joints<br>pair   | 91.00  |                    |                                   |
| single<br>Gaffney joints<br>pair   | 100.00   | 50.00              |                                   |
| single<br>Malleolar strap  | 56.00  | 54.00<br>77.00     |                                   |
| Knee cap and straps<br>Ankle spring joints, aluminum                         | 59.00  | 80.00              |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Double-action ankle  | 6.00   | 161.00<br>96.00    |                                   |
| spring joints, aluminum<br>pair<br>single                                    | 43.00  | 198.00<br>114.00   |                                   |
| Knee joints with ring lock<br>pair<br>single                                 | 7.00   | 262.00<br>154.00   |                                   |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|--------|---------------------------------|
|   | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Knee joints with lock,  |  |        |                                 |
| Swiss type  |  |        |                                 |
| pair  | 81.00  | 316.00 |                                 |
| single  |  | 181.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints   |  |        |                                 |
| pair  | 51.00  | 279.00 |                                 |
| single  |  | 159.00 |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints   |  |        |                                 |
| for child   |  |        |                                 |
| pair  | 100.00   | 328.00 |                                 |
| single  |  | 183.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial joints   |  |        |                                 |
| pair  | 36.00  | 264.00 |                                 |
| single  |  | 151.00 |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial ring joints  | 50.00  | 20100  |                                 |
| pair  | 50.00  | 304.00 |                                 |
| single  | 20.00  | 175.00 |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis   | 39.00  | 39.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with orthosis, first $0.6 \text{ cm} (1/4 \text{ in.})$ |  |        |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis   | 13.00  | 13.00  |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with  | 15.00  | 15.00  |                                 |
| orthosis, each additional   |  |        |                                 |
| 0.6  cm (1/4  in.)  |  |        |                                 |
| Complete or full leather  | 85.00  | 211.00 |                                 |
| thigh lacer,  | 85.00  | 211.00 |                                 |
| without ischiatic support   |  |        |                                 |
| Complete or full leather  | 164.00   | 290.00 |                                 |
| thigh lacer, with leather   | 101.00   | 270.00 |                                 |
| ischiatic support   |  |        |                                 |
| Pelvic belt and metal band  | 159.00   | 170.00 |                                 |
| Replacement of metal band   | N/A  | 90.00  |                                 |
| of pelvic belt  |  |        |                                 |
| Pelvic belt (leather)   | N/A  | 123.00 |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |        |                                 |
| Cane  | 21.00  | 21.00  |                                 |
| Crutches with axillary  | 49.00  | 49.00  |                                 |
| support, height-adjustable  | +7.00  | 77.00  |                                 |
| (all sizes)   |  |        |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,  | 118.00   | 118.00 |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.   | 110.00   | 110.00 |                                 |
| (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),  |  |        |                                 |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.   |  |        |                                 |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)  |  |        |                                 |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)  |  |        |                                 |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con | lacement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|--------|----------------------------------|
|   | utvitt   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child  | 158.00   | 158.00 |                                  |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child  | 141.00   | 141.00 |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |        |                                  |
|   |  |        | Price                            |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |        |                                  |
|   |  |        | Price                            |
| DEVICE  |  |        |                                  |
| Articulated coxofemoral orthosis with<br>molded plastic femoral shell made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary and rigid metal<br>cuff with leather or thermoplastic tibial jacket   |  |        | \$1 131.00                       |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |        |                                  |
| Regular stirrup<br>Ankle free joints (2), aluminum<br>Knee free joints (2), aluminum<br>Rigid metal cuff with leather or thermoplastic<br>tibial jacket, including cover<br>Molded plastic femoral shell without ischiatic support<br>Hip joint (metal part), all types<br>Retention straps |  |        |                                  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months   |  |        |                                  |

| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(3) AND SOTTLEMENT(3)  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con           | lacement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|------------------|-----------------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price            | Guarantee<br>(in months)          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |                  |                                   |
| Regular stirrup<br>Rigid metal cuff with<br>leather or thermoplastic<br>tibial jacket, including cover<br>Ankle free joints<br>aluminum | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | \$66.00<br>87.00 |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee free joints<br>aluminum  | N.C.   | 155.00<br>93.00  |                                   |
| pair<br>single  | N.C.   | 254.00<br>150.00 |                                   |
| Molded plastic femoral shell<br>without ischiatic support   | N.C.   | 196.00           |                                   |
| Hip joint (metal part),<br>all types  | N.C.   | 191.00           |                                   |
| Retention straps  | N.C.   | 18.00/ea         |                                   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |                  |                                   |
| Rectangular stirrup<br>Molded plastic stirrup<br>from imprint of beneficiary  | 29.00<br>182.00                                  | 93.00<br>233.00  |                                   |
| Single malleolar strap  | 56.00  | 77.00            |                                   |
| Double malleolar strap<br>Knee cap and straps<br>Ankle spring joints, aluminum  | 67.00<br>59.00                                   | 88.00<br>80.00   |                                   |
| pair<br>single  | 6.00   | 161.00<br>96.00  |                                   |
| Pelvic belt and metal band  | 159.00   | 170.00           |                                   |
| Replacement of metal band of pelvic belt  | N.A.   | 90.00            |                                   |
| Pelvic belt (leather)<br>Double-action ankle spring<br>joints, aluminum   | N.A.   | 123.00           |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee joints with ring lock  | 43.00  | 198.00<br>114.00 |                                   |
| pair<br>single<br>Knee joints with lock,<br>Swiss type  | 7.00   | 262.00<br>154.00 |                                   |
| pair<br>single  | 81.00  | 316.00<br>181.00 |                                   |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con    | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|---|--|-----------|---------------------------------|
|   | utvitt   | Price     | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| Polycentric knee joints                                       |  |           |                                 |
| pair  | 51.00  | 279.00    |                                 |
| single  |  | 159.00    |                                 |
| Polycentric knee joints                                       |  |           |                                 |
| for child   | 100.00   | 220.00    |                                 |
| pair  | 100.00   | 328.00    |                                 |
| single<br>Eccentric uniaxial free joints                      |  | 183.00    |                                 |
| pair  | 36.00  | 264.00    |                                 |
| single  | 50.00  | 151.00    |                                 |
| Eccentric uniaxial ring joints                                |  | 101100    |                                 |
| pair  | 50.00  | 304.00    |                                 |
| single  |  | 175.00    |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis                                 | 39.00  | 39.00     |                                 |
| or shoe for limb fitted with                                  |  |           |                                 |
| orthosis, first 0.6 cm (1/4 in.)                              | 12.00  | 12.00     |                                 |
| External build-up on orthosis<br>or shoe for limb fitted with | 13.00  | 13.00     |                                 |
| orthosis, each additional                                     |  |           |                                 |
| 0.6  cm (1/4  in.)  |  |           |                                 |
| Molded plastic ischiatic                                      | 55.00  | N/A       |                                 |
| support   |  |           |                                 |
| Molded plastic femoral  | N/A  | 251.00    |                                 |
| shell with molded plastic                                     |  |           |                                 |
| ischiatic support   |  |           |                                 |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)                                       |  |           |                                 |
| Cane  | 21.00  | 21.00     |                                 |
| Crutches with axillary  | 49.00  | 49.00     |                                 |
| support, height-adjustable                                    |  |           |                                 |
| (all sizes)   | 110.00   | 110.00    |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                | 118.00   | 118.00    |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm), |  |           |                                 |
| from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.                                 |  |           |                                 |
| (89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)                                |  |           |                                 |
| to 41 in. (102.5 cm)  |  |           |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                | 158.00   | 158.00    |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 19 in.                                 |  |           |                                 |
| (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),                                  |  |           |                                 |
| for child   |  | 1.1.1.0.5 |                                 |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                | 141.00   | 141.00    |                                 |
| height-adjustable from 12 in.                                 |  |           |                                 |
| (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child                       |  |           |                                 |
|   |  |           |                                 |

# AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

|  | Price            |
|--|------------------|
| Stirrup changeover   | \$40.00          |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |                  |
| <b>§5.</b> Bilateral lower-limb orthoses   |                  |
|  | Price            |
| DEVICE   |                  |
| Femoral derotation orthosis  | \$74.00          |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |                  |
| Metal bar with ratchet, fixed to shoes   |                  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months  |                  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |                  |
| None   |                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |                  |
|  | Price            |
| Shoe changeover (unriveted)<br>Shoe changeover (riveted)                                 | \$19.00<br>26.00 |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |                  |
|  | Price            |
| DEVICE   |                  |
| Coxofemoral derotation orthosis with torsion cable                                       | \$313.00         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |                  |
| Regular stirrup<br>Torsion cable<br>Pelvic belt (leather)<br>Hip free joint (metal part) |                  |
| DUDATION OF CULADANTEE, 6 months   |                  |

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Regular stirrup<br>Torsion cable<br>Hip free joint (metal part)<br>Pelvic belt (leather)   | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.                     | \$66.00<br>71.00<br>59.00<br>84.00           |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Knee joint   | 90.00  | 101.00                                       |                          |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00  |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00                                       |                          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
|  |  |  | Price                    |
| Stirrup changeover   |  |  | \$40.00                  |
| Other pertinent adjustment   |  |  |                          |
|  |  |  | Price                    |
| DEVICE   |  |  |                          |
|  |  |  | <b>\$201.00</b>          |

Pelvifemoral abduction orthosis, custom made

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Two plastic thigh cuffs Metal bar

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

## AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

### DEVICE

Molded plastic pelvifemoral abduction orthosis for child, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Retention straps

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  |  | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Retention straps   | N.C.   | \$18.00/ea                                   |                          |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Abduction rod<br>Extension to feet<br>inclusively<br>Knee cap and straps | 73.00<br>343.00<br>59.00                         | 84.00<br>N/A<br>80.00                        |                          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |

Any pertinent adjustment

\$596.00

Price

|   |  | Price  |  |
|---|--|--|--|
| DEVICE  |  |  |  |
| Pelvifemoral orthosis for young child   |  | \$142.00                                     |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Cloth harness or prefabricated plastic splint   |  |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months   |  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| None  |  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |  |  |
|   |  | Price  |  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |  |
| Articulated pelvifemoral abduction orthosis,<br>"Scottish Rite" type  |  | \$886.00                                     |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Rigid metal cuffs with leather<br>or thermoplastic femoral jacket (2)<br>Metal bar<br>Universal joints<br>Pelvic band<br>Retention straps |  |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months   |  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |  |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |  |
|   | device                                 | Price Guarantee<br>(in months)               |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Rigid metal cuffs (2)<br>with leather or<br>thermoplastic femoral jacket  | N.C. \$1                               | 25.00/ea                                     |  |
| Retention straps  | N.C.                                   | 18.00/ea                                     |  |

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | utvict   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| Crutches with axillary<br>support, height-adjustable<br>(all sizes)  | 49.00  | 49.00  |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 25 in.<br>(62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm),<br>from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.<br>(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm)<br>to 41 in. (102.5 cm) | 118.00   | 118.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 19 in.<br>(47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm),<br>for child   | 158.00   | 158.00                                       |                          |
| Crutches with forearm support,<br>height-adjustable from 12 in.<br>(30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm),<br>for child   | 141.00   | 141.00                                       |                          |

# AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

## Any pertinent adjustment

# §6. Additional components for tibial, femoral and coxofemoral orthoses

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of device<br>(installation<br>included) | Price<br>where provided<br>alone<br>(installation<br>included) |  |
|--|---|--|--|
| Regular stirrup, additional<br>Rectangular stirrup, additional | \$47.00<br>77.00  | \$59.00<br>93.00   |  |
| <b>§7.</b> Lower-limb orthoses                                 |   |  |  |
|  |   | Pric   |  |

## DEVICE

Other lower-limb orthoses

# DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

### DIVISION V UPPER-LIMB ORTHOSES

§1. Hand orthoses that may include the thumb and the other fingers

|   | Price   |
|---|---------|
| DEVICE  |         |
| Prefabricated passive orthosis for<br>proximal interphalangeal and<br>distal interphalangeal joints, first finger           | \$80.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |         |
| Thermoplastic or metal splint<br>Straps   |         |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months   |         |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |         |
| None  |         |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |         |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |         |
|   | Price   |
| DEVICE  |         |
| Prefabricated passive orthosis for proximal<br>interphalangeal and distal interphalangeal<br>joints, each additional finger | \$22.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |         |
| Thermoplastic or metal splint<br>Straps   |         |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months   |         |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |         |
| None  |         |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |         |
|   |         |

|  | Price   |
|--|---------|
| DEVICE   |         |
| Prefabricated dynamic orthosis for<br>proximal interphalangeal joints, first finger              | \$98.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |         |
| Support pads<br>Springs  |         |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months  |         |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |         |
| None   |         |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |         |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |         |
|  | Price   |
| DEVICE   |         |
| Prefabricated dynamic orthosis for<br>proximal interphalangeal joints,<br>each additional finger | \$40.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |         |
| Support pads<br>Springs  |         |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months  |         |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |         |
| None   |         |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |         |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |         |
|  | Price   |

# DEVICE

Prefabricated dynamic orthosis for metacarpophalangeal joints

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Metacarpal bars Phalangeal bars Articular pivots Elastic bands Piano wire Other types of springs

### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

#### DEVICE

Passive thumb orthosis that may include carpometacarpal, metacarpophalangeal and interphalangeal joints, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Molded component, thermoplastic or other material Straps

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months** 

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

|  | Price    |
|--|----------|
| DEVICE   |          |
| Molded plastic passive thumb orthosis,<br>including carpometacarpal, metacarpophalangeal<br>and interphalangeal joints, made from imprint<br>of beneficiary or prefabricated | \$121.00 |

Price

\$185.00

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Molded component, thermoplastic Straps

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months** 

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

# Price DEVICE Dynamic thumb orthosis that may include carpometacarpal, metacarpophalangeal or interphalangeal joints, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S) Stabilizing components Traction apparatus made with springs, Piano wire, elastic bands Straps **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months** AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S) None AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S) Any pertinent adjustment Price

### DEVICE

Molded plastic dynamic thumb orthosis that may include carpometacarpal, metacarpophalangeal or interphalangeal joints, made from imprint of beneficiary or prefabricated

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Stabilizing components Traction apparatus made with springs, Piano wire, elastic bands Straps

Part 2

\$249.00

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months**

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

*§2. Wrist and hand orthoses* 

### DEVICE

Passive orthosis for wrist and hand including fingers and thumb, palmar or dorsal, made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Splint Straps Bilateral fixed joints for dorsal orthosis

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months** 

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

### DEVICE

Molded plastic passive orthosis for wrist and hand including fingers and thumb, palmar or dorsal, made from imprint of beneficiary or prefabricated

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Thermoplastic splint Straps Bilateral fixed joints for dorsal orthosis

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months

\$271.00

Price

Price

\$192.00

610

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|--|--|--|
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Finger separator<br>— each   | \$10.00  | N/A  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |  |
|  |  | Price  |
| DEVICE   |  |  |
| Passive orthosis for wrist, palmar<br>or dorsal, including thumb extension where<br>applicable, made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary                                |  | \$219.00                                     |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Thermoplastic splint, palmar or dorsal,<br>or reinforced molded leather splint,<br>including thumb extension where applicable<br>Palmar or dorsal metacarpal bar<br>Straps |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Leather lining<br>Free wrist joints  | \$80.00<br>77.00                                 | N/A<br>N/A                                   |
|  |  |  |

# AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

### Price

\$162.00

### DEVICE

Molded plastic passive orthosis for wrist, palmar or dorsal, including thumb extension where applicable, made from imprint of beneficiary or prefabricated

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Molded plastic splint, prefabricated or made from imprint of beneficiary, including thumb extension where applicable Palmar or dorsal metacarpal bar Straps

### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>device |
|--|--|--|
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Finger traction apparatus<br>Flexion glove<br>Free wrist joints                                  | \$121.00<br>66.00<br>77.00                       | N/A<br>N/A<br>N/A                                      |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |  |
|  |  | Price  |
| DEVICE   |  |  |
| Prefabricated static wrist and dynamic<br>finger orthosis that may include<br>Swanson-type thumb |  | \$362.0  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Transverse and longitudinal bars<br>Palmar support<br>Finger and thumb traction apparatus        |  |  |
|  |  |  |

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months

None

### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

### DEVICE

Custom-made tenodesis orthosis

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Stabilizing components for thumb, index finger and middle finger Metacarpophalangeal joints Wrist joints Forearm stabilizing component Telescoping rod

### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

§3. Elbow, wrist and hant orthoses

#### DEVICE

Molded plastic passive monopiece elbow orthosis, anterior or posterior, made from imprint of beneficiary

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

One-piece splint including arm and forearm Straps

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months** 

\$233.00

\$564.00

Price

Price

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>device |
|--|--|--|
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Suspension strap<br>Elbow pad and strap<br>Uniaxial, bilateral<br>elbow joints                                 | \$18.00<br>59.00<br>53.00                        | N/A<br>\$80.00<br>N/A                                  |
| Turnbuckle   | 48.00  | N/A  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |  |
|  |  | Price  |
| DEVICE   |  |  |
| Molded plastic passive monopiece<br>elbow orthosis, anterior or posterior,<br>made from imprint of beneficiary |  | \$274.00   |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
| One-piece splint including arm<br>and forearm<br>Straps  |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>device |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Suspension strap<br>Elbow pad and strap<br>Uniaxial, bilateral<br>elbow joints                                 | \$18.00<br>59.00<br>53.00                        | N/A<br>\$80.00<br>N/A                                  |
| Turnbuckle   | 48.00  | N/A  |
| AVAILADI E ADILISTMENT(S)  |  |  |

### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

§4. Shoulder, elbow, wrist and hand orthoses

#### DEVICE

Glenohumeral orthosis made from plaster imprint of beneficiary

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Shoulder-to-epicondyle molded thermoplastic sleeve Thoracic straps Velcro straps for adjusting sleeve circumference

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months**

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|---|--|--|
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Suspension strap  | \$18.00  | N/A  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |  |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Adjustable passive orthosis for the<br>shoulder, elbow, wrist and hand,<br>airplane-type, prefabricated |  | \$599.00                                     |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |

Thoracic and pelvic support Adjustable shoulder and elbow joints Arm, forearm and hand splints Adjustable stabilizing bar between truncular and humeral support Anchor straps Pads

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months** 

\$274.00

Price

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|---|--|--|
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Pelvi-humeral<br>mobilization bar   | \$71.00  | N/A  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |  |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Prefabricated glenohumeral orthosis   |  | \$244.00                                     |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |
| Shoulder-to-epicondyle molded<br>thermoplastic sleeve<br>Thoracic straps<br>Velcro straps for adjusting<br>sleeve circumference |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months   |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |
| None  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |  |
| <b>§5.</b> Upper-limb orthoses  |  |  |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Other upper-limb orthoses   |  | S.C.   |

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 2 months** 

## DIVISION VI

616

# TRUNK AND CERVICAL ORTHOSES

§1. Trunk orthoses

|   | Price    |
|---|----------|
| DEVICE  |          |
| Prefabricated lumbar sacral orthosis,<br>molded plastic or metal structure<br>(Harris-, Knight-, Williams-type)       | \$288.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |          |
| None  |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |          |
|   | Price    |
| DEVICE  |          |
| Lumbar sacral orthosis with rigid<br>molded thermoplastic plate made from imprint<br>of beneficiary (Ortho-mold-type) | \$176.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |          |
| None  |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |          |
|   | Price    |
| DEVICE  |          |
| Plastic lumbar sacral orthosis made<br>from plaster imprint of beneficiary  | \$518.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |          |

None

### AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)

Any pertinent adjustment

### DEVICE

Custom-made rigid frame dorsal lumbar orthosis (Taylor-, Harris-Taylor-type)

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months**

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|---|--|--|--------------------------|
|   | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Axilla crutch<br>Corrective pad   | \$33.00<br>33.00                                 | N/A<br>N/A                                   | 3<br>3                   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |                          |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |  |                          |
|   |  |  | Price                    |
| DEVICE  |  |  |                          |
| Dorsal lumbar orthosis with rigid<br>molded thermoplastic plate made from imprint<br>of beneficiary (Ortho-mold-type) |  |  | \$251.00                 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |  |  |                          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |                          |
| None  |  |  |                          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |  |                          |

Any pertinent adjustment

\$388.00

Price

|   | Price    |
|---|----------|
| DEVICE  |          |
| Rigid dorsal lumbar orthosis covered in whale fabric  | \$209.00 |
| (Taylor-, Harris-Taylor-type)<br>(Camp, Airway make)  |          |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |          |
| None  |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |          |
|   | Price    |
| DEVICE  |          |
| Plastic dorsal lumbar sacral orthosis<br>with bilateral overlapping resulting<br>from double molding, made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary | \$834.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |          |
| None  |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |          |
|   | Price    |
| DEVICE  |          |
| Prefabricated plastic dorsal lumbar sacral<br>orthosis (Boston Overlap Brace-type)  | \$347.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |          |
| None  |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |          |

Any pertinent adjustment

|   | Price      |
|---|------------|
| DEVICE  |            |
| Plastic dorsal lumbar sacral orthosis<br>made from plaster imprint of beneficiary   | \$718.00   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |            |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |            |
| None  |            |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |            |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |            |
|   | Price      |
| DEVICE  |            |
| Prefabricated hyperextension orthosis<br>(Jewitt, Florida Brace)  | \$312.00   |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |            |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |            |
| None  |            |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |            |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |            |
|   | Price      |
| DEVICE  |            |
| Cervical dorsal lumbar sacral orthosis with<br>plastic base, made from plaster imprint<br>of beneficiary (Milwaukee-type) | \$1 090.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |            |
| Pelvic component made from plaster<br>imprint of beneficiary  |            |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |            |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement  |
|---|--|----------|----------------------------------|
|   |  | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |          |                                  |
| Pelvic component made<br>from plaster imprint of<br>beneficiary                                       | N.C.   | \$629.00 | 3                                |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |          |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |          |                                  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |          |                                  |
|   |  |          | Price                            |
| DEVICE  |  |          |                                  |
| Cervical dorsal lumbar sacral orthosis<br>with molded plastic base, prefabricated<br>(Milwaukee-type) |  |          | \$919.00                         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |          |                                  |
| Prefabricated pelvic component  |  |          |                                  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months   |  |          |                                  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |          |                                  |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | acement<br>iponent or<br>plement |
|   | uevice   | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)         |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |          |                                  |
| Prefabricated pelvic component  | N.C.   | \$465.00 | 3                                |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |          |                                  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |          |                                  |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |          |                                  |

|  |  |          | Price                           |
|--|--|----------|---------------------------------|
| DEVICE   |  |          |                                 |
| "Charleston" cervical dorsal lumbar sacral<br>hypercorrective orthosis made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary |  |          | \$937.00                        |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |  |          |                                 |
| AVAILABLE COMPLEMENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |          |                                 |
| None   |  |          |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |          |                                 |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |          |                                 |
|  |  |          | Price                           |
| DEVICE   |  |          |                                 |
| Cervical dorsal lumbar sacral orthosis<br>(Lyonnais-type)  |  |          | \$1 083.00                      |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |          |                                 |
| Prefabricated pelvic component<br>made from plaster imprint of<br>beneficiary                                      |  |          |                                 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |  |          |                                 |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |          |                                 |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | of con   | acement<br>ponent or<br>plement |
|  | utvitt   | Price    | Guarantee<br>(in months)        |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |          |                                 |
| Prefabricated pelvic component<br>made from plaster imprint of<br>beneficiary                                      | N.C.   | \$629.00 | 3                               |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |          |                                 |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |  |          |                                 |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |  |          |                                 |

|  | Price    |
|--|----------|
| DEVICE   |          |
| Prefabricated corrective dorsal lumbar<br>orthosis (Boston-type)                                     | \$586.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| None   |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |          |
|  | Price    |
| Corrective dorsal lumbar orthosis made<br>from plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>(Boston-type)       | \$834.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| None   |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |          |
| <b>§2.</b> Cervical orthoses   |          |
|  | Price    |
| DEVICE   |          |
| Thermoplastic cervical orthosis with<br>sternal support, made from plaster<br>imprint of beneficiary | \$403.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| None   |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |          |

Any pertinent adjustment

|  | Price    |
|--|----------|
| DEVICE   |          |
| Prefabricated semi-rigid cervical orthosis<br>(Philadelphia design)                            | \$111.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| None   |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |          |
|  | Price    |
| DEVICE   |          |
| Cervical orthosis with multiple<br>vertical uprights   | \$207.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| None   |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |          |
|  | Price    |
| DEVICE   |          |
| Molded plastic cervical orthosis<br>(Minerva-type) made from plaster<br>imprint of beneficiary | \$868.00 |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months  |          |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |          |
| None   |          |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)  |          |
| Any pertinent adjustment   |          |

|                                 | Price    |
|---------------------------------|----------|
| DEVICE                          |          |
| Cervical orthosis (S.O.M.Itype) | \$426.00 |

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months** 

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component or<br>supplement |                          |
|--|--|--|--------------------------|
|  | uevice   | Price  | Guarantee<br>(in months) |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)                               |  |  |                          |
| Halo support with lateral stabilization uprights | \$156.00   | \$167.00                                     | 3                        |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)                          |  |  |                          |
| Any pertinent adjustment                         |  |  |                          |
| <i>§3.</i> Other trunk orthoses                  |  |  |                          |
|  |  |  | Price                    |
| DEVICE   |  |  |                          |
| Other trunk orthoses<br>Other cervical orthoses  |  |  | S.C.<br>S.C.             |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months                  |  |  |                          |
| <b>DIVISION VII</b><br>AMBULATION AIDS           |  |  |                          |
| Ambulation aids                                  |  |  |                          |
|  |  |  | Price                    |
| DEVICE   |  |  |                          |
| Quad cane, height-adjustable (any size)          |  |  | \$56.00                  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)             |  |  |                          |
| Tip  |  |  |                          |

## **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months**

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit Price |
|---|--|--|
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Tip   | N.C.   | \$2.00   |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Crutches with axillary support,<br>height-adjustable (any size) |  | \$49.00  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)                            |  |  |
| Tips (2)<br>Axillary pads (2)<br>Handrest covers (2)            |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months                                |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)                        |  |  |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement               |

### BASIC COMPONENT(S)

| Tips (2)<br>Axillary pads (2)<br>Handrest covers (2) | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C. | \$2.00<br>2.00<br>2.00 |
|--|----------------------|------------------------|
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)                                |                      |                        |
| Flip-up ice tips with 4 or 5 prongs (2)              | 8.00                 | 4.00                   |
|  |                      | Price                  |

### DEVICE

Crutches with forearm support, height-adjustable from 25 in. (62.5 cm) to 31 in. (79 cm), from 30 in. (77 cm) to 36 in.(89 cm) or from 35 in. (87 cm) to 41 in. (102.5 cm) Unit price

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Tips (2)

### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|--|--|--|
|  | device   | Unit price                                   |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Tips (2)   | N.C.   | \$2.00                                       |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Flip-up ice tips with<br>4 or 5 prongs (2)                           | 8.00   | 4.00   |
|  |  | Price  |
| DEVICE   |  |  |
| Crutches with forearm support,                                       |  | \$158.00                                     |
| height-adjustable from 19 in. (47.5 cm) to 27 in. (71 cm), for child |  |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)                                 |  |  |
| Tips (2)   |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months                                     |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S),                            |  |  |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|  | uevice   | Unit price                                   |

| DASIC COMI ONENT(S)                        |      |        |
|--|------|--------|
| Tips (2)                                   | N.C. | \$2.00 |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)                      |      |        |
| Flip-up ice tips with<br>4 or 5 prongs (2) | 8.00 | 4.00   |

\$141.00

### DEVICE

Crutches with forearm support, height-adjustable from 12 in. (30 cm) to 18 in. (45 cm), for child

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Tips (2)

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months**

#### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit price |
|--|--|--|
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)                         |  |  |
| Tips (2)                                   | N/C  | \$2.00   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)                      |  |  |
| Flip-up ice tips with<br>4 or 5 prongs (2) | 8.00   | 4.00   |
|  |  | Pric   |

### DEVICE

Anterior walker, non-folding, with wheels (2), Rollator type, height-adjustable from 13 in. (32.5 cm) to 15 in. (37.5 cm), for child

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Tips (2)

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months** 

\$163.00

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|---|--|--|
|   |  | Unit price                                   |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  | N.C.   | \$2.00                                       |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Anterior walker, non-folding, with<br>wheels (2), Rollator type, height-adjustable<br>from 16 in. (40 cm) to 21 in. (52.5 cm),<br>for child |  | \$157.00                                     |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|   | utvitt   | Unit price                                   |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  | N.C.   | \$2.00                                       |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Anterior walker, folding, without wheels<br>and height-adjustable from 28 in. (73 cm)<br>to 36 in. (89 cm)                                  |  | \$96.00                                      |
|   |  |  |

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Tips (4)

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |  |
|---|--|--|--|
|   | device   | Unit price                                   |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  | N.C.   | \$2.00                                       |  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |  |
| Walker skis on rear legs (2)<br>Forearm supports (2)  | 26.00<br>122.00                                  | 13.00<br>61.00                               |  |
|   |  | Price  |  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |  |
| Anterior walker, folding, with wheels (2)<br>and height-adjustable from 28 in. (73 cm)<br>to 32 in. (81 cm), from 32 in. (81 cm)<br>to 36 in. (89 cm) or from 32 in. (81 cm)<br>to 39 in. (97.5 cm) |  | \$103.00                                     |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  |  |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months  |  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |  |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of           | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |  |
|   | device   | Unit price                                   |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  | N.C.   | \$2.00                                       |  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |  |
| Walker skis on rear legs (2)<br>Rear hand brakes (2)<br>Forearm supports (2)  | 26.00<br>40.00<br>122.00                         | 13.00<br>20.00<br>61.00                      |  |

|   | Price    |
|---|----------|
| DEVICE  |          |
| Anterior walker, folding, with wheels (2),<br>Rollator type, height-adjustable<br>from 11 1/2 in. (28.5 cm) to 21 in. (52.5 cm),<br>for child | \$181.00 |

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Tips (2)

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months**

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit price |
|---|--|--|
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  | N.C.   | \$2.00   |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Anterior walker, folding, with wheels (2),<br>Rollator type, height-adjustable<br>from 22 in. (55 cm) to 37 in. (92.5 cm),<br>for child |  | \$197.00   |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |
| Tips (2)  |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months  |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |  |
|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit price |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  | - · <b>r</b>   |
| T. (0)  | NG   | ¢ <b>2</b> .00   |

| Р | ri |
|---|----|
|   |    |

### DEVICE

Anterior walker, folding, with wheels (2), Rollator type, height-adjustable from 27 in. (71 cm) to 40 in. (100 cm), for child

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Tips (2)

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months**

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

| Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit price                          |
|--|---|
|  |   |
| N.C.   | \$2.00  |
|  | Price   |
|  |   |
|  | \$242.00  |
|  |   |
|  |   |
|  |   |
|  |   |
| Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement  |
|  | Unit price  |
|  | \$2.00  |
|  | replacement<br>price of<br>device<br>N.C.<br>Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of |

N.C. \$2.00

\$207.00

\$252.00

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|--|--|--|
|  | uevice   | Unit price                                   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Forearm supports (2)   | 122.00   | 61.00  |
|  |  | Price  |
| DEVICE   |  |  |
| Posterior walker, folding, with wheels (2),<br>Kaye W type, height-adjustable from 16 in.<br>(40 cm) to 22 in. (55 cm),<br>for child |  | \$244.0                                      |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Tips (2)   |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months   |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|  | device   | Unit price                                   |
|  |  |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
|  | N.C.   | \$2.00                                       |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)<br>Tips (2)<br>OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  | N.C.   | \$2.00                                       |
| Tips (2)   | N.C.<br>122.00                                   | \$2.00<br>61.00                              |

Posterior walker, folding, with wheels (2), Kaye W type, height-adjustable from 19 in. (47.5 cm) to 24 1/2 in. (61 cm), for child

BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Tips (2)

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months** 

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit price |
|--|--|--|
|  |  |  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Tips (2)   | N.C.   | \$2.00   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Forearm supports (2)   | 122.00   | 61.00  |
|  |  | Price  |
| DEVICE   |  |  |
| Posterior walker, folding, with wheels (2),<br>Kaye W type, height-adjustable from<br>22 in. (55 cm) to 30 3/4 in. (78.5 cm),<br>for child |  | \$288.00   |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
| Tips (2)   |  |  |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months   |  |  |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |  |
|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit price |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Tips (2)   | N.C.   | \$2.00   |
|  |  |  |

122.00

61.00

OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)

Forearm supports (2)

### Price

### DEVICE

Walker with wheels (4), height-adjustable from 18 1/2 in. (46.5 cm) to 25 3/4 in. (64 cm), with thoracic support, depth-adjustable from 0 in. to 8 in. (20 cm) and width-adjustable from 0 in. to 9 1/2 in. (23.5 cm), for child

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Steel frame Thoracic support with cover Flexible seat Front bumpers (4) Wheelbrakes (4)

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months**

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|--|--|--|
|  |  | Unit price                                   |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Steel frame, height-adjustable<br>from 18 1/2 in. (46.5 cm)  | N.C.   | \$397.00                                     |
| to 25 3/4 in. (64 cm)<br>Thoracic support,<br>depth-adjustable from 0 in.<br>to 8 in. (20 cm) and width-<br>adjustable from 0 in. to 9 1/2 in.             | N.C.   | 154.00                                       |
| (23.5 cm),including cover<br>Thoracic support,<br>depth-adjustable to more than<br>8 in. (20 cm) and width-adjustable<br>to more than 9 1/2 in. (23.5 cm), | 56.00  | 210.00                                       |
| including cover<br>Flexible seat<br>Front bumpers (4)<br>Wheelbrakes (4)   | N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.                             | 54.00<br>N/A<br>27.00                        |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Lower limb abductor<br>Back/headrest and cover<br>Thoracic support cover only  | 139.00<br>218.00<br>N/A                          | 139.00<br>218.00<br>80.00                    |

\$612.00

### Price

### DEVICE

Walker with wheels (4), height-adjustable from 25 3/4 in. (64 cm) to 38 3/4 in. (97 cm), with thoracic support, depth-adjustable from 0 in. to 10 in. (25 cm) and width-adjustable from 0 in. to 12 1/2 in. (31 cm), for child

### BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Steel frame Thoracic support with cover Flexible seat Front bumpers (4) Wheelbrakes (4)

### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 12 months

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement<br>Unit price |
|--|--|--|
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Steel frame, height-adjustable<br>from 25 3/4 in. (64 cm) to<br>38 3/4 in. (97 cm)   | N.C.   | \$443.00   |
| Thoracic support, depth-<br>adjustable from 0 in. to 10<br>in (25 cm) and width-adjustable<br>from 0 in. to 12 1/2 in. (31 cm),<br>including cover | N.C.   | 178.00   |
| Thoracic support, depth-<br>adjustable to more than<br>0 in. (25 cm) and<br>vidth-adjustable to more<br>han 12 1/2 in. (30 cm),                    | 56.00  | 234.00   |
| ncluding cover<br>Flexible seat  | N.C.   | 54.00  |
| Front bumpers (4)<br>Wheelbrakes (4)   | N.C.<br>N.C.                                     | N/A<br>27.00   |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Lower limb abductor<br>Back/headrest and cover<br>Thoracic support cover only  | 139.00<br>218.00<br>N/A                          | 139.00<br>218.00<br>80.00                                  |

\$673.00

### **DIVISION VIII** STANDING AIDS

# Standing aids

|  | Price      |
|--|------------|
| DEVICE                                     |            |
| Parapodium, child (Variety Village system) | \$1 717.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)       |            |
| Prefabricated parapodium orthosis          |            |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months            |            |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |            |
| None                                       |            |
| ADJUSTMENT(S) AVAILABLE                    |            |
| Any pertinent adjustment                   |            |
|  | Price      |
| DEVICE                                     |            |
| Parapodium, adult (Variety Village system) | \$2 332.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)       |            |
| Prefabricated parapodium orthosis          |            |
| DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months            |            |
| AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)   |            |
| None                                       |            |
| ADJUSTMENT(S) AVAILABLE                    |            |
| Any pertinent adjustment                   |            |
|  | Price      |
| DEVICE                                     |            |
| Orthopodium                                | \$1 009.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)       |            |
| Prefabricated orthopodium                  |            |

### **DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 3 months**

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

None

ADJUSTMENT(S) AVAILABLE

Any pertinent adjustment

#### PART II

PROSTHESES, ORTHOSES, AMBULATION AIDS OR STANDING AIDS DETERMINED TO BE INSURED SERVICES WHERE FURNISHED SOLELY BY AN INSTITUTION

#### DIVISION I UPPER-LIMB PROSTHESES

### **Upper-limb** prostheses

|   | Price      |
|---|------------|
| DEVICE  |            |
| Myoelectric cubital prosthesis  | \$3 059.00 |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |            |
| Single laminated plastic socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>Electrical system (1 connecting cable, 1 electrode<br>cable, 1 coaxial outlet, 1 coupling component)<br>Lamination collar (wrist)<br>Pack<br>Electrode (1)<br>Standard batteries (2)<br>Standard charger<br>Prosthetic glove |            |

### DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

### AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|---|--|--|
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |
| Single laminated plastic<br>socket made from plaster  | N.C.   | \$1 270.00                                   |
| imprint of beneficiary<br>Electrical system (1 connecting<br>cable, 1 electrode cable, 1 coaxial<br>outlet, 1 coupling component) | N.C.   |  |

|                                  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|----------------------------------|--|--|
| Lamination collar (wrist)        | N.C.   |  |
| Pack                             | N.C.   |  |
| First electrode                  | N.C.   |  |
| Additional electrode             | 685.00   |  |
| First electrode cable            | N.C.   |  |
| Additional electrode cable       | 62.00  |  |
| Standard batteries (2)           | N.C.   |  |
| Standard charger                 | N.C.   |  |
| Prosthetic glove                 | N.C.   | 163.00                                       |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)            |  |  |
| Double flexoform socket          | 179.00   | 236.00                                       |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for    | 3 196.00   |  |
| one 63/4 electrode               |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for    | 3 616.00   |  |
| one 7 1/4 and 7 3/4 electrode    |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for    | 3 789.00   |  |
| one 81/4 electrode               |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for    | 2 860.00   |  |
| two 63/4 electrodes              |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for    | 3 269.00   |  |
| two 7 1/4 and 7 3/4 electrodes   |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for    | 3 442.00   |  |
| two 81/4 electrodes              |  |  |
| Electric hands (VASI):           |  |  |
| -0 to 3 years for one            | 4 376.00   |  |
| electrode                        |  |  |
| -2 to 6 for two electrodes       | 4 376.00   |  |
| — 5 to 9 for two electrodes      | 4 663.00   |  |
| Electric hand (Steeper) 1.75     | 2 760.00   |  |
| Electric hand (Steeper) 2.00     | 2 875.00   |  |
| Electric hand (Steeper)          | 3 105.00   |  |
| 2.25 to 3.25                     |  |  |
| Electric hand "2000" (Otto Bock) | 4 483.00   |  |
| for two 5 electrodes             |  |  |
| Electric hand "2000" (Otto Bock) | 4 693.00   |  |
| for two 5 1/2 and 6 electrodes   |  |  |
| Electric hand "2000" (Otto Bock) | 4 884.00   |  |
| for two 6 1/2 electrodes         |  |  |
| Electronic box                   | 1 047.00   |  |
| for electric hand "2000"         | <b>2</b> 0.00                                    |  |
| Battery (1)                      | 30.00  |  |
| for electric hand "2000"         | 04.00  |  |
| Electrode cables (2)             | 94.00  |  |
| for electric hand "2000"         |  |  |
| Charger for hand "2000"          | 101.00   |  |
| Electric hook for one electrode  | 3 710.00   |  |
| Electric hook for two electrodes | 3 578.00   |  |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|---|--|--|
| Electronics module system:                      |  |  |
| — one site and two functions                    | U/A*   |  |
| — two sites and four functions                  | U/A*   |  |
| Electric wrist rotator                          | 274.00   |  |
| Myoelectrically controlled                      | 2 163.00   |  |
| prosthetic wrist including                      |  |  |
| a control unit                                  |  |  |
| Rapid charger                                   | 362.00   |  |
| Activating switch                               | 145.00   |  |
| Adaptations to make prosthesis                  |  |  |
| mechanical:                                     |  |  |
| Quick disconnect wrist                          | 558.00   |  |
| Hook, type 99X                                  | 363.00   |  |
| Suspension harness                              | 79.00  | 114.00                                       |
| Control cable,                                  | 106.00   | 142.00                                       |
| terminal connections                            |  |  |
| and housing (reinforced materials)              |  |  |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)                         |  |  |
| Conductor gel                                   | 5.00   |  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)                         |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment                        |  |  |
|   |  | Price  |
| DEVICE  |  |  |
| Myoelectric prosthesis for dislocation of wrist |  | \$2 848.0                                    |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)            |  |  |
| Single laminated plastic socket made from       |  |  |

plaster imprint of beneficiary Electrical system (1 connecting cable, 1 electrode cable) Pack Electrode (1) Standard batteries (2) Standard charger Prosthetic glove

**DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months** 

<sup>\*</sup> U/A: The Prices of these components will be available only upon final publication.

| Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement  |
|--|---|
|  |   |
| N.C.   | \$1 167.00  |
|  |   |
|  |   |
| N.C.   |   |
|  |   |
| N.C.   |   |
|  |   |
|  |   |
| N.C.   |   |
| 62.00  |   |
| N.C.   |   |
|  |   |
| N.C.   | 163.00  |
|  |   |
| 179.00   | 236.00  |
| 3 196.00   |   |
|  |   |
| 3 616.00   |   |
|  |   |
| 3 789.00   |   |
|  |   |
| 2 860.00   |   |
|  |   |
| 3 269.00   |   |
|  |   |
| 3 442.00   |   |
|  |   |
|  |   |
|  |   |
| 3 105.00   |   |
|  |   |
| 4 483.00   |   |
| 1 40 8 00  |   |
| 4 693.00   |   |
| 1 00 1 00  |   |
| 4 884.00   |   |
| 1.045.00   |   |
| 1 047.00   |   |
|  |   |
| 30.00  |   |
|  |   |
| 94.00  |   |
| 101.5-   |   |
|  |   |
| 3 710.00   |   |
|  | replacement<br>price of<br>device<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>685.00<br>N.C.<br>685.00<br>N.C.<br>62.00<br>N.C.<br>62.00<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>N.C.<br>3 196.00<br>3 789.00<br>2 860.00 |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | <b>Replacement</b><br>of component<br>or supplement |
|---|--|---|
| Electric hook for two electrodes<br>Rapid charger<br>Activating switch  | 3 578.00<br>362.00<br>145.00                     |   |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)   |  |   |
| Conductor gel   | 5.00   |   |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)   |  |   |
| Any pertinent adjustment  |  |   |
|   |  | Price   |
| DEVICE  |  |   |
| Myoelectric humeral prosthesis  |  | \$4 703.00  |
| BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)  |  |   |
| Single laminated plastic socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary<br>Electric hand for two 8E38 electrodes<br>Electrical system (1 connecting cable, 1 electrode<br>cable, 1 coaxial outlet, 1 coupling component)<br>Lamination collar (wrist)<br>Internal locking elbow, model E-400<br>Pack<br>Electrode (1)<br>Standard batteries (2)<br>Standard charger<br>Prosthetic glove |  |   |

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

# AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|--|--|--|
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |
| Single laminated plastic<br>socket made from<br>plaster imprint of beneficiary | N.C.   | \$1 631.00                                   |

Part 2

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|--|--|--|
| Electrical system                                    | N.C.   |  |
| (1 connecting cable, 1 electrode                     |  |  |
| cable, 1 coaxial outlet,                             |  |  |
| 1 coupling component)                                | NG   | 724.00                                       |
| Elbow with internal lock<br>model E-400              | N.C.   | 734.00                                       |
| Lamination collar (wrist)                            | N.C.   |  |
| Pack   | N.C.   |  |
| First electrode                                      | N.C.   |  |
| Additional electrode                                 | 685.00   |  |
| First electrode cable                                | N.C.   |  |
| Additional electrode cable                           | 62.00  |  |
| Standard batteries (2)                               | N.C.   |  |
| Standard charger                                     | N.C.   | 1.62.00                                      |
| Prosthetic glove                                     | N.C.   | 163.00                                       |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)                                |  |  |
| Double flexoform socket                              | 229.00   | 286.00                                       |
| Additional cost of socket                            | 152.00   | 152.00                                       |
| where elbow joint has                                |  |  |
| external lock  |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock)                            | 3 196.00   |  |
| for one 6 3/4 electrode                              | 2 616 00   |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock)<br>for one 7 1/4 and 7 3/4 | 3 616.00   |  |
| electrode  |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock)                            | 3 789.00   |  |
| for one 8 1/4 electrode                              | 5 707.00   |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock)                            | 2 860.00   |  |
| for two 6 3/4 electrodes                             |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock)                            | 3 269.00   |  |
| for two 7 1/4 and 7 3/4 electrodes                   |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock)                            | 3 442.00   |  |
| for two 8 1/4 electrodes                             |  |  |
| Electric hands (VASI):<br>— 0 to 3 years for one     | 4 376.00   |  |
| electrode  | 4 570.00   |  |
| -2 to 6 for two electrodes                           | 4 376.00   |  |
| — 5 to 9 for two electrodes                          | 4 663.00   |  |
| Electric hand (Steeper)                              | 2 760.00   |  |
| 1.75   |  |  |
| Electric hand (Steeper)                              | 2 875.00   |  |
| 2.00   | 2 105 00   |  |
| Electric hand (Steeper)                              | 3 105.00   |  |
| 2.25 to 3.25<br>Electric hand "2000"                 | 4 483.00   |  |
| (Otto Bock) for two 5 electrodes                     | 4 405.00   |  |
| Electric hand "2000" (Otto Bock)                     | 4 693.00   |  |
| for two 5 1/2 and 6 electrodes                       | 1 09 5.00  |  |
|  |  |  |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |
|---|--|--|
| Electric hand "2000" (Otto Bock)        | 4 884.00   |  |
| for two 6 1/2 electrodes                |  |  |
| Electronic box for electric             | 1 047.00   |  |
| hand "2000"                             | 20.00  |  |
| Battery (1)<br>for electric hand "2000" | 30.00  |  |
| Electrode cables (2)                    | 94.00  |  |
| for electric hand "2000"                | 94.00  |  |
| Charger for hand "2000"                 | 101.00   |  |
| Electric hook for one                   | 3 710.00   |  |
| electrode                               | 5 / 10.00  |  |
| Electric hook for two                   | 3 578.00   |  |
| electrodes                              | 5 57 8.00  |  |
| Electronics module system:              |  |  |
| — one site and two functions            | U/A*   |  |
| — two sites and four functions          | U/A*   |  |
| Electric wrist rotator                  | 274.00   |  |
| Myoelectrically                         | 2 163.00   |  |
| controlled prosthetic wrist             |  |  |
| including a control unit                |  |  |
| "Hosmer" electric elbow                 | 5 501.00   |  |
| with switch (including                  |  |  |
| battery (1), charger, switch)           |  |  |
| Rapid charger                           | 362.00   |  |
| Activating switch                       | 145.00   |  |
| Adaptations to make prosthesis          |  |  |
| mechanical:                             | 550.00   |  |
| Quick disconnect wrist                  | 558.00   |  |
| Hook, type 99X                          | 363.00   | 114.00                                       |
| Suspension harness<br>Control cable.    | 79.00<br>106.00                                  | $114.00 \\ 142.00$                           |
| terminal connections                    | 100.00   | 142.00                                       |
| and housing (reinforced materials)      |  |  |
| Flexion assist mechanism                | 273.00   | 321.00                                       |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)                 |  |  |
| Conductor gel                           | 5.00   |  |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)                 |  |  |
| Any pertinent adjustment                |  |  |
|   |  | Price  |

Electro-mechanical cubital prosthesis

## BASIC COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

Single laminated plastic socket made from plaster imprint of beneficiary Electrical system (1 connecting cable, 1 coaxial outlet, cable connecting switch to coaxial outlet, switch) Lamination collar (wrist) Standard batteries (2) Pack Standard charger Prosthetic glove

## DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 6 months

## AVAILABLE COMPONENT(S) AND SUPPLEMENT(S)

|  | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplement |  |
|--|--|--|--|
| BASIC COMPONENT(S)   |  |  |  |
| Single laminated plastic                                       | N.C.   | \$1 270.00                                   |  |
| socket made from plaster                                       |  |  |  |
| imprint of beneficiary   | NG   |  |  |
| Electrical system  | N.C.   |  |  |
| (1 connecting cable, 1 coaxial outlet, cable connecting switch |  |  |  |
| to coaxial outlet, switch)                                     |  |  |  |
| Lamination collar (wrist)                                      | N.C.   |  |  |
| Pack   | N.C.   |  |  |
| Standard batteries (2)   | N.C.   |  |  |
| Standard charger   | N.C.   |  |  |
| Prosthetic glove   | N.C.   | 163.00                                       |  |
| OPTIONAL COMPONENT(S)  |  |  |  |
| Double flexoform socket  | 179.00   | 236.00                                       |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for                                  | 3 196.00   |  |  |
| one 6 3/4 electrode  |  |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for                                  | 3 616.00   |  |  |
| one 7 1/4 and 7 3/4 electrode                                  | 3 789.00   |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for<br>one 8 1/4 electrode           | 5 789.00   |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for                                  | 2 860.00   |  |  |
| two 6 3/4 electrodes   | 2 000100   |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for                                  | 3 269.00   |  |  |
| two 7 1/4 and 7 3/4 electrodes                                 |  |  |  |
| Electric hand (Otto Bock) for                                  | 3 442.00   |  |  |
| two 8 1/4 electrodes   |  |  |  |
| Electric hands (VASI):   | 1 276 00   |  |  |
| — 0 to 3 years for one electrode                               | 4 376.00   |  |  |
| - 2 to 6 for two electrodes                                    | 4 376.00   |  |  |
|  | 1 57 0.00  |  |  |

|   | Purchase or<br>replacement<br>price of<br>device | Replacement<br>of component<br>or supplemen |
|---|--|---|
| — 5 to 9 for two electrodes             | 4 663.00   |   |
| Electric hand (Steeper) 1.75            | 2 760.00   |   |
| Electric hand (Steeper) 2.00            | 2 875.00   |   |
| Electric hand (Steeper) 2.25<br>to 3.25 | 3 105.00   |   |
| Electric hook for one<br>electrode      | 3 710.00   |   |
| Electric hook for two<br>electrodes     | 3 578.00   |   |
| Rapid charger                           | 362.00   |   |
| Activating switch                       | 145.00   |   |
| Adapter to make prosthesis              |  |   |
| mechanical:                             |  |   |
| Quick disconnect wrist                  | 558.00   |   |
| Hook, type 99X                          | 363.00   |   |
| Suspension harness                      | 79.00  | 114.00                                      |
| Control cable,                          | 106.00   | 142.00                                      |
| terminal connections                    |  |   |
| and housing (reinforced materials)      |  |   |
| AVAILABLE SUPPLEMENT(S)                 |  |   |
| Stump sock                              | (See Div. II)*                                   | (See Div. II)*                              |
| AVAILABLE ADJUSTMENT(S)                 |  |   |
| Any pertinent adjustment                |  |   |

## **DIVISION II**

```
SOCKS FOR UPPER-LIMB PROSTHESES
```

## **Supplements for prostheses**

#### STUMP SOCKS WOOL 2 — 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                 | 10                 | \$7.14  | \$9.14   |
|      |                   | 12                 | 7.77  | 9.87   |
|      |                   | 14                 | 8.72  | 10.82  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 10.29   | 12.29  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 11.03   | 13.02  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 11.87   | 13.97  |

\* (See Div. II): The reader is referred to Division II of this Part for the Prices of these supplements.

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches)   | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis  | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks  |
|------|-------------------|--|--|---|
|      |                   | 24<br>26   | 13.13<br>13.97   | 15.12<br>16.07  |
|      |                   | 28<br>30<br>32   | 14.81<br>15.44<br>16.38  | 16.80<br>17.54<br>18.48   |
|      | 7                 | 10   | 7.67   | 9.77  |
|      |                   | 12<br>14<br>16   | 8.51<br>9.56<br>10.61  | 10.61<br>11.66<br>12.71   |
|      |                   | 18<br>20<br>22   | 11.87<br>13.02<br>13.86  | 13.97<br>15.12<br>15.96   |
|      |                   | 24<br>26<br>28   | 14.81<br>15.96<br>18.69  | 16.91<br>18.06<br>20.79   |
|      | 8                 | 10<br>12<br>14<br>16<br>18<br>20<br>22<br>24<br>26<br>28             | 8.82<br>9.98<br>10.92<br>12.08<br>13.13<br>14.18<br>15.23<br>16.49<br>17.64                                | 10.92<br>11.97<br>13.02<br>14.18<br>15.12<br>16.28<br>17.33<br>18.59<br>19.64   |
|      |                   | 28<br>30<br>32   | 18.80<br>19.64<br>20.79  | 20.90<br>21.74<br>22.89   |
|      | 9                 | 10<br>12<br>14<br>16<br>18<br>20<br>22<br>24<br>26<br>28<br>30<br>32 | $10.08 \\ 11.34 \\ 12.50 \\ 13.55 \\ 14.91 \\ 16.07 \\ 17.22 \\ 18.27 \\ 19.53 \\ 20.79 \\ 21.84 \\ 23.00$ | $12.18 \\ 13.34 \\ 14.60 \\ 15.65 \\ 17.01 \\ 18.17 \\ 19.32 \\ 20.37 \\ 21.63 \\ 22.89 \\ 23.84 \\ 24.99 \\ 10.10 \\ 10.1$ |
|      | 10                | 10<br>12<br>14<br>16<br>18<br>20<br>22<br>24                         | 11.34<br>12.29<br>13.76<br>15.02<br>16.17<br>17.54<br>18.80<br>19.95                                       | 13.34<br>14.39<br>15.86<br>17.01<br>18.27<br>19.64<br>20.90<br>22.05  |

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      |                   | 26                 | 21.11   | 23.10  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 22.47   | 24.57  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 23.73   | 25.75  |
|      |                   | 32                 | 24.99   | 27.09  |
|      | 12                | 10                 | 15.12   | 17.12  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 16.28   | 18.38  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 17.64   | 19.74  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 18.80   | 20.90  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 20.16   | 22.16  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 21.42   | 23.42  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 22.68   | 24.68  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 24.05   | 26.04  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 24.99   | 26.99  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 26.46   | 28.46  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 27.51   | 29.61  |
|      |                   | 32                 | 28.88   | 30.98  |

# WOOL 6 PLY

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                 | 10                 | \$7.77  | \$9.87   |
|      |                   | 12                 | 8.61  | 10.71  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 9.56  | 11.66  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 10.40   | 12.50  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 12.18   | 14.18  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 13.13   | 15.12  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 14.39   | 16.49  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 15.33   | 17.43  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 16.17   | 18.27  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 17.01   | 19.11  |
|      |                   | 32                 | 18.06   | 20.16  |
|      | 7                 | 10                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 9.35  | 11.45  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 10.61   | 12.60  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 11.66   | 13.76  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 13.13   | 15.12  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 14.28   | 16.38  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 15.33   | 17.43  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.38  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 17.64   | 19.64  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 18.38   | 20.48  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 19.43   | 21.53  |
|      |                   | 32                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 8                 | 10                 | 9.77  | 11.76  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 12.08   | 14.18  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 13.34   | 15.44  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 14.39   | 16.49  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 15.65   | 17.64  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 16.80   | 18.90  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 18.06   | 20.16  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 19.32   | 20.10  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |
|      |                   | 28<br>30           | 20.09   | 23.84  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 22.89   | 23.84<br>24.99                                 |
|      |                   | 32                 | 22.89   | 24.99  |
|      | 9                 | 10                 | 11.03   | 13.13  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 12.39   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 14.91   | 17.01  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 17.64   | 19.74  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 18.90   | 21.00  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 20.16   | 22.16  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 21.53   | 23.52  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 22.89   | 24.99  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 23.94   | 26.04  |
|      |                   | 32                 | 25.31   | 27.30  |
|      | 10                | 10                 | 12.39   | 14.49  |
|      | 10                | 10                 | 13.55   | 15.65  |
|      |                   | 12                 |   |  |
|      |                   |                    | 15.12   | 17.22  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 17.75   | 19.85  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 19.32   | 21.42  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 22.05   | 24.15  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 23.31   | 25.31  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 24.78   | 26.88  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 26.04   | 28.14  |
|      |                   | 32                 | 27.51   | 29.51  |
|      | 12                | 10                 | 16.59   | 18.69  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 17.85   | 19.95  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 19.43   | 21.53  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 20.69   | 22.79  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 22.16   | 24.26  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 23.63   | 24.20  |
|      |                   | 20 22              | 23.03   | 26.99  |
|      |                   | 22 24              | 26.46   |  |
|      |                   |                    |   | 28.46  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 27.41   | 29.51  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 28.98   | 31.08  |
|      |                   | 30                 | 30.35   | 32.34  |
|      |                   | 32                 | 31.71   | 33.81  |

# WOOL AND NYLON 2 — 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches)   | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis   | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks  |
|------|-------------------|--|---|---|
|      | 6                 | 10<br>12<br>14<br>16<br>18<br>20<br>22   | \$9.87<br>9.87<br>11.34<br>11.34<br>11.34<br>12.92  | \$11.97<br>11.97<br>13.34<br>13.34<br>13.34<br>13.34<br>14.91   |
|      | 7                 | 10<br>12<br>14<br>16<br>18<br>20<br>22<br>24   | 12.92<br>9.87<br>9.87<br>11.34<br>11.34<br>11.34<br>12.92<br>12.92<br>12.92<br>12.92  | 14.91<br>11.97<br>11.97<br>13.34<br>13.34<br>13.34<br>13.34<br>14.91<br>14.91<br>14.91  |
|      | 8                 | 10<br>12<br>14<br>16<br>18<br>20<br>22<br>24<br>26<br>28   | $ \begin{array}{c} 11.34\\ 11.34\\ 11.34\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 14.81\\ 1$ | $13.34 \\ 13.34 \\ 13.34 \\ 14.91 \\ 14.91 \\ 14.91 \\ 16.80 \\ 16.8$ |
|      | 9                 | $     \begin{array}{r}       10 \\       12 \\       14 \\       16 \\       18 \\       20 \\       22 \\       24 \\       26 \\       28 \\       40 \\       42 \\       44 \\       46 \\       48 \\       50 \\       52 \\     \end{array} $ | $ \begin{array}{c} 11.34\\ 11.34\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 14.81\\ 14.81\\ 14.81\\ 14.81\\ 14.81\\ 14.81\\ 11.34\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 12.92\\ 14.81\\ 14.81\\ \end{array} $  | $\begin{array}{c} 13.34\\ 13.34\\ 14.91\\ 14.91\\ 14.91\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\\ 13.34\\ 13.34\\ 13.34\\ 14.91\\ 14.91\\ 14.91\\ 14.91\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\\ 16.80\end{array}$   |
|      | 10                | 10<br>12<br>14   | 11.34<br>12.92<br>12.92   | 13.34<br>14.91<br>14.91   |

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      |                   | 16                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 16.28   | 18.38  |
|      |                   | 40                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                   | 42                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                   | 44                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                   | 46                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                   | 48                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 50                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 52                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      | 12                | 10                 | 12.92   | 14.91  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 14.81   | 16.80  |

# WOOL AND NYLON 6 PLY

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                 | 12                 | \$10.92   | \$12.92  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      | 7                 | 10                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      | 8                 | 10                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 9                 | 12                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 13.76   | 15.86  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 15.96   | 17.96  |

# ULTRA WOOL 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                 | 10                 | \$10.92   | \$12.92  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      | 7                 | 10                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 10.92   | 12.92  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      | 8                 | 10                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      | 9                 | 10                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |

| Code | Width<br>(inches)   | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|---------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 10                  | 10                 | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      |                     | 12                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                     | 14                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                     | 16                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                     | 18                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                     | 20                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                     | 22                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                     | 24                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      | 12                  | 10                 | 14.18   | 16.28  |
|      |                     | 12                 | 16.38   | 16.48  |
|      |                     | 14                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
|      |                     | 16                 | 16.38   | 18.48  |
| Code | Wool and lycra      |                    | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|      | Extra narrow shor   | t                  |   |  |
|      | Extra light         |                    | \$9.87  | \$11.97  |
|      | Light               |                    | 10.50   | 12.60  |
|      | Thick               |                    | 11.13   | 13.23  |
|      | Very thick          |                    | 11.87   | 13.86  |
|      | Narrow short        |                    |   |  |
|      | Extra light         |                    | 10.50   | 12.60  |
|      | Light               |                    | 11.13   | 13.23  |
|      | Thick               |                    | 11.87   | 13.86  |
|      | Very thick          |                    | 12.50   | 14.49  |
|      | Narrow long or wid  | le short           |   |  |
|      | Extra light         |                    | 12.18   | 14.18  |
|      | Light               |                    | 12.81   | 14.91  |
|      | Thick               |                    | 13.44   | 15.54  |
|      | Very thick          |                    | 14.07   | 16.17  |
|      | Wide long           |                    |   |  |
|      | Extra light         |                    | 14.07   | 16.17  |
|      | Light               |                    | 14.81   | 16.80  |
|      | Thick<br>Very thick |                    | 15.44   | 17.43  |
|      |                     |                    | 16.38   | 18.48  |

# COTTON 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 6                 | 10                 | \$5.36  | \$7.46   |
|      |                   | 12                 | 5.99  | 8.09   |
|      |                   | 14                 | 6.62  | 8.72   |
|      |                   | 16                 | 7.25  | 9.35   |
|      |                   | 18                 | 7.77  | 9.87   |
|      |                   | 20                 | 8.40  | 10.50  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 9.03  | 11.13  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 9.98  | 11.97  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 10.61   | 12.71  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 11.24   | 13.34  |
|      | 7                 | 10                 | 5.88  | 7.88   |
|      |                   | 12                 | 6.51  | 8.51   |
|      |                   | 14                 | 7.25  | 9.35   |
|      |                   | 16                 | 8.09  | 10.08  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 9.03  | 11.13  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 9.87  | 11.97  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 10.61   | 12.60  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 11.34   | 13.34  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 12.18   | 14.18  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 12.81   | 14.81  |
|      | 8                 | 10                 | 6.83  | 8.82   |
|      |                   | 12                 | 7.46  | 9.56   |
|      |                   | 14                 | 8.40  | 10.40  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 9.14  | 11.24  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 9.98  | 11.97  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 10.71   | 12.81  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 11.66   | 13.65  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 12.50   | 14.60  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 13.34   | 15.44  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 14.39   | 16.38  |
|      | 9                 | 10                 | 7.67  | 9.77   |
|      |                   | 12                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 9.45  | 11.55  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 10.29   | 12.39  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 11.34   | 13.44  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 12.18   | 14.28  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 13.13   | 15.96  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 14.81   | 16.91  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 15.86   | 17.96  |
|      | 10                | 10                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 9.35  | 11.45  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 10.50   | 12.60  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 11.34   | 13.44  |
|      |                   | 18<br>20           | 12.29<br>13.34  | 14.28<br>15.44                                 |
|      |                   |                    |   |  |

| Code | Width<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|-------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      |                   | 22                 | 14.28   | 16.38  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 15.23   | 17.33  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 16.07   | 18.06  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 17.01   | 19.11  |
|      | 12                | 10                 | 11.55   | 13.55  |
|      |                   | 12                 | 12.29   | 14.39  |
|      |                   | 14                 | 13.44   | 15.54  |
|      |                   | 16                 | 14.39   | 16.38  |
|      |                   | 18                 | 15.33   | 17.33  |
|      |                   | 20                 | 16.28   | 18.38  |
|      |                   | 22                 | 17.22   | 19.32  |
|      |                   | 24                 | 18.27   | 20.27  |
|      |                   | 26                 | 19.01   | 21.11  |
|      |                   | 28                 | 19.95   | 22.05  |

# WOOL SOCKS 5 PLY

| Code | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement |
|------|--------------------|--|------------------------------------|
|      | 12                 | \$6.83   | \$8.82                             |
|      | 13                 | 7.14   | 9.14                               |
|      | 14                 | 7.25   | 9.35                               |
|      | 15                 | 7.77   | 9.77                               |
|      | 16                 | 7.98   | 10.08                              |
|      | 18                 | 8.51   | 10.61                              |

# WOOL SOCKS 3 — 5 PLY

| Code | Width (Min.)<br>(inches) | Width (Max.)<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 3, 3.5, 4                | 6                        | 8                  | \$6.93  | \$9.03   |
|      | 3                        |                          | 10                 | 6.93  | 9.03   |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 10                 | 7.14  | 9.14   |
|      | 4                        |                          | 10                 | 7.35  | 9.45   |
|      | 3                        |                          | 12                 | 7.67  | 9.77   |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 12                 | 7.77  | 9.87   |
|      | 4                        |                          | 12                 | 8.09  | 10.08  |
|      | 3                        |                          | 14                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 14                 | 8.72  | 10.82  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 14                 | 8.93  | 11.03  |
|      | 3                        |                          | 16                 | 9.24  | 11.34  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 16                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 16                 | 9.77  | 11.87  |
|      | 3.5, 4, 4.5, 5           | 7                        | 8                  | 7.77  | 9.87   |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 10                 | 7.35  | 9.45   |

| Code | Width (Min.)<br>(inches) | Width (Max.)<br>(inches) | Length<br>(inches) | Price at<br>time of purchase<br>or replacement<br>of prosthesis | Price at<br>time of<br>replacement<br>of socks |
|------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|---|--|
|      | 4                        |                          | 10                 | 7.67  | 9.77   |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 10                 | 8.09  | 10.08  |
|      | 5                        |                          | 10                 | 8.72  | 10.82  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 12                 | 8.09  | 10.19  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 12                 | 8.51  | 10.61  |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 12                 | 8.93  | 11.03  |
|      | 5                        |                          | 12                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 14                 | 9.45  | 11.45  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 14                 | 9.56  | 11.66  |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 14                 | 10.08   | 12.08  |
|      | 5                        |                          | 14                 | 10.50   | 12.60  |
|      | 3.5                      |                          | 16                 | 10.29   | 12.29  |
|      | 4                        |                          | 16                 | 10.61   | 12.71  |
|      | 4.5                      |                          | 16                 | 11.03   | 13.02  |
|      | 5                        |                          | 16                 | 11.55   | 13.55  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                | 8                        | 8                  | 8.93  | 11.03  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 10                 | 8.82  | 10.92  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 12                 | 9.87  | 11.97  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 14                 | 10.82   | 12.92  |
|      | 4, 4.5, 5                |                          | 16                 | 12.08   | 14.18  |

# **DIVISION III**

AMBULATION AIDS

## Ambulation aids

# Price

DEVICE

Other ambulation aids of the same type

DURATION OF GUARANTEE: 1 year

2763

S.C.

## **Draft Regulation**

An Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1)

#### Hunting and fishing controlled zones

Notice is hereby given, in accordance with sections 10 and 11 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1), that the Regulation respecting hunting and fishing controlled zones, the text of which appears below, may be made by the Government, upon the expiry of 45 days following this publication.

The purpose of the draft Regulation is to give more latitude to ZEC managing agencies, in particular for the setting of fees and for certain management procedures.

To that end, the Regulation proposes:

- a regulation specific to hunting and fishing ZECs;
- more flexibility in the setting of fees;
- specific fees for winter fishing;

— the replacement of the prohibition against automobile races and rallies by a delegation of the power to decide to the managing agencies;

— greater flexibility in the management of small game hunting during the hunting season for cervidae;

— the showing of licences upon registration.

To date, study of the matter has shown no negative impact on businesses, particularly on small and medium-sized businesses. On the contrary, the changes should allow for a better financing of ZEC managing agencies through greater flexibility in the setting of fees, while favouring the various customers concerned.

Further information may be obtained by contacting:

Mr. Gaétan Hamel Faune et Parcs Service de la réglementation 675, boulevard René-Lévesque Est, 10° étage, boîte 91 Québec (Québec) G1R 5V7

Tel: (418) 521-3880, ext. 4094 Fax: (418) 528-0834 E-mail: gaetan.hamel@mef.gouv.qc.ca

Any interested person having comments to make on the matter is asked to send them in writing, before the expiry of the 45-day period, to the Minister responsible for Wildlife and Parks, 700, boulevard René-Lévesque Est, 29<sup>e</sup> étage, Québec (Québec) G1K 5H1.

GUY CHEVRETTE, Minister responsible for Wildlife and Parks

## **Regulation respecting hunting and fishing controlled zones**

An Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1, ss. 110 and 162, par. 14; 1997, c. 95, s. 5; 1998, c. 29, s. 22)

#### **DIVISION I**

INTERPRETATION AND SCOPE

**1.** In this Regulation,

"agency" means an agency that is a party to a memorandum of agreement in respect of the management of a controlled zone in accordance with section 106 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1); (organisme)

"hunting and fishing ZEC" means a controlled zone, other than a salmon fishing ZEC or a wildfowl hunting ZEC, established for the purposes of hunting and fishing, in accordance with section 104 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife; (ZEC de chasse et de pêche)

"hunting implement" means any implement referred to in the Regulation respecting hunting made by Order in Council 1383-89 dated 23 August 1989; (*engin de chasse*)

"hunting season" means a hunting season referred to in the Regulation respecting hunting; (période de chasse)

"limited access sector" means a sector in a controlled zone for which an agency sets a limit on the number of groups of hunters that may enter to hunt moose; (*secteur* à accès contingenté)

"small game" means that referred to in section 1 of the Regulation respecting hunting. (*petit gibier*)

**2.** This Regulation applies to hunting and fishing controlled zones.

#### **DIVISION II**

REGISTRATION AND ASSIGNMENT

**3.** An agency may, by by-law, determine the cases where a person who, for recreational purposes, enters or

stays in a ZEC under its management or engages in any other activity therein, shall be required to register.

A person who is required to register shall comply with the following registration procedure:

(1) report to the designated reception centre;

(2) show identification and, where applicable, his hunting or fishing licence to the registration officer;

(3) state his full name and address;

(4) specify a single location or, where applicable, a single sector in which he will be hunting or fishing and the date of the activity, for each day of hunting or fishing;

(5) obtain proof of registration and place it on the dashboard of his vehicle so that it may be read from the outside or keep it with him and produce it upon request from a wildlife conservation officer, a wildlife conservation assistant or an area warden; and

(6) return the duly completed registration to the registration officer on leaving the controlled zone.

A person may change hunting or fishing sectors without paying additional fees by having his registration changed by the registration officer prior to the activity.

The third paragraph does not apply to a person who hunts moose in a limited access sector.

**4.** Where registration is required in accordance with section 3 and no registration officer is on duty, the person shall fill out the registration form available at the reception centre and deposit it at the designated place.

**5.** An agency may, by by-law, divide the ZEC territory into hunting or fishing sectors.

**6.** An agency may, by by-law, prohibit in a hunting sector and for such time as it determines,

(1) black bear hunting;

(2) small game hunting during the hunting season for moose with a Type 1 or 6 hunting implement, except for the snaring of hare and hunting for migratory game birds under the Migratory Birds Convention Act (R.S.C., 1985, c. M-7).

**7.** A person may not hunt or fish in a ZEC except on the date, in the location or, where applicable, sector specified on the registration.

At the end of his stay, a person shall declare to the registration officer the number of animals or fish of each species taken, the date, location or, where applicable, the sector where they were taken, and shall also produce the fish or animals on request and allow any required handling or testing.

Where no officer is available, a person shall make that declaration on the form provided at the reception centre and deposit it at the designated place.

#### **DIVISION III**

LIMITED ACCESS SECTORS

**8.** An agency may, by by-law, for moose hunting during the hunting season with a Type 1 implement, limit the number of groups of hunters that may be admitted at the same time into each of the sectors it has established and the number of hunters per group, provided it does so for the whole ZEC and for the entire duration of the hunting season with that type of implement.

The number of groups of hunters that may be admitted at the same time for each stay the duration of which is set pursuant to section 13 shall be equal to or greater than the number arrived at by using the following formula:

| Number of           | <u>Area of the ZEC in km<sup>2</sup></u> |
|---------------------|--|
| groups of hunters = | (number of days in the moose             |
|                     | hunting season using a Type 1            |
|                     | hunting implement) x 3                   |

**9.** In order to hunt in a limited access sector, a person shall be part of a group selected in accordance with section 10.

**10.** An agency shall select groups of moose hunters and prepare a waiting list to fill cancellations by a random draw held each year not less than three months before the beginning of the hunting season.

**11.** At least one month prior to selecting groups, the agency shall publish the terms and conditions for participating in the random draw in two Québec newspapers, one of which shall have a province-wide circulation and the other shall be circulated in the region of the ZEC or in the nearest region, if there is no newspaper in the region.

**12.** At the random draw, a person in charge shall be put in charge of each selected group of moose hunters and they shall be assigned a date and a hunting sector.

**13.** The person in charge of a selected group shall be assigned one reservation only per year by an agency for a minimum of three hunters and for three to seven consecutive days.

**14.** No person who hunted in a limited access sector during the hunting season with Type 1 hunting implements may hunt moose again in the ZEC to which that sector belongs within the same year.

**15.** The person in charge of a selected group may designate a substitute at any time before the beginning of the stay by notifying the agency.

## **DIVISION IV**

FEES PAYABLE

**16.** The fees payable by a person applying for membership that may be set by by-law of the agency shall not be less than \$10 nor more than \$20.

**17.** A person may not fish or hunt in a ZEC unless he has paid the fees set by by-law of the agency; those fees shall not exceed the following amounts or, in the case of a non-resident, those set under section 24:

(1) \$16.50 per day for fishing from 1 December to 15 April;

(2) \$16.50 per day for fishing from 16 April to 30 November;

(3) \$16.50 per day for hunting, other than whitetailed deer, moose, caribou or black bear hunting;

(4) \$27.50 per day for white-tailed deer hunting;

(5) \$27.50 per day for moose hunting;

(6) \$27.50 per day for caribou hunting;

(7) \$27.50 per day for black bear hunting.

Where the agency fails to set the daily fees for whitetailed deer, moose, caribou or black bear hunting, a person shall pay the corresponding lump-sum fee set under section 21.

**18.** Section 17 does not apply to a Native person who enters a ZEC to travel to his trapping grounds located in a beaver reserve for the purposes of carrying out activities related to trapping.

**19.** No person may use a vehicle to travel in a ZEC unless he has paid the travel fees set by by-law of the agency, which shall not exceed, subject to section 22,

(1) \$5.50 per vehicle; or

(2) \$3.00 more per vehicle where a person enters or leaves the ZEC between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

The first paragraph does not apply to

(1) a person travelling in a ZEC in the performance of his duties;

(2) a person who travels in a ZEC solely to reach a principal residence or private property and come back from there;

(3) a person whose travel fees have been paid, in accordance with section 106.2 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1), by an outfitter, an agency or a recreational association;

(4) a person who just travels through a ZEC, and for whom the corresponding travel fees are paid to the agency by another person, an association or a group;

(5) a person who travels in a ZEC to reach lands in the public domain on which exclusive trapping rights only are granted or to reach a beaver reserve for the purpose of carrying out activities related to trapping, and to come back from there; or

(6) a lessee of exclusive trapping rights or his helper who travels in a ZEC for the purpose of carrying out trapping activities.

**20.** An agency may, by by-law, set for its members a seasonal lump-sum fee for fishing and an annual lump-sum fee for hunting, provided that the agency sets a fee for each applicable activity set forth hereunder, not to exceed

(1) \$108.00 for fishing from 1 December to 15 April;

(2) \$108.00 for fishing from 16 April to 30 November;

(3) \$108.00 for hunting, other than white-tailed deer, moose, caribou or black bear hunting;

(4) \$180.00 for white-tailed deer hunting;

(5) \$180.00 for moose hunting;

(6) \$180.00 for caribou hunting;

(7) \$180.00 for black bear hunting;

(8) \$360.00 for all activities prescribed under paragraphs 1 to 7. **21.** Where an agency does not set daily fees for white-tailed deer, moose, caribou or black bear hunting, it shall set by by-law an annual lump-sum fee to be paid by all persons for those activities. The amount of the lump-sum fee shall not exceed the amounts provided for in section 20.

The lump-sum fees set by the agency in accordance with the first paragraph or with section 20 shall apply to the whole territory of the ZEC.

**22.** An agency may, by by-law, set an annual lumpsum fee for the benefit of a person, his spouse and minor children not to exceed \$72 for the use of a vehicle in a ZEC under its management.

The payment of the lump-sum fee does not exempt the person paying it from paying the fee referred to in subparagraph 2 of the first paragraph of section 19.

**23.** Where an agency sets an annual lump-sum travel fee under the first paragraph of section 22, any lump-sum fee paid under paragraph 8 of section 20 shall include the travel fee.

**24.** An agency may, by by-law, increase the fees payable by non-residents to a maximum of twice the amount set by the agency for a resident pursuant to this Division.

This section does not apply to travel fees prescribed in sections 19 and 22.

**25.** As provided for in the second paragraph of section 110 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife, the fees which may be set by an agency under this Division may vary according to the criteria referred to in that paragraph.

#### DIVISION V VEHICLES

**26.** An agency may, by by-law, prohibit the use of any type of vehicle for competitions, races or rallies.

**27.** An agency may, by by-law, prohibit the recreational use of an all-terrain vehicle within the meaning of subparagraph 2 of section 1 of the Act respecting off-highway vehicles (R.S.Q., c. V-1.2) during the moose or white-tailed deer hunting season with a Type 1, 2, 6 or 9 hunting implement, except where the vehicle is used to recover the carcass of the animal.

# DIVISION VI

## GENERAL

**28.** A forest worker working in a ZEC may be in possession of a hunting implement provided that he has registered in accordance with any by-law made pursuant to section 3 and paid the fees required under a by-law made pursuant to Division IV.

**29.** Any person who contravenes section 3, 4, 7, 9, 14, 17, 19 or 28 or a by-law made by an agency pursuant to section 6, 26 or 27 is guilty of an offence.

## **DIVISION VII**

TRANSITIONAL AND FINAL

**30.** Where the territory of a ZEC that has been divided into sectors for hunting or fishing and such territory is enlarged by the Minister, that enlargement shall constitute an additional hunting or fishing sector, as the case may be, until such time as a by-law respecting to that enlargement, made by the agency under section 5, comes into force.

For the purposes of this section, where the enlargement is made up of separate areas, each area shall be deemed to constitute a separate sector.

**31.** This Regulation replaces the Regulation respecting controlled zones made by Order in Council 122-89 dated 8 February 1989.

**32.** The by-laws made by an agency managing a hunting and fishing ZEC pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation respecting controlled zones, made by Order in Council 122-89 dated 8 February 1989, shall remain into force until they are amended, replaced or revoked by a by-law of that agency made under the provisions of this Regulation.

**33.** This Regulation comes into force on the fifteenth day following the date of its publication in the *Gazette officielle du Québec*.

2764

# **Draft Regulation**

Civil Code of Québec (1991, c. 64)

An Act respecting the implementation of the reform of the Civil Code (1992, c. 57)

An Act respecting registry offices (R.S.Q., c. B-9)

# Register of personal and movable real rights — Amendments

Notice is hereby given, in accordance with sections 10 and 11 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1), that the Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting the register of personal and movable real rights, the text of which appears below, may be made by the Government at the expiry of 45 days following this publication.

The purpose of the draft Regulation is to establish a secure infrastructure for the electronic transmission of data between the registry office and its clients, and for the processing and storage of that data.

Therefore, the draft Regulation proposes to amend the provisions relating to the medium, the form and the signing of an application for registration in order to take into account the fact that it may be transmitted in paper form or in electronic form. It introduces new requirements relating to the issuing of copies of applications for registration transmitted electronically as well as to the storage on microfilm or on an optical medium of the applications for registration submitted on paper or electronically.

Studies to date have revealed no impact on the public. However, the draft Regulation will have the following effects on business:

— clients will be able to transmit their applications for registration quickly and efficiently from anywhere in the province, thereby accelerating the publication of rights contained in the register of personal and movable real rights;

— it will improve the reliability of the entries made in the register since it provides for the verification of the identity and signature of the sender and safeguards the integrity and completeness of the transmitted messages in addition to eliminating possible data entry errors in the processing of applications by the registrar; and — it will facilitate the implementation of the second phase of the register in that it provides for the registration of reservations of ownership following instalment sales, rights of ownership of lessors, and movable hypothecs without delivery on consumer goods.

Further information may be obtained from Ms. Lise Cadoret, notary, at 255, boulevard Crémazie Est, 5° étage, Montréal (Québec) H2M 2V3; telephone (514) 864-4931; fax (514) 864-9774.

Anyone having comments to make on this matter is asked to send them in writing, before the expiry of the 45-day period, to the undersigned at 1200, route de l'Église, 9<sup>e</sup> étage, Sainte-Foy (Québec) G1V 4M1.

LINDA GOUPIL, Minister of Justice

## Regulation to amend the Regulation respecting the register of personal and movable real rights

Civil Code of Québec (1991, c. 64, ss. 2984, 3012 and 3024)

An Act respecting the implementation of the reform of the Civil Code (1992, c. 57, s. 165)

An Act respecting registry offices (R.S.Q., c. B-9, s. 5)

**1.** The Regulation respecting the register of personal and movable real rights<sup>1</sup> is amended by substituting, in the chapter headings in the French version, the words "CHAPITRE I" for "CHAPITRE PREMIER", and, in the chapter headings in the English version, the words "CHAPTER III" for "CHAPTER II", "CHAPTER IV" for "CHAPTER III", "CHAPTER VI" for "CHAPTER VI", "CHAPTER VI", and "CHAPTER VI", "CHAPTER VI", and "CHAPTER VII".

**2.** The Regulation is amended by inserting the following after section 15:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The Regulation respecting the register of personal and movable real rights, made by Order in Council 1594-93 dated 17 November 1993 (1993, *G.O.* 2, 6215), was last amended by the Regulation made by Order in Council 444-98 dated 1 April 1998 (1998, *G.O.* 2, 1513).

#### **"CHAPTER II**

MEASURES TO GUARANTEE THE RELIABILITY OF DOCUMENTS TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY

#### DIVISION I TECHNOLOGICAL STRUCTURE

**15.1** Where an application for registration and the accompanying request for service are transmitted electronically, the reliability and security standards prescribed in this Chapter shall apply.

The computer system that is installed and the standards with which it must comply, in particular with respect to security, shall protect the confidentiality of the documents during transmission, ensure their nonrepudiation by establishing the identity of the applicant or of the person who sends the documents over an open communications network, and guarantee their integrity and completeness at all times.

**15.2** An asymmetric cryptographic system, combined with an auxiliary symmetric cryptographic system, shall be used to ensure the reliability of the data constituting the electronic documents transmitted to the registry office.

**15.3** The technological structure used for the electronic transmission of documents to the registry office shall be established in accordance with international or internationally recognized recommendations and standards, and more specifically, at a minimum, with the following criteria or criteria that are at least equivalent:

(1) International Telecommunication Union (ITU) Recommendation X.500 (11/93), in general, adopted as an international standard by the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) and the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) under the general designation of ISO/IEC 9594:1995, for the management of the directory containing the information relating to the certificates and public keys that form an integral part of key pairs;

(2) ITU Recommendation X.509 (11/93), in particular, adopted as an international standard by ISO and IEC under the designation ISO/IEC 9594-8:1995 Information Technology — Open systems interconnection (OSI) — The Directory: Authentication framework, for the issue and storage of key pairs and signature verification and encryption certificates;

(3) American National Standards Institute (ANSI) Standard X12 for data format and markup; (4) The American federal government's National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Standard FIPS 140-1 for the DES, DSA and SHA-1 algorithms used in cryptography; and

(5) ISO/IEC 8859-1: 1988 graphic character sets (Latin alphabet No. 1) for the processing and storage of documents and their printing or conversion into hard copy.

Subsections 3 and 4 above refer to standards as they existed on 1 December 1997.

**15.4** The asymmetric cryptographic system shall provide for the issue of a signing key pair by means of which the transmitted documents are signed and their source identified.

The system shall also provide for the issue of an encryption key pair to protect the confidentiality of the documents being transmitted. Confidentiality is ensured by encrypting the data by means of a randomly variable secret key generated by the symmetric cryptographic system. That key is itself encrypted with the public key that forms part of the encryption key pair of the intended recipient, namely, the registry office, which decrypts the transmitted data with its private key.

The system shall also include a hash function by means of which the registry office can verify the integrity and completeness of the documents it receives.

**15.5** Each signing and encryption key pair shall consist of a unique and indissociable pair of keys, one public and the other private, that are linked mathematically. Each public key shall be referred to in a certificate which serves to bind the key to the key pair holder.

The identity of the holder is verified by means of his public key and his signature verification certificate.

**15.6** The signature verification certificate and encryption certificate shall be in electronic form and shall include the following information:

(1) the distinguishing name of the key pair and certificate holder which consists of his name combined with a unique code;

(2) the signature verification public key or the encryption public key, as the case may be, together with the certificate serial number, version, issue date and expiry date; and

(3) the name of the issuer, the characteristics of the algorithm and the resulting hash code used in delivering the certificate.

**15.7** The encryption certificates shall be entered in an electronic directory and kept up-to-date by the registrar of the registry office.

The directory shall include the serial numbers of the signature verification certificates and encryption certificates that have been suspended, revoked, withdrawn or deleted. The form generation software automatically verifies the validity of a certificate when documents are transmitted.

#### **DIVISION II**

#### ISSUE AND RENEWAL OF KEY PAIRS AND CERTIFICATES

**15.8** The registrar is charged with the issue and storage of key pairs and certificates attesting to the identity of the key pair holders.

**15.9** In order to send an application for registration to the registry office electronically, a person shall first obtain the appropriate key pairs and certificates. They will be issued after a notary accredited by the registrar has verified the person's identity. The person requiring that verification shall bear its cost.

**15.10** The person whose identity is to be verified shall appear in person and provide accurate information and relevant supporting documents.

**15.11** The notary verifying an identity shall make a note of the information required by the registrar, including the verification code selected by the applicant that only he can use to identify himself to the registrar.

The notary shall certify that the identity of the person has been established, that the identity has been verified for the purpose of obtaining key pairs and certificates for the electronic transmission of documents to the registry office and, where applicable, that the person whose identity has been established intends to send applications on his own behalf or that he is authorized to send applications on behalf of another person who is named.

He shall convey the noted information and the certified facts to the registrar electronically in a transmission signed and encrypted by means of key pairs that provide at least the same degree of security and reliability as those issued by the registrar.

**15.12** Where a person who applies for key pairs and certificates has been a holder of key pairs and certificates in the preceding year, his identity verification code may be used to verify his identity providing he intends to send applications only on his own behalf.

**15.13** The registrar shall send to the person whose identity has been verified, in separate deliveries, two parts of a token with which the person shall generate his signing key pair from his workstation or chip card.

The person shall also choose a password to be used primarily to initiate the process of signing, encrypting and transmitting electronic data.

The public key required to verify the holder's signature shall be sent to the registrar. The transmission is done electronically and is automatic.

**15.14** After receipt of the public key forming part of the signing key pair, an encryption key pair, together with a signature verification certificate and an encryption certificate, shall be issued to the holder. Where the holder is authorized to transmit applications on behalf of another person, that information shall be linked electronically, or cross-referenced, to his signature verification certificate.

The holder shall, before transmitting documents electronically, notify the registrar of the receipt of his key pairs and certificates in order that the registrar may activate them.

**15.15** A valid certificate may be renewed before its expiry date for the same term as that for which it was issued. The renewal shall be effected by means of a link-up between the holder's and the registrar's computer systems within the following time limits:

(1) within two months of the certificate's expiry date, where it was issued for one year;

(2) within four months of the certificate's expiry date, where it was issued for two years;

(3) within seven months of the certificate's expiry date, where it was issued for three years;

(4) within nine months of the certificate's expiry date, where it was issued for four years; or

(5) within twelve months of the certificate's expiry date, where it was issued for five years.

A renewal requires the generation of a new signing key pair. The new public key that is part of the key pair is sent automatically to the registrar who shall then issue to the holder the certificate relating to the signing key pair as well as the encryption key pair and certificate.

#### **DIVISION III**

# OBLIGATIONS OF KEY PAIR AND CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

**15.16** The holder shall use his key pairs and certificates solely for the electronic transmission of documents to the registry office.

**15.17** The holder shall guarantee the security and confidentiality of the private key of each of his key pairs and of his identity verification code.

He shall notify the registrar as quickly as possible where the security or the confidentiality of a private key has been compromised, particularly where there is a danger of unauthorized access to the key or of voluntary or accidental disclosure of the password that initiates the process of electronic signing, encryption and transmission of documents, or where he believes that he has lost a private key or has had it stolen.

**15.18** The holder shall destroy his key pairs where, for whatever reason, he no longer uses them or may no longer use them because of the non-renewal of a certificate, or because of its withdrawal, its deletion or its revocation or because he is no longer authorized to transmit documents on others' behalf to the registry office.

#### SECTION IV

#### VALIDITY OF KEY PAIRS AND CERTIFICATES

**15.19** In the event of the loss of a password accessing a certificate related to an encryption key pair, or in the event of a breakdown, dysfunction or loss of the medium storing the certificate, the holder may request the registrar to retrieve the encryption certificate and reactivate it.

A new signing key pair shall be generated from a new token sent to the holder. The new public key that is part of the signing key pair shall be automatically transmitted to the registrar who shall then issue a new signature verification certificate to the holder and send him the key pair and encryption certificate that were recovered.

Before transmitting documents electronically, the holder shall notify the registrar of the receipt of his key pairs and certificates in order that the registrar may activate them.

**15.20** Where a holder no longer wishes to use his certificates, he shall notify the registrar of the date on which he intends to cease using them and request their withdrawal. The certificates shall be withdrawn following verification of the holder's identity.

The withdrawal shall become effective when the certificate serial numbers are entered on the list of withdrawn or revoked certificates, which shall be at the latest on the first working day following the date indicated by the holder in his request or on the first working day following the verification of his identity. **15.21** Where the holder has never used his certificates, he may ask the registrar to delete them from the directory. The certificates shall be deleted at the latest on the first working day following the verification of the holder's identity.

**15.22** The registrar may on his own initiative suspend or revoke key pairs and related certificates where

(1) more than six months have elapsed since the holder last used the certificates;

(2) there is reason to believe that a certificate has been altered;

(3) there is reason to believe that the security of the key pairs or certificates has been compromised;

(4) the holder is no longer authorized to transmit documents electronically on others' behalf to the registry office, provided that the registrar has been notified; or

(5) the holder fails to fulfil his obligations.

The registrar shall suspend the key pairs and certificates before revoking them and, except in the situation described in subparagraph 4 of the first paragraph, notify the holder, by any manner providing proof of delivery, that his certificate has been suspended and that he intends to revoke it. Any comments by the holder shall be submitted within 15 days from the date the notice was given.

Following the suspension, the certificates shall be either reactivated or revoked. The revocation shall take effect when the certificate serial numbers are entered on the list of withdrawn or revoked certificates, which shall be at the latest one working day following the revocation.

**15.23** Where a holder is no longer authorized to transmit documents electronically to the registry office on behalf of another person, that person shall notify the registrar accordingly.

**15.24** The registrar shall refuse to issue, for a period of two years from the revocation, new key pairs and certificates for the transmission of documents to the registry office to a person whose key pairs and certificates were revoked as a result of a failure to fulfil his obligations.

**15.25** Where the holder of key pairs and certificates requests the retrieval or withdrawal of a certificate, the deletion of a certificate from a directory, or the correction of the unique code that forms part of his distinguishing name, his identity may be verified by means of his identity verification code.

**15.26** The holder shall be notified of any correction, renewal or withdrawal of a certificate, reactivation of a certificate following its suspension or revocation, or deletion of a certificate from a directory. He shall also be notified of any refusal to issue a certificate and the grounds therefor.".

**3.** The following is substituted for Divisions II and III of CHAPTER II:

#### **"DIVISION II**

#### MEDIUM AND TRANSMISSION

**22.** An application for registration may be in paper form. It may also be submitted in electronic form insofar as it is generated by means of the form generation software provided to the applicant by the registry office.

It may be transmitted to the registry office's electronic depository in accordance with the provisions of CHAPTER II relating to the electronic transmission of documents where it is generated and delivered by means of that software.

**23.** The application for registration in the form of a notice shall be prepared by using either the paper form provided by the registry office or the software referred to in section 22. The form to be completed shall be as prescribed in the Schedules to this Regulation and shall be appropriate to the type of application filed.

**23.1** The form generation software shall be locked in by means of a hash code that will guarantee its integrity. The applicant shall not modify the software and he shall use one of the versions in use at the registry office.

**23.2** An application form consists of texts and key words in addition to headings and spaces that shall be filled in according to the instructions relating to the type of application filed. The basic information making up the form may be arranged differently depending on whether the paper form or electronic form is used.

**23.3** An application for registration in paper form shall be submitted on paper measuring 215 x 355 mm and weighing at least  $75g/m^2$  per ream; an application in the form of a notice shall be printed on only one side of the sheet.

**23.4** An application for registration in paper form may not be a copy; it shall be typed, printed or written in block letters using good quality ink. The characters shall be clear, neat and legible, without deletions or alterations.

It shall bear the applicant's handwritten signature and his name shall be typed, printed or written in block letters under the signature or in the space provided on the application form.

It may be filed in person at the registry office or sent by mail.

**23.5** An application for registration in electronic form shall consist of the data constituting the application form and inserted information that appear as screen pages. The form and inserted information data are linked electronically or by reference.

**23.6** An application for registration in electronic form shall be signed by means of the digital signature process by the holder of the key pair used to transmit data electronically to the registry office. Only one signature is required for the transmission of a set of documents consisting of several applications for registration and one request for service.

The holder shall make the transmission by file transfer to the registry office's electronic depository where it will be received by the registrar. The holder shall attach his signature verification certificate to the transmitted data.

**23.7** The data shall be considered received only where they have been transmitted in full and where the registrar is able to access and decrypt them.

**23.8** Upon receipt of an application for registration in electronic form, the registrar shall make sure that the key pair holder's signature verification certificate and digital signature are valid and that the transmitted data are intact.".

**4.** The Regulation is amended by substituting the following for the heading of DIVISION IV of CHAPTER II:

#### "DIVISION III CONTENT OF APPLICATIONS".

**5.** The Regulation is amended by inserting the following after section 47:

**"47.1** Where the registrar must provide a copy of a digitally signed electronic document, the document shall be converted into hard copy from the data that was received and decrypted and whose integrity has been verified. The information constituting the form shall be added to these data.

The name of the signatory resulting from the verification of his identify and, if applicable, the name of the person on whose behalf the application for registration was transmitted shall appear on the hard copy.".

**6.** The following is substituted for CHAPTER VI of the Regulation:

#### **"CHAPTER VII**

CONSERVATION, REPRODUCTION AND TRANSFER

**49.** An application for registration and any supporting document may, where they are in paper form, be reproduced on microfilm or on a non-rewritable optical medium.

A backup copy of the microfilm or optical disks shall be stored elsewhere than at the registry office.

**49.1** The data constituting the applications for registration and documents transmitted in electronic form to the registry office shall be conserved as received.

They may however be transferred to a non-rewritable optical medium in order to protect the data received, in particular against accidental alterations.

**50.** Cancelled entries or entries cancelling other entries may be transferred to a magnetic or non-rewritable optical medium.".

**7.** This Regulation comes into force on the fifteenth day following the date of its publication in the *Gazette officielle du Québec*.

2768

## **Draft Regulation**

An Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1)

#### Salmon fishing controlled zones

Notice is hereby given, in accordance with sections 10 and 11 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1), that the Regulation respecting salmon fishing controlled zones, the text of which appears below, may be made by the Government upon the expiry of 45 days following the date of this publication.

The purpose of the draft Regulation is to give more latitude to ZEC managing agencies, in particular for the setting of fees and for certain management procedures. To that end, the Regulation proposes:

- a regulation specific to salmon fishing ZECs;

more flexibility in the setting of fees;

— the assignment of 20 % of limited places according to procedures decided in a general meeting, as is the case now, but with more flexibility;

— the possibility that 2 % of the days of access be assigned for promotional purposes;

— the replacement of the prohibition against automobile races and rallies by a delegation of the power to decide to the managing agencies;

— the showing of licences upon registration.

To date, study of the matter has shown no negative impact on businesses, particularly on small and medium-sized businesses. On the contrary, the changes should allow for a better financing of ZEC managing agencies through greater flexibility in the setting of fees, while favouring the various customers concerned. They also facilitate the marketing of available places in the low season.

Further information may be obtained by contacting:

Mr. Gaétan Hamel Faune et Parcs Service de la réglementation 675, boulevard René-Lévesque Est, 10° étage, boîte 91 Québec (Québec) G1R 5V7

Tel: (418) 521-3880, ext. 4094 Fax: (418) 528-0834 E-mail: gaetan.hamel@mef.gouv.qc.ca

Any interested person having comments to make on the matter is asked to send them in writing, before the expiry of the 45-day period, to the Minister responsible for Wildlife and Parks, 700, boulevard René-Lévesque Est, 29<sup>e</sup> étage, Québec (Québec) G1R 5H1.

GUY CHEVRETTE, Minister responsible for Wildlife and Parks

# **Regulation respecting salmon fishing controlled zones**

An Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife

(R.S.Q., c. C-61.1, ss. 110 and 162, par. 14; 1997, c. 95, s. 5; 1998, c. 29, s. 22)

### DIVISION I INTERPRETATION AND SCOPE

## **1.** In this Regulation,

"agency" means an agency that is a party to a memorandum of agreement in respect of the management of a controlled zone in accordance with section 106 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1); (*organisme*)

"limited access sector" means a sector in a controlled zone for which an agency sets a limit on the maximum number of persons that may enter to fish; (*secteur à accès contingenté*)

"salmon fishing ZEC" means a controlled zone established for the purposes of salmon fishing in accordance with section 104 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife. (*ZEC de pêche au saumon*)

**2.** This Regulation applies to salmon fishing controlled zones.

## **DIVISION II**

REGISTRATION AND ASSIGNMENT

**3.** An agency may, by by-law, determine the cases where a person who, for recreational purposes, enters or stays in a ZEC under its management or engages in any other activity therein shall be required to register.

A person who is required to register shall comply with the following registration procedure:

(1) report to the designated reception centre;

(2) show identification and, where applicable, his fishing licence to the registration officer;

(3) state his full name and address;

(4) specify a single location for each fishing day or, where applicable, a single sector in which he will be fishing, and the date of the activity;

(5) obtain proof of registration and place it on the dashboard of his vehicle so that it may be read from the outside or keep it with him and produce it upon request

from a wildlife conservation officer, a wildlife conservation assistant or an area warden; and

(6) return the duly completed registration to the registration officer on leaving the controlled zone.

A person may change fishing sectors upon payment of the fees for fishing in the newly chosen sector; however, the sum of those fees may not exceed the maximum amount prescribed in paragraph 1 of section 15.

The third paragraph does not apply to a person who fishes in a limited access sector.

**4.** Where registration is required in accordance with section 3 and no registration officer is on duty, the person shall fill out the registration form available at the reception centre and deposit it at the designated place.

**5.** An agency may, by by-law, divide a ZEC territory into sectors for fishing salmon and other species of fish.

**6.** A person may not fish in a ZEC except on the date and in the location or, where applicable, sector specified on the proof of registration.

At the end of his stay, a person shall declare to the registration officer the number of fish of each species taken, the date, location or, where applicable, the sector where they were taken, and shall produce the fish on request and allow any required handling or testing.

Where no officer is available, a person shall make that declaration on the form provided at the reception centre and deposit it at the designated place.

## **DIVISION III**

LIMITED ACCESS SECTORS

**7.** An agency may, by by-law, limit the number of fishermen that may be admitted each day in each of the sectors that it has established during the salmon fishing season.

The number of fishermen that may be admitted each day shall not be less than two fishermen per sector.

**8.** In order to fish in a limited access sector, a person shall have been selected in accordance with section 9 or section 13.

**9.** An agency shall select fishermen according to the following terms and conditions:

(1) on an optional basis, daily selection may be made according to the method of assignment determined by by-law of the agency, of not more than 20 % of the number of fishermen that may be admitted each day into all of the limited access sectors of the ZEC, from 20 June to 15 July; for the remainder of the year, that selection may exceed 20 % of the number of fishermen that may be admitted each day into all those sectors without exceeding 20 % of the number of fishermen that may be admitted each year into all the limited access sectors of the ZEC;

(2) for not less than half the number of fishermen that may be admitted each day into all the limited access sectors of the ZEC, selection shall be made by a random draw held each year or by telephone reservation, not less than two months before the beginning of the salmon fishing season;

(3) for fishermen not selected pursuant to paragraph 1, if applicable, and paragraph 2, selection shall be made by a random draw or by telephone reservation two days before the scheduled activity;

(4) if there are vacancies following the selections made in accordance with paragraph 1 or paragraphs 2 and 3, selection shall be made by telephone reservation the day before the scheduled activity; and

(5) if there are vacancies after the selections made in accordance with paragraph 1, if applicable, and paragraphs 2 to 4, selection shall be made by a draw of lots on the day of the activity among the persons present at the reception centre.

**10.** At least one month prior to selecting fishermen, the agency shall publish the terms and conditions for participating in the random draw or for making reservations by telephone in two Québec newspapers, one of which shall have a province-wide circulation and the other shall be circulated in the region of the ZEC or in the nearest region, if there is no newspaper in the region.

**11.** At the random draw, each person selected shall be assigned a rank for the choice of a date and fishing sector.

**12.** A person who, pursuant to paragraph 2 of section 9 is selected by a random draw or makes a reservation by telephone shall be allotted one reservation by the agency for a maximum of two persons for a maximum stay of four days, consecutive or not.

An agency must allow a selected person who so requests to reserve for two persons and for a stay of two consecutive or non-consecutive days in the same sector or in another sector offered by random draw or telephone reservation.

#### **DIVISION IV**

## ASSIGNMENT FOR PROMOTIONAL PURPOSES

**13.** Notwithstanding Division III, an agency may assign a number of fishermen in any sector of the ZEC for promotional purposes according to the procedure it determines by by-law; the number of fishermen so assigned shall not exceed 2 % of the total number of fishing days in the ZEC during the preceding year and provided that the yearly maximum referred to in paragraph 1 of section 9 is complied with.

## **DIVISION V**

FEES PAYABLE

**14.** The fees payable by a person applying for membership that may be set by by-law of the agency shall not be less than \$10 nor more than \$20.

**15.** A person may not fish in a ZEC unless he has paid the fees set by by-law of the agency; those fees shall not exceed the following amounts or, in the case of a non-resident, those set under section 17:

(1) \$38.50 per day in an open access sector;

(2) \$82.50 per day in a limited access sector;

(3) \$125 per day in a limited access sector for which the selection of fishermen is made in accordance with paragraph 1 of section 9; or

(4) \$1 000 per day in any sector for which the selection of fishermen is made in accordance with section 13.

The fees referred to in subparagraph 4 of the first paragraph may be charged only where it is part of a fund-raising activity of a nonprofit organization.

**16.** To use a vehicle in a ZEC, a person shall pay the fees set by by-law of an agency, which shall not exceed:

(1) \$5.50 per vehicle;

(2) \$3.00 more per vehicle where a person enters or leaves a ZEC between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

The first paragraph does not apply to

(1) a person travelling in a ZEC in the performance of his duties;

(2) a person who travels in a ZEC solely to reach a principal residence or private property and come back from there;

(3) a person whose travel fees have been paid, in accordance with section 106.2 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1), by an outfitter, an agency or a recreational association;

(4) a person who just travels through a ZEC, and for whom the corresponding travel fees are paid to the agency by another person, an association or a group;

(5) a person who travels in a ZEC to reach lands in the public domain on which exclusive trapping rights only are granted or to reach a beaver reserve for the purpose of carrying out activities related to trapping, and to come back from there; or

(6) a lessee of exclusive trapping rights or his helper who travels in a ZEC for the purpose of carrying out trapping activities.

**17.** An agency may, by by-law, increase the amount of the fees payable by non-residents to a maximum of twice the amount set by the agency for a resident pursuant to this Division.

This section does not apply to travel fees prescribed in section 16.

**18.** As provided for in the second paragraph of section 110 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife, the amount of the fees which may be set by an agency under this Division may vary according to the criteria referred to in that paragraph.

#### DIVISION VI VEHICLES

**19.** An agency may, by by-law, prohibit the use of any type of vehicle for competitions, races or rallies.

#### **DIVISION VII**

PENAL

**20.** Any person who contravenes section 3, 4, 6, 8, 15 or 16 or a by-law made by an agency pursuant to section 19 is guilty of an offence.

#### **DIVISION VIII**

TRANSITIONAL AND FINAL

**21.** Where the territory of a ZEC that has been divided into sectors for fishing by a by-law made by an agency under section 5 and where such territory is enlarged by the Minister, that enlargement shall constitute an additional fishing sector until such time as a by-law respecting that enlargement, made by the agency pursuant to section 5 of this Regulation, comes into force.

For the purposes of this section, where the enlargement is made up of separate areas, each area shall be deemed to constitute a separate sector.

**22.** This Regulation replaces the Regulation respecting controlled zones made by Order in Council 122-89 dated 8 February 1989.

**23.** The by-laws made by an agency managing a salmon fishing ZEC pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation respecting controlled zones, made by Order in Council 122-89 dated 8 February 1989, shall remain in force until they are amended, replaced or revoked by a by-law of that agency made under the provisions of this Regulation.

**24.** This Regulation comes into force on the fifteenth day following the date of its publication in the *Gazette officielle du Québec*.

2766

# **Draft Regulation**

An Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1)

#### Wildfowl hunting controlled zones

Notice is hereby given, in accordance with sections 10 and 11 of the Regulations Act (R.S.Q., c. R-18.1), that the Regulation respecting wildfowl hunting controlled zones, the text of which appears below, may be made by the Government upon the expiry of 45 days following the date of this publication.

The purpose of the draft Regulation is to give more latitude to ZEC managing agencies, in particular for the setting of fees and for certain management procedures.

To that end, the Regulation proposes:

- a regulation specific to wildfowl hunting ZECs;
- more flexibility in the setting of fees;

— the possibility that 20 % of the limited places be assigned according to procedures decided in a general meeting;

— the possibility that 2 % of the days of access be assigned for promotional purposes;

— the showing of licences upon registration.

To date, study of the matter has shown no negative impact on businesses and in particular on small and medium-sized businesses. On the contrary, the changes should allow for a better financing of ZEC managing Part 2

agencies through greater flexibility in the setting of fees, while favouring the various customers concerned. They also facilitate the marketing of available places in the low season.

Further information may be obtained by contacting:

Mr. Gaétan Hamel Faune et Parcs Service de la réglementation 675, boulevard René-Lévesque Est, 10° étage, boîte 91 Québec (Québec) G1R 5V7 Tel. (418) 521-3880, ext. 4094 Fax: (418) 528-0834 E-mail: gaetan.hamel@mef.gouv.qc.ca

Any interested person having comments to make on the matter is asked to send them in writing, before the expiry of the 45-day period, to the Minister responsible for Wildlife and Parks, 700, boulevard René-Lévesque Est, 29<sup>e</sup> étage, Québec (Québec) G1R 5H1.

GUY CHEVRETTE, Minister responsible for Wildlife and Parks

## **Regulation respecting wildfowl hunting controlled zones**

An Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1, ss. 110 and 162, par. 14; 1997, c. 95, s. 5; 1998, c. 29, s. 22)

DIVISION I INTERPRETATION AND SCOPE

**1.** In this Regulation,

"agency" means an agency that is a party to a memorandum of agreement in respect of the management of a controlled zone in accordance with section 106 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife (R.S.Q., c. C-61.1); (*organisme*)

"limited access sector" means a sector in a wildfowl hunting controlled zone for which an agency sets a limit on the number of groups of hunters that may enter to hunt wildfowl; (*secteur à accès contingenté*)

"wildfowl" means migratory game birds within the meaning of section 3 of the Migratory Birds Convention Act (R.S.C., 1985, c. M-17) whose hunting is governed by the Migratory Birds Regulations (C.R.C., c. 1035); (*sauvagine*)

"wildfowl hunting ZEC" means a controlled zone established for the purposes of wildfowl hunting in accordance with section 104 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife. (ZEC de chasse à la sauvagine)

**2.** This Regulation applies to wildfowl hunting controlled zones .

#### **DIVISION II**

REGISTRATION AND ASSIGNMENT

**3.** An agency may, by by-law, determine the cases where a person who, for recreational purposes, enters or stays in a ZEC under its management or engages in any other activity therein shall be required to register.

A person who is required to register shall comply with the following registration procedure:

(1) report to the designated reception centre;

(2) show identification and, where applicable, his hunting licence to the registration officer;

(3) state his full name and address;

(4) obtain proof of registration and place it on the dashboard of his vehicle so that it may be read from the outside or keep it with him and produce it upon request from a wildlife conservation officer, a wildlife conservation assistant or an area warden; and

(5) return the duly completed registration to the registration officer on leaving the controlled zone.

**4.** An agency may, by by-law, divide a ZEC territory into wildfowl hunting sectors.

**5.** A person shall not hunt in a ZEC except on the date and in the blind, location or, where applicable, sector specified on the proof of registration.

At the end of his stay, a person shall declare to the registration officer the number of birds of each species taken, the date, blind, location or, where applicable, sector where they were taken, and shall produce the birds on request and allow any required handling or testing.

#### **DIVISION III** LIMITED ACCESS SECTORS

**6.** An agency may, by by-law, limit the number of groups of hunters to be admitted at the same time in each of the sectors that it has established, determine the num-

ber of hunters permitted per blind, and impose a requirement to hunt from a blind assigned by the agency.

The number of groups of hunters that may be admitted at the same time shall be equal to or greater than the number arrived at by using the following formula:

Number of groups of hunters =  $\frac{\text{length of the bank or shore of the ZEC in metres}}{600}$ 

**7.** In order to hunt in a limited access sector, a person shall be part of a group selected in accordance with section 8 or shall have been selected in accordance with section 13.

**8.** An agency shall select groups of hunters according to the following terms and conditions:

(1) on an optional basis, for the daily selection of not more than 20 % of the number of groups of hunters that may be admitted each day into all the limited access sectors of the ZEC, according to the method of assignment determined by by-law of the agency;

(2) for the selection of not less than two thirds of the number of groups that may be admitted each day into all the limited access sectors of the ZEC, by a random draw held each year or by telephone reservation not less than two months before the beginning of the wildfowl hunting season;

(3) for groups not selected pursuant to paragraph 1, if applicable, and paragraph 2, by telephone reservation or by a random draw two days before the hunt;

(4) if there are vacancies following the selections made in accordance with paragraph 1, if applicable, and paragraphs 2 and 3, by telephone reservation the day before the hunt;

(5) if there are vacancies after the selections made in accordance with paragraph 1, if applicable, and paragraphs 2 to 4, by a draw of lots on the day of the hunt among the persons present at the reception centre.

**9.** At least one month prior to selecting groups of hunters, the agency shall publish the terms and conditions for participating in the random draw or for making reservations by telephone in two Québec newspapers, one of which has a province-wide circulation and the other is circulated in the region of the ZEC or in the nearest region if there is no newspaper in the region.

**10.** At the time of the random draw, a person shall be put in charge of each group selected to which a hunting date shall be assigned. The sector or blind shall be

assigned to the group by a draw of lots on the premises on the day of the hunt.

**11.** A person who, pursuant to paragraph 2 of section 8, is selected by a random draw or makes a reservation by telephone shall be allotted one reservation for a maximum of four persons and for a maximum stay of two consecutive days.

**12.** The person selected in accordance with section 8 may designate a substitute, at any time before the beginning of the stay, by notifying the agency.

#### **DIVISION IV**

ASSIGNMENT FOR PROMOTIONAL PURPOSES

**13.** Notwithstanding Division III, an agency may assign hunters in any sector of the ZEC for promotional purposes according to the procedure it determines by by-law; the number of hunters so assigned shall not exceed 2 % of the total number of hunting days in the ZEC during the preceding year provided that the maximum referred to in paragraph 1 of section 8 is complied with.

# DIVISION V

FEES PAYABLE

**14.** The fees payable by a person applying for membership that may be set by by-law of the agency shall not be less than \$10 nor more than \$20.

**15.** A person may not hunt wildfowl in a ZEC unless he has paid the fees set by by-law of the agency; those fees shall not exceed the following amounts or, in the case of a non-resident, those set under section 16:

(1) \$66 per day;

(2) \$125 per day in a limited access sector for which the selection of hunters is made in accordance with paragraph 1 of section 8; or

(3) \$1 000 per day in any sector for which the selection of hunters is made in accordance with section 13.

The fees referred to in subparagraph 3 of the first paragraph may be charged only where it is part of a fund-raising activity of a nonprofit organization.

**16.** An agency may, by by-law, increase the amount of the fees payable by non-residents to up to twice the amount set by the agency for a resident pursuant to this Division.

**17.** As provided in the second paragraph of section 110 of the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife, the fees which may be set by an agency under this Division may vary according to the criteria referred to in that paragraph.

## **DIVISION VI**

PENAL

**18.** Any person who contravenes section 3, 5, 7 or 15 is guilty of an offence.

DIVISION VII TRANSITIONAL AND FINAL

**19.** Where the territory of a ZEC that has been divided into sectors for wildfowl hunting is enlarged by the Minister, that enlargement shall constitute an additional hunting sector until such time as a by-law respecting that enlargement, made by the agency pursuant to section 4 of this Regulation, comes into force.

For the purposes of this section, where the enlargement is made up of separate areas, each area shall be deemed to constitute a separate sector.

**20.** This Regulation replaces the Regulation respecting controlled zones made by Order in Council 122-89 dated 8 February 1989.

**21.** The by-laws made by an agency pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation respecting controlled zones made by Order in Council 122-89 dated 8 February 1989 shall remain in force until they are amended, replaced or revoked by a by-law of that agency made under the provisions of this Regulation.

**22.** This Regulation comes into force on the fifteenth day following the date of its publication in the *Gazette* officielle du Québec.

2765

Gouvernement du Québec

# O.C. 312-99, 31 March 1999

An Act respecting municipal territorial organization (R.S.Q., c. O-9)

Correction to the amalgamating Order in Council constituting Ville de Coaticook

WHEREAS Order in Council 1527-98 concerning the amalgamation of Ville de Coaticook, Canton de Barnston and Canton de Barford was made on 16 December 1998;

WHEREAS there is an error in writing in that Order in Council;

WHEREAS under section 214.2 of the Act respecting municipal territorial organization, the Government may correct such an error;

IT IS ORDERED, therefore, on the recommendation of the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Greater Montréal:

THAT section 8 of the operative part of Order in Council 1527-98 dated 16 December 1998 concerning the amalgamation of Ville de Coaticook, Canton de Barnston and Canton de Barford be amended by substituting the word "third" for the second occurrence of the word "first" in the first sentence.

MICHEL NOËL DE TILLY, Clerk of the Conseil exécutif

2772

675

# **Index Statutory Instruments**

Abbreviations: A: Abrogated, N: New, M: Modified

| Regulations — Statutes  | Page | Comments |
|---|------|----------|
| Amendments to Schedule I to the Act   | 475  | М        |
| Civil Code of Québec — Register of personal and movable real rights (1991, c. 64)   | 660  | Draft    |
| Compensations in lieu of taxes  | 476  | М        |
| Conditions of employment and the pension plan of the Members of the National Assembly, An Act respecting the (1999, Bill 11)  | 467  |          |
| Conservation and development of wildlife, An Act respecting the — Hunting and fishing controlled zones  | 656  | Draft    |
| Conservation and development of wildlife, An Act respecting the — Salmon fishing controlled zones   | 665  | Draft    |
| Conservation and development of wildlife, An Act respecting the — Wildfowl hunting controlled zones   | 668  | Draft    |
| Correction to the amalgamating Order in Council constituting Ville de<br>Coaticook  | 673  |          |
| Devices which compensate for a physical deficiency  | 481  | Draft    |
| Exemptions from stopping before crossing certains level crossings   | 480  | Ν        |
| Government and Public Employees Retirement Plan, An Act respecting the<br>— Amendments to Schedule I to the Act   | 475  | М        |
| Health Insurance Act — Devices which compensate for a physical deficiency (R.S.Q., c. A-29)   | 481  | Draft    |
| Health services and social services and amending various legislative provisions,<br>An Act to amend the Act respecting — Coming into force of certain<br>provisions | 473  |          |
| Highway Safety Code — Exemptions from stopping before crossing certains level crossings   | 480  | Ν        |
| Highway Safety Code — Special permits   | 478  | М        |
| Highway Safety Code — Special road train operating permits  | 477  | М        |

| Hunting and fishing controlled zones   | 656 | Draft |
|--|-----|-------|
| Implementation of the reform of the Civil Code, An Act respecting the<br>— Register of personal and movable real rights  | 660 | Draft |
| List of Bills sanctioned   | 465 |       |
| Municipal taxation, An Act respecting — Compensations in lieu of taxes (R.S.Q., c. F-2.1)  | 476 | М     |
| Municipal territorial organization, An Act respecting — Correction to the amalgamating Order in Council constituting Ville de Coaticook  | 673 |       |
| National Assembly, An Act respecting the, amended  | 467 |       |
| National Assembly and the Act respecting the conditions of employment and the pension plan of the Members of the National Assembly, An Act to amend the Act respecting the (1999, Bill 11) | 467 |       |
| Register of personal and movable real rights   | 660 | Draft |
| Register of personal and movable real rights   | 660 | Draft |
| Register of personal and movable real rights   | 660 | Draft |
| Registry offices, An Act respecting — Register of personal and movable real rights   | 660 | Draft |
| Salmon fishing controlled zones  | 665 | Draft |
| Special permits  | 478 | М     |
| Special road train operating permits   | 477 | М     |
| Wildfowl hunting controlled zones  | 668 | Draft |